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OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

CONdOLH>ATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME A m RETAINED EARNMGS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2008 AND 2007 

2008 2007 

OPERATING REVENUES — Sales of electric enei:gy to: 
Department of oiergy 
Sponsoring companies 

Total operating revalues 

OPERATING EXPK^SES: 
Fuel and onission allowances consumed in operation 
Purchased power 
Otho* operation 
Maintenance 
Depreciation 
Taxes — otiio- than income taxes 
hicome taxes 

Total opoating expenses 

OPERATING INCOME 

OTHER INCOME 

INCOME BEFORE INTEREST CHARGES 

INTEREST CHARGES: 
Amortization of debt expense 
Interest expense 

Total interest charges 

NETINCOME 

RETAINED EARNINGS — Be^nning of year 

CASH DIVIDENDS ON COMMON STOCK 

RETAINED EARNINGS — End of year 

$ 18,539,153 $ 14,605,075 
603,273,999 516,757,146 

621,813,152 

340,212,739 
17,903,608 
69.414,118 
71.513,450 
56.946.744 
9,784,455 
1,023,381 

566,798,495 

55,014.657 

4,714,761 

59,729,418 

532.119 
54,106,130 

54,638,249 

5,091,169 

2,915,642 

(5,500,000) 

$ 2,506,811 

531,362.221 

300,666,274 
14,106.371 
68,471.855 
69,945.403 
31,7^,198 
8,990,186 

907,416 

494,807,703 

36.554,518 

5,252,583 

41,807,101 

404.083 
36,261,637 

36,665,720 

5,141.381 

2,274,261 

(4,500,000) 

$ 2,915,642 

See notes to consolidated financial statonents. 



OHiO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

CONSOl.U>ATE0 STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
fOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBa^ 31. ^MW AND 2007 

OPHIATING AcrrvrriES: 
Net income 
AtSustmente to reconak net inconie to net ca^ provided by (used in) ojpaslm^ activities: 
Oefffedation 
AmortisatioQ o f d ^ eqnise 
£>dferred taxes 
Gam <m di^»sai of assets 
Gam Kmimtixtable securities 
Cbanges in assets and lialsiities: 
Accounts ncdvafale 
Fud in storage 
Matoials and siqjplies 
^Dpealy tax« a|)|dicaUe to subsequent yeais 
Eii^»on allowsioes 
R^KindBiUe federal iRO(»ne taxes 
RefiuidaUe state mo(»ae taxes 
E^«l»id expenses and odier 

Reg^dat(»y assete 
Accouirts payable 
Deferred revenue 
Accrued taxes 
Aocnud interest and odier 
Regulatcny lialHlities 
Ottwrlid)ilitte$ 

N(% cash provided by (^nating activ^es 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Electnc i^oit additions 
Proceeds fitnn sale of mariotabte seouities 
Pun^iases of inodketaMe securities 
PtoceecEs finom sate of (ransKmners 

Net cash used in investing activities 

FINANCING ACTIvrriES: 
Issuance of Setuw 2007 Notes 
tssuajxx <^SenK»' 2008 Notes 
Lc»n oc^nadcHi coste 
RepaynieiA of Senior 2006 Notes 
R^Kiym»it (^Senior 2007 Notes 
Reiiaynieitf of Senior 2008 Notes 
Proceeds from fine of credit 
Pa^nents <HI line of credit 
Oividrads on cowmoa ŝ ock 

Net cesli provided tv/tinaocuig activities 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALB4TS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ™ Beginnmg ot year 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — End of year 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES; 
Interertpoid 

Income taxes paid (recraved) — net 

N<m-cash electnc plant additions iiK:luded in accounts pEiyaUe at DeooiAia 

See nc^s to consolidated finuicial statonents. 

a»8 

$ 5.091,169 

56.946.744 
532.119 
364.509 

(300.000> 
(638.007) 

(6^7.947) 
11.692.717 
(2^59.883) 

(120,480) 
9 ^ 4 3 ^ 8 

-
849,123 

(232.007) 
15,532^70 

(27^5^27) 
(22Ji3S.520) 

2.080.981 
2.143.148 
4J054.237 

( 2 1 ; K 6 . 2 8 6 ) 

34,969.007 

61,943,905 

(435,783.038) 
24^86.124 

(76.871.172) 
300.000 

f488j068.086) 

_ 
350.000,000 

(3.250.954) 
(13.345.479) 
(9,463.928) 
(4.833.687) 

100.000.000 
(50,000,000) 
(5,500.000) 

363,605.952 

(62JJ18.229) 

107,694.495 

$ 45,176.266 

S 49379.338 

S (710,829) 

$ 63,225.054 

2007 

$ 5.14U81 

31.720.198 
404.083 
783,148 

(300.000) 
-

(7.470.340) 
(29.248.030) 

(M67.437) 
(255.120) 

22.275.022 
681 

107.851 
(52.036) 

(15.647.863) 
2.574,798 

10.700.986 
11,044.690 

652.983 
443.272 

23.772.209 
(1,433.900) 

54.046476 

(232.025.190) 
-
-

300.000 

a31.725,190) 

300.000,000 
-

(2.763,237) 
-

(12,603.856) 
(3397,953) 

160,000.000 
(210,000,000) 

(4.500,000) 

226.734.954 

49,056340 

58.638.155 

S 107.694.495 

$ 35392,737 

S 79^71 

$ 20^61.593 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEftSNTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31.2008 AND 2007 

I. ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Consolidated Financial Statements ~ The consolidated financial statem^ts include the accounts of 
Ohio Valley Electric Corporation (OVEC) and its wholly owned subsidiary, indiana-Kaitucky Electric 
Corporation (HCEC), coUectively, the ''Companies." All inta:con^>any transactions have been eliminated 
in consolidation. 

Oî ^anizfttion— The Conipanies own two genoiattng stati(His located in Ohio and Indiana with a 
ccffnbined electric production capability of approximately 2,256 megawatts. OVEC is owned by sev€a:al 
investor-owned utilities or utility holding companies and an affiliate of a generation and transmission rural 
electric cooperative. These «itities and tiieir afiiliates comprise the Sponsorii^ Companies. The 
Sponsoring Companies purchase power from OVEC according to the terms ofthe Iht̂ -Compsmy Powa-
AJereanent (ICPA), which in 2004 was extaided for an additional 20 years from March 13, 2006 to 
March 13,2026. Ap|MX)ximateiy 30% ofthe Companies* employees arc covered by a collective bargaining 
agreanettt that expires August 31,2011. 

Rate Regulation — The proceeds from the sale of power to the Sponsorit^ Om^anies are designed to be 
sufficient for QVEC to meet its iterating aq)enses and fixed costs, as well as cam a retum on equity 
before fedaal income taxes. In addition, the proceeds from powo- sales are designed to cover ddH 
amortization and intorest expense associated with financings. Hie Companies have continued and expect 
to continue to operate pursuant to the cost plus rate of return recovay provisions at least to March 13, 
2026, the date of t^mination of (he ICPA 

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 71, Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types 
of Regulation, provides that rate-regulated utilities account for and rqpOTt assets and liabiUties consistoit 
with the economic effect ofthe way in which rates are established, if the rates established are designed to 
recover the costs of providing the regulated service and it is probable that such rates can be charged and 
collected The Companies follow the accounting and rqxMting requirements of SFAS No. 71. C^lain 
expenses and credits subject to utility regulation CM: rale drfoniination normally reflected in income are 
deferred on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and are recognized in income as the related 
amounts are included in sovice rates and recovered from or r^mded to customers. 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCtiU. STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMIBER 31,2008 AND 2007 

The Companies' regulatory assets, liabilities, and amounts authorized for recovery through Spons<M* 
billing at December 31,2008 and 2007, were as follows: 

2008 2007 

R^ulatcny assets: 
Current a s s^ — income taxes bilkd>le to customers 

Other ass^: 
Asset redrenu^ costs 
Unrecogni2»d postemployment benefits 
Defened depreciation 
Pension benefits 

Total 

Total r«^Iatory assets 

Regulatory liabilities: 
Current liabilities: 
Dej^xed credit — EPA emission allowance proceeds 
Advance collection of interest 
Fuel related s^tlemmt 

Total 

Other liabilities: 
Postretiremait benefits 
Pension benefits 
Investment tax credits 
Net antitrust setdement 
Income taxes refundable to customers 

Total 

Total regulatory liabilities 

Regulatory Assets — R^uktory assets consist primarily of defened d^nreciation, asset retirement cost, 
and pension benefits. Defared depreciation is recovei:ed over the life ofthe debt that was used to fund the 
rdated plant additions. The Companies follow the sinking fimd d^eciation method for ratemaldng 
purposes, and the difference between straight-Une depreciation and the debt principal payments billed to 
customers is recorded as defared depreciation. With the exception of income taxes billable to customa^, 
which will be recovered during 2009, other regulatory assets are being recovered on a long-term basis. 

R^ulatory Liabilities^ The regulatory liabilities classified as currrot in the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheets r^resent emission allowance auction proceeds, a gain on a fud related 

$ 1,034,148 

14,642,782 
2,236,997 

27.047,875 
27.261,510 

71,189,164 

$72,223,312 

$ 1,577,431 
2.652,969 

4,230,400 

13,670,062 

3,393,146 
1,823,929 

47.070,877 

65,958,014 

$70,188,414 

$ 

16,102.473 
2,222,600 

38,643.429 

56,968.502 

$56,968,502 

$ 893,770 
1,884,902 
2,335.661 

5,114.333 

18,947.629 
16,050.249 
3,393,146 
1,823.929 

48,834,534 

89,049,487 

$94,163,820 

10 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FMANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2008 AND 2007 

settiemoit, and interest expense collected from customers in advance of ê q̂ ense recognition. These 
amounts outstanding will be credited to customa* bills during 2009. Other regulate^ liabilities ccHisist 
primarily of income taxes refundable to customers, postretirement benefits, and paision benefits. Income 
taxes refimdable to customers are credited to customer bills in the period when the related defared tax 
assets are realized. The Companies* current ratemaking policy recovers paision expoise in an amount 
equal to plan contributions and postr^irement boiefits in an amount eqiial to service cost As a result, 
rdated regulat<»7 liabilities are being oedited to customa- bills on a long-term basis. The remaining 
regidatory liabilities are awaiting credit to customa- bills in a future period that is yd to be dediomined. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents — For purposes of these statements, the Companies consider tonp^n îty 
cash investments to be cash equivalents since they are readily convertible into cash and have original 
maturities of less than three months. 

Electric Plant — Property additions and rqplaeonents are charged to utility plant accounts. Depreciation 
expense is recorded at the time property additions and replacements are billed to customers or at llie date 
the property is placed in service if tiie in-service date occurs subsequent to the customer billing. Customer 
iHllings for construction in progress are recorded as de£»Ted revenue-advances for constnictioa These 
amounts are closed to revenue at the time the rdated property is placed in service. Deferred depreciation, 
depreciaticm expense, and acounulated depreciation are recorded when, financed property additions and 
Fq>}acanents are recovered over a period of years through customer dd>t r^rement bilting. All 
d^reciable property will be fiilly billed and dq>rectated prior to the expiration ofthe ICPA Repairs of 
propoty are charged to maintenance expoise. 

Fael in Storage, Emission Allowftnees, and ftfat^a^b and Supplies — The Companies maintain coal, 
reagent, and oil inventories for use in the generation of dectricity and emission aUowance inventories for 
regulatory compliance purposes due to the generation of electricity. These inventories are valued at 
average cost. Materials and supplies consist primarily of replacemoit parts necessary to maintain the 
generating facilities and are valuod at average cost. 

Loi^-Terni Investments — Long-term investments consist of marketable securities that are held for the 
purpose of funding postr^irement beaiefits. These securities have been classified as trading securities. Due 
to tax limitations, the amounts held in this portfolio have not yet been transferred to the Vohintary 
Employee Beneficiary Association trusts (see Note 9). Long-term investoients primarily consist of 
municipal bonds and money maikd mutual fund investments. Net unrealized gains recognized during 
2008 on securities still held at the balance shed date wo-e $638,007. 

Unamortized Debt Expense — Unamortized debt expense relates to loan origination costs incurred to 
secure financing. These c< t̂$ are being amortized ova- the life ofthe related loans. 

Asset Retirement Obl^ations and Ass^ Retirement Costs — The Companies recc^nize the &ir value 
of legal obligations associated with the retirement (^ ronoval of long-lived assds at the time the 
obligations are incurred and can be reasonably estimated The initial recognition of this liabiUty is 
accompanied by a corresponding increase in depreciable elecbie plant. Subsequent to the initial 
recognition, the liability is adjusted for any revisions to the expected value of the retirement obligation 
(with ccnresponding adjustments to electric plant) and fbr accretion ofthe liability due to the passage of 
time. 

11 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLH>ATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE ^ A R S ENDED DECEMBER 31,2008 AND 2007 

These asset retirement obUgati<His are primarily related to obUgations associated with fiiture asbestos 
abatement at colain goierating statkins and certain plant closure costs. As of Decemba* 31, 2008 and 
2007, the Companies had a regulatoiy assd of $14.6 million and $16.1 million, respectively, related to 
assd rdirement obligations. 

$30,399,555 

1,823,973 

Balance—December 31, 2006 

Accretion 

Balance — Deconbw 31, 2007 

Accreticm 

Balance — Deconber 31, 2008 

32,223,528 

1,938,865 

$34,162,393 

The Companies do not recognize liabilities for assd rdirement obligations for which the &ir value cannot 
be reasonably estimated. The Companies have assd rdirement obligations associated with transmission 
assds and river structures at certain genoattng stations. However, the rdirement date for these assets 
caniu^ be ddormined; thoefore. the Mr value ofthe associated liability currently cannot be ̂ timated and 
no amounts are recognized in the consolidated fiimncial statements ha*ein. 

Use of Estimates — The prq>aTation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accq)ted in the United States of Ama*ica requires managonent to make estimates atid 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets 
and liabilitiies at the date of the consolidated financial statemoits and the repented amounts of revenues 
and expenses during the r^nnting period Actual results could diffo* from those estimates. 

2, RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Transactions with tiie Sponsoring Companies during 2008 and 2007 included the sale of ail generated 
power to thean, the piurhase of Arranged Power fix>m them and other utility systems in ordo: to med the 
Departmoit of Energy's powea* requironents. contract barging savices, railcar services, and minor 
transactions for services and nmterials. Hie Conî panies have Power Agreements with Louisville Gas and 
Electric Company, Duke Energy Ohio, hic, The Dayton Power and L i ^ Company, Kentucky Utilities 
Coinpany, Ohio Edison Coinpany, and American Electric Power Service Corporation as j^ent for the 
Am^ican Electric Power System Conipanies; and Transmission Service Agreements with Louisville Gas 
md Electric Coni|)any, Dvike Energy Ohio, Inc., Tlie Dayton Power and L ^ t Company, Hie Toledo 
Bdison Cotnpany, Ohio Edison Company, Kentucky Utilities Company, and American Electric Powo* 
Service Corporation as agoit for the American Electric Power System Companies. 

In Septanbo* 2006, the Companies sold two transformos and associated equipment to Duke Energy 
Ohio, Inc. for a t c ^ maximum purchase price of $3 million, which subject to the teanm of the ass^ 
purchase a^eemoit, is payable m equal annual installments ova* ten years. The purchase price is 
contii^ait on the perf<Hinance of the tracsfbrmers, and as such, no receivable has been recogtiized in the 
accompanying consolidated balatice sheets. In 2008, the Companies were infcffmed that one of the 
transformers &iled, and as such, no further payments fiom Didce Energy Ohio, Inc. are anticipated 

12 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2008 AND 2007 

At Deconber 31,2008 and 2007, balances due fix>m <»* to the Sponsoring Companies are as follows: 

2008 2007 

Accounts receivable 
Accounts payable 

$31,668,608 $23,136,138 
1,352,250 

Amoican Electric Power Company. Inc. and a subsidiary company owned 43.47% ofthe common stock 
of OVEC as of December 31, 2008. TTie following is a summary ofthe principal son/ices received from 
the American Electric Power S^vice Corporation as authorized by the Companies^ Boards of Durectois: 

2008 2007 

General services 
Specific projects 

Total 

$ 2,198,238 $ 2,473,834 
21,274,966 10,623,656 

$23,473,204 $ 13,097,490 

Goieral serwces consist of regular recurring <̂ >ea:ation and maintoiance services. Specific projects 
primarily represent nonrecurring plant construction projects and engineering studies, which are approved 
by the Companies' Boards of Directors. The sauces are provided in accordance with the so^ce 
agreement dated December 15, 1956, bdween the Companies and the American Electric Power Soidce 
Corporation 

3- COAL SUPPLY 

The Companies have coal supply agreements with catain nonaffiliated companies that expire at \^ious 
dates from the year 2009 through 2017. Pricing for coal under these contracts is sid>ject to contract 
provisions and adjustments. The Companies currently have aj^roximately 100% of their 2009 coal 
requironents undo- long-term agreements of one year or greater. 

4. INVENTORIES 

Invoitories, nd of reserves, at Decemba: 31, 2008 and 2007, consist ofthe following: 

Fuel in storage — at average cost 
Materials and supplies — at average cost 
Emission allowances 

Total inventories 

2008 

$52,220,614 
19,223,210 
2.244,126 

2007 

$63,913,331 
16.863,327 
11,787,964 

$73,687,950 $92,564.622 

13 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR T m YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2008 AND 2007 

5. ELECTRIC PLANT 

Electric plant at Decemba* 31, 2008 and 2007, consists ofthe following: 

2008 

hitangible 
Steam production plant 
Transmission plant 
Geooal plant 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Construction in progress 

Total electric plant 

$ 26,564 
1,152,457,582 

60,191,487 
24,954,040 

1,237,629,673 

907,307.285 

330,322.388 

767,848.855 

2007 

$ 26,564 
1,130,722,161 

72,211,888 
9,236,262 

1,212,196,875 

865.927,293 

346,269,582 

316,560,056 

$1,098,171,243 $ 662.829,638 

6. BORROWING ARRANGEMENTS AND NOTES 

OVEC has an unsecured bank revolving line of credit agreement with a borrowing linnt of $200 million 
as of Decemba: 31. 2008. The $200 millim line of credit has an expiration date of August 4, 2010. At 
Decemba- 31, 2008 and 2007, OVEC had borrowed $50 and $0 million, respectively, uiwier this line of 
credit. Interest expense rdated to line of credit borrowings was $255,699 in 2008 and $3,051,247 in 2007. 
During 2008 and 2007, OVEC incuned annual conunitment fees of $343,729 and $288,736, respectively, 
based on the borrowing limits ofthe line of credit. 

14 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2008 AND 2007 

7. LONG-TERM DEBT 

Ihi$ following amounts wa% outstandkî  at December 31. 2008 and 2007: 

Senior 2006 Notes due Felmiary 15.2026 
Senior 2007 Notes: 
Tranche A due February 15,2026 
Tranche B due February 15.2026 
Tranche C due February 15,2026 

Sailor 2008 Notes: 
Tranche A due February 15,2026 
Tranche B due February 15.2026 
Tranche C due February 15,2026 

Total debt 

Current portion of long-term debt 

Total long-term debt 

IntM^dSt 
Rate 

5.80 % 

5.90 
5.90 
5.90 

5.92 
6.71 
6.71 

2008 

$ 413,013.876 

190,703.342 
48,027,572 
48,407,206 

48,780,045 
147,157,899 
149,228.369 

1,045,318,309 

35,453,528 

$1,009,864,781 

3 ^ 7 

$426,359,355 

196,990,760 
49,611,288 
50,000,000 

-

722,961,403 

22,809.408 

$700,151,995 

During 2007, OVEC issued $300 million unsecured senior notes (Soiior 2007 Notes) in private 
placonents in three tranches. The $200 million Tranche A notes were issued in June 2007, the $50 million 
Tranche B notes were issued in September 2007, and the $50 miUion Tranche C notes were issued in 
December 2007. 

During 2008, OVEC issued $350 million unsecured senior notes (Senior 2008 Notes) in private 
placements in three tranches. The $50mimon Tranche A notes wore issued in March 2008. the 
$150 million Tranche B notes were issued in June 2008, and the $150 million Tranche C notes wa*e 
Issued in August 2008. 

The annual maturities of long-term dd>t as of December 31.2008, are as follows: 

2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014-2026 

Total 

$ 35,453,528 
37,642,055 
39,966,243 
42,404,535 
45,055,902 

844,796,046 

$1,045,318,309 

15 



OHiO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2008 AND 2007 

8. INCOME TAXES 

OVEC and IKEC file a consolidated federal income tax return. The effective tax rate varied from tiie 
statut<M:y fedaal income tax rate due to differences bdween the book and tax treatment of various 
transactions as follows: 

Incc»ne tax expense at 35% statutory rate 
State income taxes nd of federal benefit 
Temporary differences flowed tiirough to customer bills 
Pomanent differences 

2008 

$ 2,140,093 
66,042 

(1,218,762) 
36,008 

2007 

$ 2.117,079 
53,707 

(1.274,392) 
11.022 

Income tax provision 

Effective tax rate 

Components ofthe income tax provision were as follows: 

Cmrait income tax expense 
Defeared income tax expense 

Total income tax provision 

$ 1,023.381 

16-7 % 

2008 

$ 977.761 
45,620 

2007 

$125,036 
782,380 

$1.023.381 $907,416 

OVEC and IKEC record deferred tax assds and liabilities based on diffa:ences bdweoi book and tax 
basis of assds and liabiUties measured using the oiacted tax rates and taws that witl be in effect when the 
differences are expected to rcvo-se. Defared tax assets and liabilities are adjusted fw changes in tax rates. 
The deferred tax assets recorded in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets consist primarily ofthe 
nd deferred taxes on depreciation, postretirement boiefits oblt^tion, net c^ierating loss carryforwards, 
assd retirement obligations, r^;ulatory assds and regulatory liabilities. 

To the extent that the Companies have not reflectoi credits in customer billings for deferred tax assets, 
they Imve recorded a regulatory liability representing income taxes refundable to customers under the 
applicable agreanents among tiie parties. The liability was $47,070,877 at Decanba-31, 2008, and 
$48,834,534 at December 31,2007. 

16 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2008 A m 2007 

Deferred income tax assets (liabiUties) consisted oftiie following at December 31, 2008 and 2007: 

2008 2007 

Defared tax assds: 
Deferred revenue — advances for construction 
Federal nd operating loss carryfcxrwards 
State nd operating k^s carryforwards 
AMT credit canyfi»rwards 
Postretironent benefit obligation 
Paision liability 
Postemployment boiefit obligation 
Asset retiranent obli^itions 
Miscellaneous accruals 
ReguktOTy liability—postretiFemoit boiefits 
Regulatory liability — investment tax credits 
Regulatory liability — nd antitrust settloncnt 
Regulatory liability — income taxes refundable to customers 

Total deferred tax assets 

Detoed tax liabilities: 
R^iulatoty assd — income taxes billable to customa:s 
Prepaid expoises 
Electric plant 
Regulatory assd — paision benefits 
Regulatory asset — unrecognized postanployment benefits 
R^^tory assd — assd retiranait costs 

Total defened tax liabiUties 

Deferred income tax assets (liabiUties) 

9.619,159 
4.456,189 

39,212 
2.532,919 

20.445,933 
9.832,499 

806,825 
12,321,464 
2,649,351 
4,930,427 
1,223,817 

657,843 
16,977.211 

86,492.849 

(361,952) 
(582.702) 

(21,120.348) 
(9.832,499) 

(806,825) 
(5,281,261) 

8.942,781 
22,341.256 

273,971 
1,505,920 

13,374.669 
10,113,109 

808,337 
11,719,375 
2,834,718 
6.891,063 
1,234,053 

663,345 
17,621,791 

98,324,388 

(576.140) 
(34.610,360) 
(5.837,815) 

(808,337) 
(5.856,308) 

(37,985,587) (47,688.960) 

$ 48,507,262 $ 50,635.428 

The Companies had federal income tax net operating loss carryforwards (NOLs) of $12.7 million as of 
December 31, 2008. These federal income tax NOLs result in part fiom accelerated depreciation methods 
for property, plant and equipment for income tax reporting purposes. The Companies also have altonative 
minimum tax (AMT) credit carryforwards of approximatdy $2.5 milUon. which are not limited by 
expiration dates. Management poio<UcaUy assesses the need for a valuation allowance on defored tax 
assets. As of Decembo 31. 2008 and 2007, management beUeves that reaUzation of the Companies' 
deferred tax assets is more likely than not. 

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Intopretation No. 48 to clarify the 
accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprisers financial statements in 
accordance with Statement No. 109. Intapretation No. 48 addresses the ddermination of whether the tax 
benefits claimed or expected to be claimed on a tax retum should be recorded in the financial statements. 
Under Intoprdation No. 48. the Companies may recognize the tax benefit fixnn an uncotain tax position 
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only if it is more likely than not that the tax position wiU be sustained on ^camination by the taxing 
authorities, based on the technical moits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in the financial 
statonoLts fiom such a position are measiued based on ti^ largest benefit that has a greata* than fifty 
pocent likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlanent. Upon adcUtion of FIN 48, the Companies 
have not identified any uncertain tax positions. 

The Companies file income tax returns with the Intonal Revenue Service and the stat^ of Ohio, Indiana 
and the Commonwealth of Kentucky. The Companies are no longo subjed to federal tax exanunations 
for tax years 2004 and eariier. The Companies are no longo subject to states of Ohio and Indiana tax 
examinations for tax years 2004 and e^Uer. The Companies are no longo subject to tiie Commonwealth 
of Kentucky ecaminations for tax years 2003 and earUo. 

9. PENSION PLAN, OTEDER POSTRETIREMENT AND POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

Hie Conyianies have a noncontributory qualified defined boiefit pension plan (the Poision Plan) covering 
substantiaUy aU of their en^loyees. Tbs benefits are based on years of service and each onployee's 
bluest consecutive 36-month compensation poiod. Employees are vested in the Pension Plan after five 
years of service with the Companies. 

Funding for the Pension Plan is based on actuariaUy ddermined ccmtributicms. the maximum of which is 
generally the amount deductible for income tax purpcKies and the minimum being that required by the 
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISAX as amended The fUU cost of the pension 
benefits and related obUgations has been allocated to OVEC and IKEC in the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements. The allocated amounts r^resent approximately a 54% and 46% spUt for OVEC and 
IKEC, respedively, as of Decembo 31, 2008 and 2007. The Pension Plan's assets consist of an insmBuce 
contract and investments in equity and debt securities. In the following disclosures, the insurance contrad 
is treated as a debt security because its long-torn yield is tied to the debt markds. 

In addition to the Pension Plan, the Companies provide certain heaUh care and Ufe insunuice benefits 
(Otho Postrdirement Boiefits) for idired employees. SubstantiaUy aU of the Companies' employees 
become eligible for these benefits if they reach retirement age while working for the Companies. These 
and simUar benefits for active employees are provided through employo funding and insurance policies. 
In Decembo 2004, the Companies estabUshed Voluntary Employee Boieficiary Association (VEBA) 
trusts. The main objectives of the VEBA trusts are to maintain tiic purchasing powo of the current assets 
and all fiiture contributions, to have the abiUty to pay all beaiefits and e}q>aise obUgations when due and to 
achieve a "fimding cushion" to maximize return within prudent levels of risk. The investment horizon for 
the Pension Plan and VEBA trusts is greato than five years and the strat^c assd aUocation is based oa a 
long-term pospective. 
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Projected Poision Pkn and Otho 
Decembo 31.2008 and 2007; 

Postretirement Benefits obUgations and fimded status as of 

duuige in projected benefit oU^^tion: 
fVpjected beneft obfigatioii—begtnoing ofyear 
Servioeoost 
iBteFfiStCOSt 

Plaa pattieJiiants' coatnbntions 
eenc^poid 
Hct)u:tuarial (gain) loss 
M«licaiesubsic^ 
Sxpeises paid fiom assets 

Pnojected benefit obHgation — end of year 

Cliange in fiur vakie of plan assets: 
fair value of pba assets—begmniiig of year 
Actual return oa pbm assets 
^penses paid fiom assets 
Smpkyyer contributions 
Plan participBnls'oontribotions 
Medicare subsidy 
Sene^paid 

Fab-value of plan assets — end of year 

Funded (underfiindfid) status — end ofyear 

Pantkm 
Plan 

39W 

$ IS3,972;0I4 
3,899,052 
9,799,772 

-
(7.755,609) 
9.056458 

. 
(45200) 

168,926,587 

170.022,263 
(26.056377) 

(45,200) 
5.500,000 

. 
-

(7,7S5;609) 

141jS65j077 

$(27,261,510) 

3007 

S 16I,065>»7 
4221^50 
9;243320 

. 
(7.499,086) 

(13,018,717) 
, 

(40,800) 

153.972,014 

169.811,906 
1,750>43 

(40,800) 
6.000,000 

. 
_ 

(7,499,086) 

170;022,263 

$ 16,050,249 

OaierPostrstireinant 
Benams 

2008 

S 97,431/148 
2,781.098 
6,173^680 

613383 
(3.286320) 
1.242^1 

. 
-

104,956,170 

60.656332 
(728313) 

-
5,171,937 

613383 
-

(3^86320) 

62,427,019 

5(42,529,150 

2007 

S 102341,624 
3219,492 
5355237 

585,570 
(3279279) 

(11.761,744) 
ZICS** 

-

97.431,448 

55395.876 
2.760456 

-
4,923,161 

585370 
270348 

(3^79^79) 

60,656332 

$ (36,774.916) 

On Decembo 8. 2003, the Presidoit of the United States of Amoica signed into law the Medicare 
Prescripfion Dn^ Improvement and Modonization Act of 2003 (the Act). The Act introduced a 
prescription drug benefit to r^ees as well as a federal subsidy to sponsors of r ^ e e health care benefit 
plaits ^ t provide a prescription drug benefit that is actuariaUy equivalent to the benefit provided by 
Medicare. The Conipanies believe that the coverage for prescription drugs is at least actuarially equivalent 
to the benefits providol by Medicare for most curroit retirees because Uie benefits for that ^xHip 
substantially exceed (be boiefits provided by Medicare, thoeby allowing the Companies to qualify for tiie 
subsidy. The Companieŝ  employo contributions for Otho Postretirement Benefits in the above table are 
net of subsidies received of $0 and $270,548 for 2008 and 2007, respectively. The Companies have 
accounted for the subsidy as a reduction of the benefit obligation ddailed in the above table. The benefit 
obligation was reduced by approximately $14.2 and $11.3 million as of Decembo 31,2008 and 2007. 

The accumukted benefit obligation for the Pension Plan was $144,698,788 and $131,992,635 at 
Decembo 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. 

Components of Net Periodic B^efit Cost — The Companies record the expected cost of Otho 
Postrdirement Benefits ovo the sovice period during which such benefits are earned. 

Pension expense is recognized as amounts are contributed to the Poision Plan and billed to customos. 
The accumulated dififoence bOween recorded pension expoise and the yearly n^ periodic poision 
expense as calculated undo SFAS No. 87, Employers' Accounting ft}r Pensions, is billable as a cost of 
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operations undo the ICPA when contributed to the pension fimd. This accumulated diffoence has been 
recc»:ded as a regulatory ass^ m the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. 

Service cost 
Interest cost 
Expected retum on plan assets 
Amortization of prior service cost 
Recognized actuarial loss 

Net periodic benefit cost 

Plan 
2008 

S 3,899.052 
9,799,772 

(11.049.029) 
531.437 

% 3.181.232 

2007 

$ 4.221,650 
9,243.320 

(11.668332) 
531.437 

$ 2328,075 

BQnmtS 
2008 

$ 2.781.098 
6.173.680 

(2.880.712) 
(379.000) 
(263.945) 

$ 5.431.121 

$ 3,219,492 
5,855.237 

(2.631,976) 
(379.000) 

126.175 

$ 6.189.928 

Pension and odter postr^temenc benefits 
expense recognized in the consolidated 
statement of income artd retained earnings 
and billed to sponsoring ccmipanies inid^ 
the ICPA $ 5^00,000 $ 6,000.000 $ 3,260,000 $ 3,219,492 

Pension Plan and Other Postretirement Benefit Assomptioas— Actuarial assumptions used to 
detomine benefit obligations at Decembo 31,2008 and 2007, woe as fisllows: 

Pension 
Plan 

Discount rate 
Rate of compensation inoease 

2008 

6.10 % 
4.00 

2007 

6.50 % 
4.00 

Other 
Postretirement 

Benefits 
2008 

5.90 % 
4,00 

2007 

4.00 

Actuarial assumptions used to detomine net periodic benefit cost for the years ended Decembo 31. 2008 
and 2007, were as follows: 

Pension 
Plan 

Discoimt rate 
Expected long-term return on plan assets 
Rate of compensation increase 

2008 

6.50 % 
6.50 
4.00 

2007 

5.90 % 
7,00 
4,00 

Other 
Postretirement 

Benefits 
2008 

4,70 
4,00 

2007 

5.90 % 
4.70 
4.00 

In selecting the expected long-torn rate of return on assets, the Con^janies considoed the avoage rate of 
eamings expected on the fimds mvested or to be invested to provide for plan benefits. This included 
considoing the Pension Plan and VEBA trusts' asset allocation, as well as the target asset allocations for 
the fiiture, and the expected rdums likely to be eamed ovo the Ufe ofthe Poision Pkn and the VEBAs. 
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Assumed health care cost trend rates at Deconbo 31,2008 and 2007, were as follows: 

Health care trend rate assumed &T next year—participants under 65 
Heaidi care trend rate assioned for next year—participaittsover6S 
Rate to v^iidi the cost trend rate is assuined to decline (die tiltimate tread tate)—pvttcipants under 65 
jRide to which the cost trend rate is assumed to decfioe (the ultimate trend rate)—participants over 65 
Year diat flte rate readbes die ultimate tnad rate 

aooa 2007 

8.00 % 9.00 % 
9.50 1U29 
5.00 S,00 
5.00 5.00 
2015 2012 

Assumed health care cost troid rates have a significant effect on the amounts rqxjrted fw the health catc 
plans. A one'̂ >oicentage-point change in assumed healtji care cost trend rates would have the following 
effects: 

One-Peicentage One-Percentage 
Point Increase Point Decrease 

Effect on total service and interest cost 
Effect on postreAiremoit benefit obligation 

$ 1,553.985 
16,334,303 

$ (1,222,418) 
(13,014,742) 

Pensloa Plan and Other Postretirement Benefit A s s ^ — The asset aUocation for the Poision Plan and 
VEBA trusts at Decembo 31,2008 and 2007, by asset category was as follows: 

Asset category: 
Equity securities 
Debt securities 

Pension Plan 
2008 2007 

24 % 31 % 
76 69 

VEBAT 
2008 

24 % 
76 

rusts 
2007 

- % 
100 

The target asset allocation for the Pension Plan is 30% equity securities and 70% c^t securities and for 
the VEBA trust is 40% equity securities and 60% debt securities. 

Pension Plan and Other P^strethrement Benefit Contributions — Tbe Con^ianies expect to contribute 
$5,700,000 to flieir Pension Plan and $6,227,701 to their Otho Postr^ironent Benefits plan b 2009. 
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Pension 
Plan 

8,190,118 
8,563.310 
8,860,448 
9,258.537 
9,646383 

57,038,752 

With 
Medicare 
Subskly 

$ 4,042,701 
4,454,986 
4,797,783 
5,136,259 
5.403,058 

32,929,845 

Without 
Medicare 
Sut>sidy 

$ 4,388.179 
4,833,964 
5,211,111 
5,587,667 
5,892,674 

35,939,277 
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Estimated Futore Benefit Payments — The foUowing boiefit payments, which reflect expected future 
sovice, as appropriate, are expected to be paid: 

_ Other PostrstJrmnent Benefits 

Yeare Ending 
December 31 

2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
Five years thereafto 

^stemployment Benefits— The Con^)anies follow SFAS No. 112, Employers* Accounting for 
Postemployment Benefits, and accme the estimated cost of benefits provided to fcomo or inactive 
employees afto employment but befwe retironent, Sudi benefits include, but are not limited to, salary 
continuations, supplemental unemployment, sevoance, disability (including workos* compensation), job 
training, coimseling, and continuation of benefits, such as health care and life insurance coverage. The 
cost of such benefits and related obligations has been aUocated to OVEC and IKEC in the accompanying 
consoUdated financial statonoits. The allocated amounts represent aiqiroximately a 42% and 58% split 
between OVEC and IKEC, respectively, as of Decembo 31, 2008, and approximately a 40% and 60% 
split between OVEC and IKEC, respectively, as of Decembo 31, 2007. Tlie liability is offeet with a 
corresponding regulatory assd: and represents unrecognized postonployment benefits billable in the future 
to customers. The accmed cost of such benefits was $2,236,997 and $2,222,600 at Decembo 31, 2008 
and 2007, respectively. 

Defined Contribution ^ a n — The Companies have a trustee-defined contribution supplemental pension 
and savings plan that includes 401(k) features and is available to employees who have met etigibility 
requirements. In 2007, the Companies' contributions to the savings plan woe made in amounts equal to 
50% of the employee-participants' contributions up to 6% of total compensation. In January 2008, die 
Companies' contributions to the savi i^ pkn woe changed to amounts equal to 100% ofthe first 1% and 
50% of tbe next 5% of en^loyee-participants* contributions based î Km total compensation. Boiefits to 
participating employees are based solely upon amounts contributed to the participants' accounts and 
investment eanungs. By its nature, the plan is fully fimded at all times. The employo contributions for 
2008 and 2007 were $1,634,334 and $1,278,249, respectively. 

Adoption of SFAS No. 158 — Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits — The Companies adc^ted 
SFAS No. 158, Employers' Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, 
effective Decembo 31. 2007. SFAS No. 158 requires onployos to fuUy recognize the obligjitions 
associated with defined benefit pension plans and otho postretiremoit plans, which include r^iree 
heaUhcare. in their balance sheets. Previous standards required an enq>loyo to disclose the complete 
funded status of its plan only in the notes to the financial statements and provided that an employo delay 
recognition of cotain changes in plan assets and obUgations tiiat affected the costs of providing benefits 
resulting in an asset or liabiUty that ofien diffoed from the plan's funded status. SFAS No. 158 requires a 
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defined benefit pension or postretirement plan spcmsor to recognize in its statemoit of financial position 
an asset fin* a plan's ovofunded status or a liability for the plan's underfimded status. The effects of the 
Companies' adoption of SFAS No. 158 woe as foUows: 

Poision asset 
Postretiremoit benefits obligation 

Befbre 
Appllcallon of 
SFAS No. 158 

$ 3,671,925 
(40,299,341) 

Adjustments 

$12,378,324 
3,524.425 

Aftw 
Application of 
SFAS No. 158 

$ 16.050.249 
(36.774.916) 

The adjustmoits dialled in the above table represent the imrecogmzed actuarial g îns and unrecognized 
prior soxdce cost for the plans as of December 31, 2007. These amounts woe recorded as additions to 
regulatory liabilities (see Note 1). 

10, ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS 

Titie IV of the 1990 Clean Air Act Amoidmoits required the Compames to reduce sulfur dioxide (S02) 
emissions in two phases: Phase I in 1995 and Phase n in 2000. The Companies selected a fuel switching 
strat^y to comply with the emission reduction requironoits. The Companies also purchased additional 
S02 aUowances. The cost of these purchased allowances was inventoried and included on an average cost 
basis in the cost of fuel consumed when used The cost of unused allowances at Deconbo 31, 2008 and 
2007, was $2,244,126 and $ U ,787,964, respectively. 

Titie IV of the 1990 Clean Air Act Amendments also required the Companies to comply with a nitr<^oi 
oxides (NOx) emission rate limit of 0.84 Ib/mmBtu in 2000. The Companies installed ovofire air systons 
on all eleven units at the plants to comply with this Umit. The total capital cost ofthe elevoi ovofire air 
systems was approximately $8.2 million. 

During 2002 and 2003, Ohio and Indiana finaUzed respective NOx State Implementation Plan (SIP) Call 
regulations that required furtiio significant NOx onission reductions for coal-buming powo plants during 
the ozone control period (May through Sq>tembo). The Companies instaUed selective catalytic reduction 
(SCR) systems on ten of its eleven units to comply witii these rules. The total capital cost of the ten SCR 
systems was approximately $355 miUion. 

On March 10, 2005. tiie U.S. EPA signed tiie Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAIR) fhaX wiU require 
significant fiirtho reductions of S02 and NOx emissions fiom coal-bumii]^ powo plants. On March 15. 
2005. die US. EPA also signed the Clean Air Mercury Ride (CAMR) that wiU require significant mocury 
emission reductions for coal-buming powo plants. These onission reductions wiU be required in two 
phases: 2009 and 2015 for NOx; 2010 and 2015 fw S02; and 2010 and 2018 for mercury. Ohio and 
Indiana also subsequently finaUzed their respective versions of CAIR and CAMR. In response, the 
Companies detomir^ that it would be necessary to uistaU fiue gas desulfurization (FGD) systems at both 
plants to comply with these new rules and have since beoi conducting the necessaiy engineering, 
pomitting. and construction to install these new FGD systems. 

In FeJjTuaiy 2(K)8, tiie D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals issued a decision which vacated tiie federal CAMR 
and remanded the rule to the U.S. EPA with a detennination that the rule be rewrittoi undo the maximum 
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achievable control technologies (MACT) provision of Section 112(d) of the Clean Air Act A group of 
electric utilities and tiie U.S. EPA requested a leliearing of the decision, which was deaied by tiie court 
Following those denials, both the group of electric utilities and the U.S. EPA requested that the 
U.S. Supreme Court hear the case. Howevo, in Fd>ruary 2009, the U.S. EPA withdrew its request and the 
group of utilities' request was denied. These actions left tiie wiginal court decision in place, which 
vacated the fedoai CAMR and ronanded the rule to the U,S. EPA with a detennination that the rule be 
rewritten undo tiie MACT (Hovision of Section 112(d) oftiie Clean Air Act, 

In July 2008, tiie D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals issued a decision that vacated the federal CAIR and 
remanded the rule to tiie U.S. EPA In Sqptembo 2008, tiie U.S. EPA a group of electric utilities and 
otho parties filed petitions for rehearing. In December 2008, the D.C. Ckcuit Court of Appeals granted 
the U.S. S^A's petition and remanded the rule to tiie US. EPA without vacatur, allowing the fedoai 
CAIR to remain in effect while a new rule is developed and promulgated. 

hi Decembo 2008, the Compaiues Boards of Directors authorized a delay in construction ofthe FGD at 
the CUfty Credc Plant of at least 18 montiis due to economic uncertainty in the capital markets. 

In March 2009, the Board of Directors of OVEC authorized a delay in the anticqmted tie-in of tiie first 
three generating units to the Kygo Creek Plant's FGD syston pending an investigation into the stiiictural 
integrity of the two newly constnK t̂ed jet bubblmg reactors, which arc major components of tiie FGD 
system. Additional S02 aUowances will be purchased to operate the Clifty Credc and Kygo Creek 
genoatiug units to comply with the current oivironmental emission rules during the delays. The ciurent 
cost to complete the new Kygo Creek and Clifty Creek FGD systems and the associated iandfiUs is 
estimated not to exceed $1.33 biUion. 

11. DISCLOSURES ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

SFAS No. 107, Disclosures abotu Fair Value of Financial Instruments, requires disclosure ofthe fair 
value of cotain financial instruments. The estimates of feir value undo SFAS No. 107 require the 
application of broad assumi^ons and estimates. Accordingly, any actual exchange of such financial 
instruments could occur at values significantiy diffoent fix>m the amounts disclosed. As cash atid cash 
equivaloits, current receivables, current payables, and line of credit borrowii^s are aU short torn in 
nature, their carrying amounts approximate feir value. The feir values ofthe Souor Notes were estimated 
using discounted cash flow analyses based on current incremental borrowing rates for shnilar types of 
borrowing arrangements. 
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Hie fiur values and recorded values of tiie Senior Notes as of Decembo 31, 2008 and 2007, are as 
follows: 

2008 2007 

12. 

Senior 2006 Notes 
Senior 2007 Notes 
Senior 2008 Notes 

Total 

OPERATING LEASES 

Fair Value 

$365,930,295 
256.988,617 
324.385,533 

Recorded VSaiue 

$ 413,013,876 
287,138,120 
345.166,313 

Fair Value Recorded Value 

$420,070,000 
288.450,000 

$426,359,355 
296,602,048 

$947,304,445 $1.045,318,309 $708.520.000 $722,961.403 

OVEC has oitoed into operating leases to secure railcars for the transportation of coal in connection with 
tiie fuel switehing modifications at the OVEC and the IKEC genoating stations. OVEC has railcar lease 
agreonents tiiat extoid to as long as Deconbo 31, 2025, with options to exit the leases undo certain 
conditions. 

Future minimum lease paymoits for operating leases at Deconbo 31,2008, are as foUows; 

Years Ending 
December 31 

2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
Thereafter 

Total fiiture minimum lease paymoits 

$ 4,726,988 
4.758,188 
3356,810 
3,266,568 
3,254.088 

25,886,781 

$45,249,423 

The annual lease cost incurred was $4,761,224 and $4,767,379 for 2008 and 2007, respectively. 

13. COMMTTMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

The Compames are party in or may be affected by various matters undo litigation. Management beUeves 
that the ultimate outcome of these matters wiU not have a significant advose effect on eitho the 
Companies' future results of opoation or financial position. 

14. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (SFAS 157), clarifies 
the definition of feir value, establishes a framework for measuring feir value, and expands the disclosures 
on feir value measuremoits. The Companies have adopted SFAS 157 and FASB Staff Positicm FAS 
No. 157-2, Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157, effective January 1, 2008. The adoption of 
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SFAS 157 Ibr financial instruments as required at January 1, 2008 did not have a matoial effect on the 
Companies' consoUdated financial statements; however, the Companies are required to provide additional 
disclosure as part ofthe Conq>anies' consolidated financial statonents. As of Decembo 31, 2008, the 
Companies have not adc^ted SFAS 157 for non-financial assets and non-financial Uabilities. Howevo, 
the provisions associated with ncm-financial assets and non-financial tiabUities will be included in the 
disclosures in tiie Companies' 2009 consoUdated financial statemoits, as required, and wUl not have a 
matoial effect on tiie Conpmies' consolidated financial statements. 

On Octobo 10, 2008, tiie FASB issued Staff Position FAS No. 157-3, Fair Value Measurements (FSP 
FAS 157-3), which clarifies tiie apphcation of SFAS 157 in an inactive market and provides an example 
to demonstrate how the feir value of a financial asset is determined whoi the market for that financial 
ass^ is inactive. FSP FAS 157-3 was effective upon issuance, including pri<M: periods for which financial 
statements had not been issued. The adoption of this standard as of Deconbo 31, 2008 did not have a 
material impact on the Companies' consolidated financial statemoits. 

SFAS 157 establishes a three-tio feir value Moarchy, which iHioritizes the ii^uts used in measuring feir 
value. These tiers include: Level 1, defined as observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets; 
I^vel 2, dsMed as inputs otho than quoted prices in active mark^ that are eitho directly or uidirectiy 
observable; and Level 3, defined as unobservable inputs in which Uttie or no market data exists, thoefore 
reqiuring an entity to develop its own assumptions. 

As of Decembo 31, 2008, the Companies held certain assets that are required to be measwed at feir value 
on a recurring basis. These consist of investments recorded within cash and cash equivalents. The 
investments consist of money maricet mutual fimds and dd>t sonirities. Changes in the obsoved trading 
prices and Uquidity of money maricet fimds are monitored as additional sî >port for detomining fair value, 
and losses are recorded in eamings if feir value fells below recorded cost. 

Ass^ measured at feir value on a recurring basis subject to the disclosure requironents of SFAS 157 at 
Decembo 31,2008, woe as follows: 

Fair Value Measurements at 
Reportif^ Date Using 

Quoted Prices 
In Active 

for Market 
Identical Assets 

(Level 1) 

Significant 
Other 

Oteervabie 
Inputs 

(Level 2) 

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level 3) 

Cash equivalents 

Marketable securities 

15. NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 

$45.118,305 $. 

$53,609,545 $ 

hi February 2007, tiie FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Finmwial Assets and 
Financial Liabilities inchtding an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115, This statement permits oitities 
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OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2008 AND 2007 

to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain otho items at feir value. The election is 
made on an instrument-by-instrumoit basis and is irrevocable. If tiie feir vahie <^on is elected for an 
uistrumoit. SFAS 159 specifies that aU subsequoit changes in feir value for that instrument shaU be 
reported in eanungs. The c ĵjective of the pronouncement is to iminrove financial reporting by providing 
entities with the opportunity to mitigate volatilky in retorted earnings caused by measuring related a s s ^ 
aiui liabUities differently without having to apply conqtlex hedge accounting provisions. This statement is 
effective as of the beginning of an entity's first fiscal year that begins aflo Novembo 15, 2007, and was 
adopted by the Conq)anies on January 1, 2008, Thoe was no impact on the Con^nies' financial position 
and results of operations, because ti^ Companies made no feir value elections upon adoption. 

On Decembo 30, 2008, tiie FASB issued FSP FAS 132(R)-1, which amoids Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 132(R), Employers* Dischsttres About Pensions and Other Postretirement 
Benefits — an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, cmd 106, to require more detailed disclosures 
about employerŝ  plan assets, includii^ en^loyos' invesbnent strat^ies, major categories of plan assets, 
concentrations of risk within plan assets, and valuation techniques used to measure the feir value of plan 
assets. The disclosure requirements of FSP FAS 132(R)-1 wiU be effective for tiw Conipanies for the year 
ended Deconbo 31,2009. 

* « * • * * 
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OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of 
Ohio Valley Electric Ccffporaticm: 

We have audited tiie accompanying consoUdated balance sheets of Ohio VaUey Electric Corporation and 
subsidiary company (the Compames). as of Decembo 31, 2008 and 2007, and tlie related consolidated 
statements of income and retamed eamings and cash fiows for the years then ended. These consoUdated 
financial statements are the responsibUity of the Companies* management. Our responsibiUty is to repress an 
opinion on tiiese consolidated financial statemoits based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generaUy accqited in the Umted States of 
Amoica. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
wh^ho the consoUdated financial statonents are free of matoial misstatonent An audit mcludes consideration 
of intemal control ovo financial repenting as a basis fi>r designing audit [»XKedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of eTqiressing an c^inion on the effectiveness oftiie Con^)anies' intemal 
control ovo financial rqiorting. Accordin^y, we express no such opmion. An audit also includes examining, on 
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and d^losures in the consoUdated financial statements, assessing 
tiie accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as weU as e^ l̂uating the overaU 
financial statement presentation. We beUeve that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statemoits present feirly. in all material respects, tiie financial 
position oftiie Companies as of Decembo 31, 2008 and 2007, and the results of their opoations and their cash 
flows for the years tiien ended in conformity witii accounting principles genoaUy accepted in the United States 
of Amoica, 

As discussed in Note 9 to the consoUdated financial statemoits, the Conq^ames changed their method of 
accounting for defined benefit potion and otho postretironent plans in 2007. 

Deloitte & Touche LLP 

" i ^ ^ i ^ i x ^ ^ / O M C W L . L P 

Cincmnatî  Ohio 
March 27,2009 
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OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

OVEC PERFORMANCE—A 5-YEAR COMPARISON 

Net Generation (MWh) 

Energy Sales (MWh) to: 
DOE 
Sponsors 

Maximimi Demand (MW) by: 
noE 
Sponsors 

Wei^ted Avc»-age 
Demand (MW): 
DOE Opft^ing Level 

Power Costs to: 
DOE 
Sponsors 

Avera^ Price (MWh); 
DC^ 
Sponsors 

Operating Rev^ues 

Operating Expenses 

Cost of Fuel Consumed 

Taxes (federal, state, and local) 

Payroll 

Fuel Bumed (tons) 

Heat Rate (Btu perkWh, 
net generation) 

Unit Cost of Fuel Bumed 
(permmBtu) 

Unit Availability (perc^it) 

Powff Use Factor (percent) 

Employees {ysar-ead) 

2i08 

15,260,029 

276,369 
15,026,497 

42 
2,216 

31 

$18,539,154 
$605,354,979 

$68^70 
$40J86 

$621^13.000 

$566,798,000 

$340,213,000 

$10,808,000 

$53,694,000 

7,891,440 

10.236 

$2,18 

85J! 

96J9 

817 

2007 

15.109,836 

256,613 
14.918.727 

41 
2.233 

29 

$14^5.000 
S527,516,1KK) 

$56,915 
$35,359 

$531,362,000 

$494,808,000 

$300,666,000 

$9,898,000 

$49,977,000 

7.647397 

10.180 

$1.95 

85.0 

96.92 

747 

2006 

16.468.342 

246371 
16,776.777 

37 
2.300 

28 

$15,445,000 
$509,024,000 

$62,689 
$31,369 

$523,927,000 

$494,893,000 

$318,762,000 

$9,457,000 

$47,561,000 

7.820.516 

10,053 

$1.95 

88.8 

98-06 

748 

2005 

16.638.497 

251375 
16.2S4.716 

45 
2.291 

29 

$14320,000 
$458345.000 

$57,764 
$28,198 

$468346,000 

$442,420,000 

$287,093,000 

$7,735,000 

$46,447,000 

7,632357 

9,978 

$1.73 

88,0 

99.54 

749 

2004 

15,810.465 

267,944 
15.455.340 

46 
2.257 

30 

$9,696,000 
$377392,000 

$36,876 
$24,418 

$406,283,000 

$380,97^000 

$218,917,000 

$9,699,000 

$45396,000 

7310373 

10,076 

$1.37 

87.6 

97.19 

742 
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OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 
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Ohio Valley Electric Corporation 
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Annex 2 

Ohio Valley Electric Corporation 

And Subsidiary 

Indiana-Kentucky Electric Corporation 

Consolidating Balance Sheets-March 31,2009-Unaudited-and December 31,2008 
Consolidating Statements of Income and Retained Eamings Year 

to Date-March 31,2009 and 2008-Unaudited 
Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows Year to Date-March 31, 2009 and 2008—Unaudited 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 

AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEETS - MARCH 31.2009-UNAUDITED AND DTCEMBER 31,2008 

CONSOLIDATING STATEMEhfTS OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS 
YEAR TO DATE - MARCH 31.2009 AND 2008-UNAUDrrED 

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
YEAR TO DATE - MARCH 31.2009 AND 2008-UNAUDrrED 



OHIO VALLEY ELECIIUC OORPORATIQM 

AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

CONSOLmATTNG BALANCE SHEEFS - MARCH 31.2009-UNAUDrrED AND DECEMBER 31,2008 

CONSOLIDAUNG STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS 
YEAR TO DATC - MARCH 31,2009 AND 2008-UNAtJDrrED 

C<»ISOUDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
YEAR TO DATE - MARCH 31,2009 AND 2008-UNAUDrrED 

OFFICER'S CERTIFICATION 

A review ofthe affairs and activities of Ohio Valley Electric Corporation and its wholly-owned 

subsidiary. Indiana-Kentucky Electric Coiporadoo (the Conq}anks), during the quarters ended 

March 31.2009 and 2008, and Deceniber 31.2008 has been made under my supervision, and in my opmion, 

the unaudited financial statements for these periods present fiuily the financial conditions ofthe Compames 

as of March31,2009 and 2008, and December31.2008. anl the results of the operatiottS, titereof, 

in accordance with gmerally acc^ted accounting inlnciples consistently applied fluougbout the period. To the 

best of my kiiowledgB and bdicf, there has been no P o t a t i ^ Definilt Defeuh. or B v ^ 

by the Conq>anies and the Cosr^ames are in compliance with the covenents ofthe 

cinrem debt i^reements. 

y ^ Secretary anid Treasurer 
O W V A I X E Y ELECTRIC CORP(MUTK>N and 

INDIANA-KENTUCKY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
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Annex 3 

Ohio VaUey Electric Corporation 

And Subsidiary 

Indiana-Kentucky Electric Corporation 

Consolidating Balance Sheets-June 30,200^Unaudited-and December 31,2008 
Consolidating Statements of Income and Retained Eamings Year 

to Date-^June 30,2009 and 2008-Unaudited 
Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows Year to Date-June 30,2009 and 2008—Unaudited 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 

AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEETS - JUNE 30,2009-UNAUDITED AND DECEMBER 31,2008 

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS 
YEAR TO DATE - JUNE 30,2009 AND 2008-UNAUDITED 

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
YEAR TO DATE - JUNE 30,2009 AND 2008-UNAUDITED 



OHK) VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 

AND SUBSimARY COMPANY 

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEETS - nJNE 30,2009-UNAUDnBD AND DECEMBER 31.2008 

CONSOLIDATINO STATEMENrs OF INCOME AND RETAINH> EARNINGS 
YEAR TO DATE - JUNE 30,2009 AND 2008-liNAUDrrED 

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
YEAR TO DATE - JUNE 30,2009 AND 2008-UNAUDTrED 

OFFKER'S CERTIFICATION 

A revtew ofthe afGttrs and activities of Ohio Valley Electric Corpondion and its wholly-owned 

subadiary, Indiana-Kentucky Electric Corporation (tiie Companies), during the quarters ended 

June 30,2009 and 2008, and December 31,2008 has been made under my supervision, and in my opinion, 

tiie unaudited financial statements for these periods present fairly the financial conditions ofthe Companies 

as of June 30.2009 and 2008, luid Deconber 31,2008, and tiie results ofthe operations, thereof; 

is accordance with eenerally accepted accounting principles comstmtly applied Ihiougfaoat the period. To the 

best of my knowledge and bdief, there has been no Potential Default, De&ult, or Event of Default 

by tiie D)nq}%ii« wid the Companies are in conqiliance witii tiie covenmts of tiie 

current dd>t agreements. 

Secretary and Treasurer 
OHIOVALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION and 

ZNDIA'NA-ICENTUCKY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
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Appendix B 

The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. ("BTMU"), founded on August 25, 1919, is a 
Japanese banking corporation with its head office located in Tokyo, Japan. It is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc. With over 33,000 employees 
world-wide and 792 branches within Japan, BTMU is Japan's largest bank. BTMU is 
also one of the world's premier financial institutions and is considered one of the top 
banks in the world as measured by deposits and loan portfolio and one of the top 10 
banks in the world as measured by assets and market capitalization. 

In Japan, BTMU provides a wide range of retail, commercial, corporate and investment-
banking services through its network of local branches. Outside of Japan, BTMU also 
provides, through its network of overseas branches and agencies, a wide range of banking 
and related financial services. 

Financial statements for BTMU's fiscal year ended March 2009 have not yet been 
released by BTMU. BTMU has reported limited, unaudited income statement and 
balance sheet data in its MUFG Data Sheet for its fiscal year ended March 2009 as 
follows: total assets of J¥ 148,971.7 billion (US $1,518.6 billion) and deposits of 
J¥100,208.9 billion (US$1,021.5 billion). Net income (loss) for this same period was 
reported as (J¥ 366.3 billion (US $3.7 billion)). 

For BTMU's fiscal year ended March 2008, BTMU reported total assets of .^152,079.2 
billion (US $1,519.3 billion) and deposits of ^115,402.2 billion (US $1,152.9 billion). 
Net income (loss) for this same period equaled (J¥ 464.3 billion (US $4.64 billion)), 
compared to J¥ 449.9 billion (US $4.5 billion) for the same period the prior year. 

All amounts denominated in Japanese Yen above also reflect the United States dollar 
equivalent based upon exchange rates in effect as of corresponding reporting dates (i.e., 
as of March 31, 2009, 98.10 Japanese Yen (¥) equaled 1.0000 United States Dollar ($)), 
and as of March 31, 2008, 100,10 Japanese Yen Qf) equaled 1.0000 United States Dollar 
($)). 

BTMU will provide to anyone, upon written request, a copy of its most recent aimual 
report, as well as a copy of its most recent quarterly financial report. Requests should be 
directed to: The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd., 1251Avenue ofthe Americas, New 
York, NY, 10020. Attention: Utility Finance Group. This information is also available at 
www.bk.mufg.jp. 

The information conceming BTMU contained herein is fiimished solely to provide 
limited introductory information regarding BTMU and does not purport to be 
comprehensive. Such information is qualified in its entirety by the detailed infonnation 
appearing in the documents and financial statements referenced above. 

The delivery of this disclosure information by BTMU shall not create any implication 
that there has been no change in the affairs of BTMU since the date hereof, or that the 
information contained or referred to m this disclosure information is correct as of any 
time subsequent to its date. 

http://www.bk.mufg.jp


APPENDIX C 

PROPOSED FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL 

We have examined the transcript of proceedings (the "Transcript") relating to the 
issuance by the Ohio Air Quality Development Authority (the "Issuer") of $25,000,000 
aggregate principal amount of State of Ohio Air Quality Revenue Bonds (Ohio Valley Electric 
Corporation Project), Series 2009D (the "Bonds"). The Bonds are being issued for the purpose 
of making a loan to assist Ohio Valley Electric Corporation (the "Company") in the financing of 
a portion of the costs of acquiring, constmcting and installing certain solid waste disposal 
facilities comprising "air quality facilities" as defmed in Section 3706.01 ofthe Ohio Revised 
Code, as more particularly described in the Tmst Indenture dated as of August 1, 2009 (the 
"Indenture") between the Issuer and The Huntington National Bank, as tmstee (the "Tmstee"), 
and in the Loan Agreement dated as of August 1, 2009 (the "Agreemenf) between the Issuer 
and the Company. We have also examined executed counterparts ofthe Indenture and the Loan 
Agreement and a conformed copy of an executed Bond. 

Based on such examination, we are ofthe opinion that, under the law existing on the date 
of this opinion: 

1. The Bonds, the Indenture and the Agreement are legal, valid, binding and 
enforceable in accordance with their respective terms, except that the binding effect and 
enforceability thereof are subject to bankmptcy laws and other laws affectmg creditors' rights 
and to the exercise of judicial discretion. 

2. The Bonds constitute special obligations ofthe State of Ohio, and the principal of 
and interest and any premium on the Bonds and the purchase price tiiereof (collectively, "debt 
charges") are payable solely from the revenues and other moneys assigned by the Indenture to 
secure those payments. Those revenues and otiier moneys include the payments required to be 
made by the Company under its promissory note (the "Note") delivered to the Issuer, and 
irrevocably assigned by the Issuer to the Tmstee, all pursuant to the Agreement. The Bonds do 
not constitute a debt or pledge of the faith and credit of the Issuer or the State of Ohio or any 
political subdivision thereof, and the holders or owners thereof have no right to have taxes levied 
by tiie General Assembly ofthe State of Ohio or any political subdivision ofthe State of Ohio for 
the payment of debt charges. 

3. The interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes under Section 103(a) ofthe Intemal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), 
except interest on any Bond for any period during which it is held by a "substantial user" or a 
"related person" as those terms are used in Section 147(a) ofthe Code. Interest on the Bonds is 
not an item of tax preference under Section 57 of tiie Code for purposes of the altemative 
minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations. The interest on the Bonds, and any 
profit made on their sale, exchange or other disposition, are exempt from the Ohio personal 
income tax, the Ohio commercid activity tax, the net income base of the Ohio corporate 
franchise tax, and municipal, school district and joint economic development district income 
taxes in Ohio. We express no opinion as to any other tax consequences regardmg the Bonds. 
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Under the Code, interest on the Bonds is excluded from the calculation of a corporation's 
adjusted current eamings for purposes ofthe corporate alternative mmimum tax, but interest on 
the Bonds may be subject to a branch profits tax imposed on certain foreign corporations doing 
business in the United States and to a tax imposed on excess net passive income of certain S 
corporations. 

In giving the foregoing opinion, we have assumed and relied upon compliance with the 
covenants of the Issuer and the Company and the accuracy, which we have not independently 
verified, ofthe representations and certifications ofthe Issuer and ofthe Company contained in 
the Transcript. The accuracy of certain of those representations and certifications, and 
compliance by the Issuer and the Company with certain ofthose covenants, may be necessaiy for 
the interest on the Bonds to be and to remain excluded from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes. Failure to comply with certain requirements with respect to the Bonds (or with similar 
requirements with respect to certain other bonds issued by the Issuer substantially at the same 
time as the issuance of the Bonds) subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds could cause the 
interest on the Bonds to be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes 
retroactively to their date of issuance. We have also assumed for purposes of this opinion (i) the 
due authorization, execution and deUvery by, and the binding effect upon and enforceability 
against, the Trustee of the Indenture and (ii) the due authorization, execution and delivery by, 
and the binding effect upon and enforceability against, the Company ofthe Agreement and the 
Note. 

We express no opinion conceming the letter of credit issued by The Bank of Tokyo-
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd., acting through its New York Branch and delivered in connection with the 
issuance ofthe Bonds. 

Respectfully submitted, 
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NEW ISSUE—BOOK-ENTRY ONLY 

In the opinion of Squire, Sanders & Dempsey L.L.P., Bond Counsel, under existing law (i) assuming continuing compliance 
with certain covenants and the accuracy of certain representations, interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal 
income tax pujposes, except interest on any Bond for any period during which it is held by a "substantial user" or a "related person," 
as those terms are used in Sectton 147(a) of the Intemal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), (ii) interest on the Bonds is 
not an item of tax preference under Section 57 of the Code for purposes of the federal altemative minimum tax imposed on 
individuals and corporations and (iii) interest on, and any profit made on Uie sale, exchange or other disposition of, the Bonds are 
exempt from die Ohio personal income tax, die Ohio commercial activity tax, the net income base of the Ohio corporate franchise 
tax, and municipal, school district and joint economic development district income taxes in Ohio. See TAX EXEMPTION. 

$100,000,000 
Ohio Air Quality Development Authority 

State of Ohio 
Air Quality Revenue Bonds 

(Ohio Valley Electric Corporation Project), 
Series 2009E 

Interest Accrual Date: October 13,2009 Due: October 1,2019 

The Series 2009E Bonds (the "Bonds") are special obligations of the State of Ohio and issued by the Ohio Air Quality 
Development Authority (the "Issuer"). The Bonds will not constitute a debt, or a pledge ofthe faith and credit, of the Issuer, the State 
of Ohio or any political subdivision diereof, and the holders or owners of the Bonds will have no right to have taxes levied by the 
General Assembly of Ohio or any political subdivision of Ohio for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Bonds. The 
Bonds are payable solely from, and secured by a pledge of, the loan repayments under a note issued under the terms of a Loan 
Agreement (the "Loan Agreement") between the Issuer and 

OfflO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 

The Bonds will bear interest at the rate of 5.625% per annum beginning on October 13, 2009 until stated maturity. The Bonds 
will not be subject to optional redemption, but will be subject to extraordinary optional redemption and extraordinary mandatory 
redemption as described under THE BONDS—Redemption of Bonds. 

The Bonds will be issued pursuant to an Indenture of Trust (the "Indenture**), between the Issuer and The Huntington National 
Bank, as trustee (the "Tmstee"). The Bonds will be issued as fully registered bonds and will be registered initially in the name of 
Cede & Co., as registered owner and nominee for The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC"). DTC acts as a 
securities depository for the Bonds. The Bonds will be issued in denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. Except 
under the limited circumstances described herein. Beneficial Owners of book-entry interests in the Bonds will not receive certificates 
representing their ownership interests. Payments of principal of and interest on the Bonds (payable April 1 and October 1, 
commencing April 1, 2010) will be made through DTC and disbursements of such payments to Beneficial Owners will be the 
responsibility of DTC and its Participants. See THE BONDS—Book-Entry Only System herein. 

PRICE: 100% 

This cover page contains limited information for quick reference only and is not a summary of this Official Statement. Investors 
should read the entire Official Statement to obtain information essential to the making of an informed investment decision. 

The Bonds are offered, subject to prior sale, when, as and if issued and received by the Underwriters, subject to the approval of 
their validity by Squire, Sanders & Dempsey L.L.P., Cleveland, Ohio, Bond Counsel, as descril^d herein, and certain other 
conditions. Certain legal matters will be passed on for the Underwriters by their counsel, Chapman and Cutler LLP, Chicago, Illinois, 
and for Ohio Valley Elecu-ic Corporation (the "Company") by its intemal counsel and Fulbright & Jaworski L.L.P., New York, New 
York. Certain legal matters will be passed on for the Issuer by its counsel, Forbes, Fields & Associates Co., L,P.A. Delivery of the 
Bonds in book-entry-only form is expected on or about October 13, 2009, through the facilities of DTC in New York, New York, 
against payment therefor. 

KeyBanc Capital Markets 

Dated: October 6,2009 

Mot^an Stanley 
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No person has been authorized to give any information or to make any representations other than 
those contained in this Official Statement in connection with the offer made hereby and, if given or made, 
such infonnation or representations must not be relied upon as having been autiiorized by the Issuer, the 
Company or the Underwriters. Neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale hereunder 
shall under any circumstances create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs ofthe 
Issuer or the Company since the date hereof This Official Statement does not constitute an offer or 
solicitation In any jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is not authorized, or in which the person 
making such offer or solicitation is not qualified to do so or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make 
such offer or solicitation. The Issuer neither has nor assumes any responsibility as to the accuracy or 
completeness ofthe information in this Official Statement, all of which has been furnished by others, 
other than infonnation under THE ISSUER. 

This Official Statement contains statements which, to the extent they are not recitations of 
historical fact, constitute "forward-looking statements." In this respect, the words "estimate," "project," 
"anticipate," "expect," "intent," "believe," and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-
looking statements. A number of important factors affecting Ohio Valley Electric Corporation's business 
and financial results and those of its contractual counterparties could cause actual results to differ from 
those stated in the forward-looking statements. 

The Underwriters have provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement. 
The Underwriters have reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as a 
part of, their respective responsibilities to investors imder the federal securities laws as applied to the facts 
and circumstances of this transaction, but the Underwriters do not guarantee the accuracy or completeness 
of such information. 

CERTAIN PERSONS PARTICIPATING IN THIS OFFERING MAY ENGAGE IN 
TRANSACTIONS THAT STABILIZE, MABSFTAIN OR OTHERWISE AFFECT THE PRICE OF THE 
BONDS, INCLUDING BY ENTERING STABILIZING BIDS. FOR A DESCRIPTION OF THESE 
ACTIVITIES, SEE UNDERWRITING HEREIN. 



$200,000,000 
Ohio Air Quality Development Authority 

State of Ohio 
Air Quality Revenue Bonds 

(Ohio Valley Electric Coiporation Project), 
Series 2009E 

INTRODUCTORY STATEMENT 

This Official Statement, including the Appendices hereto, is provided to fiimish certain 
information in cormection with the issuance by the Ohio Air Quality Development Authority, a 
body politic and corporate of the State of Ohio ("Issuer") of State of Ohio Air Quality Revenue 
Bonds (Ohio Valley Electric Corporation Project), Series 2009E, in the aggregate principal 
amoimt of $100,000,000 (the "Bonds"). The Issuer neither has nor assumes any responsibility as 
to the accuracy or completeness ofthe infonnation in this Official Statement, all of which has 
been furnished by others, other than the infonnation pertaining to the Issuer under THE ISSUER. 

The Bonds will be issued under and pursuant to a resolution ofthe Issuer adopted on 
October 14,2008 ("Resolution") and an Indenture of Trust, dated as of October 1,2009 
("Indenture"), between the Issuer and The Huntington National Bank, as trustee (in such 
capacity, the "Trustee"). CapitaHzed terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the 
meanings given to them in the Indenture. 

Pursuant to a Loan Agreement, dated as of October 1, 2009 ("Loan Agreement"), 
between the Issuer and the Company, the Issuer will loan to the Company the proceeds ofthe 
Bonds to assist the Company in financing a portion ofthe costs of acquiring, constructing and 
installing certain solid waste disposal facilities comprising "air quality facilities", as defined in 
Chapter 3706, Ohio Revised Code, as amended (the "Act"), for Units 1-5 ofthe Kyger Creek 
Generating Station owned by the Company located in the County of Gallia, Ohio (the "Project"). 
The term "Plant" as used herein means the Kyger Creek Generating Station. 

In order to evidence the loan fi*om the Issuer (the "Loan") and to provide for its 
repayment, the Company will issue a nonnegotiable promissory note (the "Note") pursuant to the 
Loan Agreement. Payments required under the Note wili be sufficient, together with any other 
funds on deposit in the Bond Fund (hereinafter described) under the Indenture, to pay the 
principal of and interest on the Bonds. The Bonds will not otherwise be secured by a mortgage 
on, or security mterest in, any ofthe Project or any other property ofthe Company. 

The Bonds will mature and become due and payable, together with any accrued and 
unpaid interest, on October 1,2019, subject to earlier redemption. The Bonds will bear interest 
at a Fixed Rate of 5.625% per year from October 13, 2009 until stated maturity. Interest on the 
Bonds will be payable semi-annually in arrears on each April I and October 1, commencing 
April 1,2010. 

The Bonds will be issued in denominations of $5,000 and integral multiples thereof and 
will be held by The Depository Tmst Company ("DTC"), or its nominee, as securities depository 
with respect to the Bonds. See THE BONDS - Book-Entry Only System. 



The Bonds are special obligations of the Issuer, and are to be paid solely from, and 
will be secured by a pledge of, payments to be made to the Issuer under the terms of the 
Loan Agreement and the Note. The Bonds will not be secured by a mortgage or security 
interest in the Project or any other property of the Company. See THE BONDS - Security 
for the Bonds. 

Brief descriptions ofthe Issuer, the Project, the Company and certain provisions ofthe 
Bonds, the Loan Agreement, the Note and the Indenture are included in this Official Statement. 
The descriptions and summaries contained herein do not purport to be comprehensive or 
definitive. Certain infonnation with respect to the Company is set forth in Appendix A hereto. 
Appendix B to this Official Statement sets forth the form of opinion Bond Counsel proposes to 
deliver relating to the Bonds. The descriptions herein of provisions ofthe Loan Agreement and 
the Indenture are qualified in their entirety by reference to such documents, and the description 
herein of provisions ofthe Bonds is qualified in its entirety by reference to the form thereof and 
the information with respect thereto included in the aforesaid documents. All such descriptions 
are further qualified in their entirety by reference to laws and principles of equity relating to or 
affecting generally the enforcement of creditor's rights. Copies of such dociunents may be 
obtained fi'om the office ofthe Company and are available for inspection at the office ofthe 
Trustee. Words and terms not defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in the respective 
documents. 

The Bonds may not be suitable for all investors. Prospective purchasers ofthe Bonds 
should read this entire Official Statement for details ofthe Bonds, the financial condition ofthe 
Company and certain other factors that could adversely affect the utility industry, including 
specifically the information imder the caption RISK FACTORS in Appendix A 

THE ISSUER 

The Issuer was organized pursuant to the Act. Under the Act, the Issuer is a body 
corporate and politic, with full power and authority to issue the Bonds and to enter into and 
perform its obligations under the Loan Agreement and the Indenture. The Issuer has no taxing 
power. 

THE BONDS ARE SPECIAL OBLIGATIONS OF THE STATE OF OHIO AND 
SHALL NOT REPRESENT OR CONSTITUTE A DEBT OR A PLEDGE OF THE FAITH 
AND CREDIT OR TAXING POWER OF THE ISSUER, THE STATE OF OHIO OR ANY 
POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF OHIO, AND THE HOLDERS AND OWNERS THEREOF 
SHALL HAVE NO RIGHT TO HAVE TAXES LEVIED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY 
OF OHIO OR THE TAXE^G AUTHORITY OF ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF OHIO 
FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF OR INTEREST ON THE BONDS, BUT THE 
BONDS SHALL BE PAYABLE SOLELY FROM THE REVENUES AND FUNDS PLEDGED 
FOR THEIR PAYMENT AS AUTHORIZED BY THE ACT. 



THEPROJECT 

The Project consists of various systems which are designed for the disposal of solid 
wastes resulting firom the operation of Units 1-5 at the Plant. The solid waste disposal facilities, 
which comprise "air quality facilities" as defined in Section 3706.01 ofthe Act, are comprised of 
the portion ofeach flue gas desulfurization system ("FGD System") to be constructed with 
respect to Units 1 -5 at the Plant, rated at 217 megawatts each, that relates to the disposal of solid 
waste generated as part ofthe FGD System. 

The Issuer issued $25,000,000 aggregate principal amount of its State of Ohio Air 
Quality Revenue Bonds (Ohio Valley Electric Corporation Project), Series 2009A (the "Series 
2009A Bonds") and $25,000,000 aggregate principal amount of its State of Ohio Air Quality 
Revenue Bonds (Ohio Valley Electric Corporation Project), Series 2009B (the "Series 2009B 
Bonds") on August 12,2009, and issued $25,000,000 aggregate principal amount of its State of 
Ohio Air Quality Revenue Bonds (Ohio Valley Electric Corporation Project), Series 2009C (the 
"Series 2009C Bonds") and $25,000,000 aggregate principal amount of its State of Ohio Air 
Quality Revenue Bonds (Ohio Valley Electric Corporation Project), Series 2009D (the "Series 
2009D Bonds") on August 21, 2009. The Series 2009A Bonds, the Series 2009B Bonds, the 
Series 2009C Bonds and the Series 2009D Bonds were issued for the purpose of financing a 
portion ofthe cost ofthe Project and each are payable from payments to be made by the 
Company pursuant to separate loan agreements with the Issuer and also are secured by separate 
letters of credit. 

USE OF PROCEEDS 

The proceeds received by the Issuer from the sale ofthe Bonds will be deposited in the 
Construction Fimd created under the Indenture to be used to reimburse the Company for costs of 
the Project and certain costs incident to the sale and issuance ofthe Bonds. 

THE BONDS 

The Bonds are special obligations ofthe Issuer and will be payable solely firom the 
revenues and receipts arising out of or in cormection with the Loan Agreement and the Note. 

General 

The Bonds will be dated as ofthe date ofthe initial authentication and delivery thereof 
and will mature on October 1, 2019, and will bear interest from October 13,2009 at the rate of 
5.625% per annum until maturity, unless redeemed prior thereto. See Redemption below. 
Interest on the Bonds will be payable semi-aimually in arrears on each April 1 and October 1, 
commencing April 1,2010. 

Beneficial interests in tiie Bonds will initially be issued pursuant to a Book-Entry Only 
System ("Book-Entry Only System") maintained by DTC, as described below under the caption 
Book-Entry Only System. Under the Indenture, the Trustee and the Issuer may appoint a 
successor securities depository to DTC. (DTC, together with any such successor securities 
depository, is hereinafter refened to as the "Securities Depository"). The following information 



is subject in its entirety to the provisions described below under the caption Book-Entry Only 
System while the Bonds are in the Book-Entry Only System. 

Upon surrender ofthe Bonds, principal ofthe Bonds is payable at maturity or upon 
redemption at the principal office ofthe Trustee, or at the option ofthe owner at the principal 
office of any paying agent designated as provided in the Indenture. As long as the Bonds are 
held by DTC, interest will be paid to DTC on each payment date. If the book-entry system is 
discontinued, interest on the Bonds will be payable by check or draft mailed by the Trustee to the 
registered owners. 

Form and Denomination of Bonds; Payments on the Bonds 

General 

The Bonds will be issued only as fully registered bonds, without coupons, in 
denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof (an "Authorized Denomination"). The 
Bonds will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as registered owner and nominee of DTC. 
DTC acts as securities depository for the Bonds and individual purchases of Bonds may be made 
in book-entry form only. So long as the Bonds are in book-entry only form, purchasers of Bonds 
will not receive certificates representing their interest io the Bonds purchased. So long as Cede 
& Co. is the registered owner of such Bonds, as nominee of DTC, references herein to the 
Bondholders or registered owners or holder shall mean Cede & Co., and shall not mean the 
Beneficial Owners (as defined below) ofthe Bonds. 

So long as Cede & Co. is the registered owner ofthe Bonds, principal of and interest on 
the Bonds are payable to Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC, which will, in tum, remit such 
amounts to the DTC Participants (as defined below) for subsequent disbursement to the 
Beneficial Owners. See - Book-Entry Only System below. 

The Huntington National Bank has been appointed as Trustee and Paying Agent under 
the Indenture. The designated corporate trust office ofthe Trustee and Paying Agent is located, 
initially, in Columbus, Ohio. The Trustee will not be required to make any transfer or exchange 
of any Bond during the ten days prior to the mailing of a notice of Bonds selected for redemption 
or, with respect to a Bond, after such Bond or any portion thereof has been selected for 
redemption. Registration of transfers and exchanges shall be made without charge to the 
Bondholders, except that any required taxes or other govemmental charges shall be paid by the 
Bondholder requesting registration of transfer or exchange. 

Interest 

The Bonds will bear interest at a rate of 5.625% per year fi-om October 13, 2009 until 
stated maturity. Interest on the Bonds will be payable semi-aimually in arrears on each April 1 
and October 1, commencing April 1, 2010. Each payment of interest shall include interest 
accmed through the day before such interest payment date. Interest on the Bonds will be 
computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. 

Payments of interest on the Bonds are payable when due to the registered owner 
determined on the Record Date (as described below) by check mailed on the interest payment 



date, provided that any registered owner of $1,000,000 or more in aggregate principal amount of 
Bonds may, upon written request given to the Paying Agent at least five Business Days (as 
defined below) prior to an interest payment date designating an account in a domestic bank, be 
paid by wire transfer of immediately available funds. The principal of the Bonds is payable 
when due by wire or bank transfer of immediately available fimds within the continental United 
States to the registered owner, but only upon presentation and sunender of the Bonds at the 
Principal Office ofthe Paying Agent. 

'̂Business Day" means any day other than (i) a Saturday or Sunday, (ii) a day which is a 
day the designated corporate tmst office ofthe Tmstee is requu'ed or authorized by law to close, 
or (iii) a day on which the New York Stock Exchange is closed. 

The Record Date for a Bond will be the close of business on the 15th day (whether or not 
a Business Day) ofthe calendar month immediately preceding each interest payment date. 

Interest will accme on the unpaid portion ofthe principal ofthe Bonds from the last date 
to which interest was paid, or ifno interest has been paid, fi'om the date ofthe original issuance 
ofthe Bonds until the enture principal amount ofthe Bonds is paid. 

Redemption of Bonds 

Optional Redemption. The Bonds are not subject to optional redemption. 

Extraordinary Optional Redemption. The Bonds are subject to redemption by the Issuer 
in whole or in part on any date if the Company, upon the occunence of any ofthe following 
events, exercises its option to dkect that redemption from moneys available therefor at a 
redemption price of 100% ofthe principal amount redeemed plus accmed and unpaid interest to 
the redemption date: 

(a) The Project or the Plant shall have been damaged or destroyed to such an extent 
that the Company deems it not practical or desirable to rebuild, repair or restore 
the Project or the Plant, as the case may be. 

(b) Title to, or the temporary use of, all or a significant part ofthe Project or the Plant 
shall have been taken under the exercise ofthe power of eminent domain so as to 
render the Project unsatisfactory to the Company for its intended purpose. 

(c) As a result of any changes in the Constitution ofthe State of Ohio, the 
Constitution ofthe United States of America or any state or federal laws or as a 
result of legislative or administrative action (whether state or federal) or by final 
decree, judgment or order of any court or administrative body (whether state or 
federal) entered after any contest thereof by the Issuer or the Company in good 
faith, the Loan Agreement shall have become void or unenforceable or impossible 
of performance in accordance with the intent and purpose ofthe parties as 
described therein. 

(d) Um-easonable burdens or excessive liabilities shall have been imposed upon the 
Issuer or the Company with respect to the Project or the Plant or the operation 



thereof, including, without limitation, the imposition of federal, state or other ad 
valorem, property, income or other taxes not being imposed on the date ofthe 
Loan Agreement. 

(e) Changes in the economic availability of raw materials, operating supplies, energy 
sources or supplies or facilities (including, but not limited to, facilities in 
connection with the disposal of industrial wastes) necessary for the operation of 
the Project or the Plant occur or technological or other changes occur which in the 
Company's reasonable judgment render the Project or the Plant uneconomic or 
obsolete. 

(f) Any court or administrative body shall enter a judgment, order or decree, or shall 
take administrative action, requiring the Company to cease all or any substantial 
part of its operations served by the Project or the Plant to such extent that tiie 
Company is or will be prevented from carrying on its normal operations at the 
Project or the Plant for a period of six consecutive months. 

(g) The termination by the Company of operations at the Plant. 

Extraordinary Mandatory Redemption. The Bonds are subject to mandatory redemption 
at any time in whole, or in part if such partial redemption will preserve the exemption from 
federal income taxation of interest on the remaining outstanding Bonds, at a redemption price 
equal to the principal amount thereof together with unpaid interest accmed to the date fixed for 
redemption, and without premium, if (a) a final decree or judgment of any federal court, in which 
the Company participates to the extent it deems sufficient, or (b) a final action by the Intemal 
Revenue Service, in proceedings in which the Company participates to the extent it deems 
sufficient, determines that the interest paid or payable on Bonds to a person, other than, as 
provided in Section 147(a) ofthe Code, a "substantial user" ofthe Project or a "related person", 
is or was includable in the gross income ofthe owner thereof for federal income tax purposes 
under the Code, as a result ofthe failure by the Company to observe or perform any covenant, 
condition or agreement on its part to be observed or performed under the Loan Agreement or the 
inaccuracy of any representation by the Company under the Loan Agreement or receipt by the 
Company of an Opinion of Tax Counsel to such effect obtained by tiae Company and rendered at 
the request ofthe Company; provided, however, that no decree or judgment by any court or 
action by the Intemal Revenue Service shall be considered final unless the registered ovmer or 
Beneficial Owner involved in such proceeding or action (i) gives the Company and the Tmstee 
prompt written notice ofthe commencement thereof and (ii) if the Company agrees to pay all 
expenses in connection therewith and to indenmify such registered owner or Beneficial Owner 
against all liabilities in coimection therewith, offers the Company the opportunity to control the 
defense thereof. Any such redemption shall be made on a date determined by the Tmstee not 
more than 180 days after the date of such final decree, judgment or action. The Tmstee shall 
give the Issuer and the Company not less than 45 days written notice of such date. 

Notice of Redemption. Whenever Bonds are to be redeemed, the Tmstee shall give 
notice of redemption by mailing such notice to the registered owner ofeach Bond to be 
redeemed, at least 30 days prior to the redemption date, as provided in the Indenture. 



With respect to an extraordinary optional redemption of Bonds as descrited under 
Extraordinary Optional Redemption above, unless moneys sufficient to pay the principal of and 
interest on the Bonds to be redeemed shall have been received by the Tmstee prior to the giving of 
such notice of redemption, such notice may state that said redemption shall be conditional upon the 
receipt of such moneys by the Tmstee on or prior to the date fixed for redemption. If such moneys 
are not received, such notice shall be of no force and effect, the Issuer shall not redeem such Bonds, 
the redemption price shall not be due and payable and the Tmstee shall give notice, in the same 
manner in which the notice of redemption was given, that such moneys were not so received and 
diat such Bonds will not be redeemed. 

During the period that DTC or the DTC nominee is the registered holder ofthe 
Bonds, the Trustee wil! not be responsible for mailing notices of redemption, or other 
notices described herein, to the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds. See Book-Entry Only 
System below. 

Partial Redemption 

If fewer than all the Bonds are to be redeemed, the Tmstee will select the Bonds to be 
redeemed by lot, except that the Trustee will first select any Bonds owned by the Company or any 
of its nominees or held by the Tmstee for the account ofthe Company or any of its nominees. The 
Tmstee will make the selection fix)m Bonds not previously called for redemption. For this purpose, 
the Tmstee will consider each Bond in a denomination larger than the minimum denomination 
permitted by the Bonds at the time to be separate Bonds each in the minimum denomination. 
Provisions ofthe Indenture that apply to Bonds called for redemption also apply to portions of 
Bonds called for redemption 

Book-Entry Only System 

DTC will act as Securities Depository for the Bonds. The Bonds will be issued as fully-
registered bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co., DTC's partnership nominee, or such 
other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One or more fully-
registered bond certificates will be issued for the Bonds, representing in the aggregate the total 
principal amount ofthe Bonds, and will be deposited with the Tmstee on behalf of DTC. 

DTC, the world's largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose tmst company 
organized under the New York Banking Law, a "banking organization" within the meaning of 
the New York Banking Law, a member ofthe Federal Reserve System, a "clearing corporation" 
within the meaning ofthe New York Uniform Commercial Code and a "clearing agency" 
registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 
amended (the "1934 Act"). DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues 
of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues and money market 
instmments from over 100 countries that DTC's participants ("Direct Participants") deposit with 
DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other 
securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry 
transfers and pledges between Direct Participants' accounts. This eliminates the need for 
physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. 
securities brokers and dealers, banks, tmst companies, clearing corporations, and certain other 
organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Tmst & Clearing 



Corporation ("DTCC"). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing 
Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing 
agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system 
is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, 
tmst companies and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship 
with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly (the "Indirect Participants"). DTC has 
Standard & Poor's, a division of The McGraw Hill Companies, Inc., highest rating: AAA. The 
DTC mles applicable to Direct and Indirect Participants are on file with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission. More infonnation about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com and 
www.dtc.org. 

Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct 
Participants, which will receive a credit for the Bonds on DTC's records. The ownership interest 
ofeach actual purchaser ofeach Bond (the "Beneficial Owner") is in turn to be recorded on the 
Direct and Indirect Participants' records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation 
from DTC of their purchases. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written 
confirmations providing details ofthe transactions, as well as periodic statements of thefr 
holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participants through which the Beneficial Owner entered 
into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Bonds are to be accomplished by 
entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial 
Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in 
Bonds, except in the event that use ofthe book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued. 

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC 
are registered in the name of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as 
may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of Bonds with DTC and 
their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nommee do not effect any 
changes in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge ofthe actual Beneficial Owners ofthe 
Bonds. DTC's records reflect only the identity oftiie Direct Participants to whose accounts such 
Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect 
Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their 
customers. 

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by 
Direct Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to 
Beneficial Owners will be govemed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or 
regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. 

Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to take certain steps to augment tbe transmission 
to them of notices of significant events with respect to the Bonds, such as redemptions, tenders, 
defaults and proposed amendments to the Bond documents. For example. Beneficial Owners of 
Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Bonds for their benefit has agreed to 
obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In the altemative, Beneficial Owners may wish 
to provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of notices be 
provided directly to them. 

http://www.dtcc.com
http://www.dtc.org


Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all ofthe Bonds are being 
redeemed, DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount ofthe interest ofeach Direct 
Participant in such issue to be redeemed. 

Although voting with respect to the Bonds is limited, in those cases where a vote is 
required, neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with 
respect to the Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's MMI 
Procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Onmibus Proxy to the Issuer as soon as 
possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.'s consenting or voting 
rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts Bonds are credited on the record date 
(identified in a listing attached to the Onmibus Proxy). 

Payments on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be 
requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC's practice is to credit Direct 
Participants' accounts upon DTC's receipt of funds and conesponding detail information from 
the Company or the Tmstee on the relevant payment date in accordance with their respective 
holdings shown on DTC's records. Payments by Direct or Indirect Participants to Beneficial 
Owners will be govemed by standing instmctions and customary practices, as is the case with 
securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in "street name," and 
will be the responsibility of such Direct or Indirect Participant and not of DTC, the Company, the 
Tmstee or the Issuer, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from 
time to time. Payment to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an 
authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility ofthe Tmstee, disbursement of such 
payments to Direct Participants is the responsibility of DTC, and disbursements of such 
payments to the Beneficial Owners is the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants. 

DTC may discontinue providing its services as Securities Depository with respect to the 
Bonds at any time by giving reasonable notice to the Issuer or the Tmstee. Under such 
circumstances, in the event that a successor Securities Depository is not obtained, certificated 
Bonds are required to be printed and delivered to the holders of record. Additionally, the 
Company may decide to discontinue use ofthe system of book-entry ttansfers through DTC (or a 
successor Securities Depository) with respect to the Bonds. In that event, certificates for the 
Bonds will be printed and delivered. 

The information in this section conceming DTC and DTC's book-entry system has been 
obtained from sources that the Issuer, the Company, the Underwriters and the Tmstee believe to 
be reliable, but none ofthe Issuer, the Company, the Underwriters or the Tmstee takes any 
responsibility for the accuracy of such statements. None ofthe Issuer, the Company, the 
Underwriters or the Tmstee has any responsibility for the performance by DTC or its Direct or 
Indirect Participants of their respective obhgations as described herein or under the mles and 
procedures goveming their respective operations. 

In the event that the book-entry system is discontinued, a bondholder may transfer or 
exchange the Bonds in accordance with the Indenture. The Tmstee will require a bondholder, 
among other things, to fumish appropriate endorsements and transfer documents and to pay any 
taxes and fees required by law or permitted by the Indenture. In addition, in case of such 
discontinuance, an additional or co-paying agent may be designated. 



None ofthe Issuer, the Underwriters, the Company, the Trustee or any agent for 
payment on or registration of transfer or exchange of any Bond wOl have any responsibility 
or obligation to Direct Participants, Indirect Participants or the persons for whom they act 
as nominees with respect to the accuracy ofthe records of DTC, its nominee or any Direct 
Participant with respect to any ownership interest in the Bonds, or payments to, or the 
providing of notice for, Direct Participants, Indirect Participants, or beneficial owners or 
other action taken by DTC, or its nominee, Cede & Co., as the sole owners ofthe Bonds. 

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS 

The Bonds will be special obligations ofthe Issuer, the principal of and interest on which 
will be payable solely from the payments to be made by the Company under the Loan Agreement 
and the Note, which are pledged to the Tmstee. The pledge does not extend to funds to which 
the Tmstee is entitled in its own right such as fees, reimbursement, indemnity or otherwise. The 
Loan Agreement provides that Loan Payments will be paid to the Tmstee by the Company for 
the account ofthe Issuer. 

The Company will make payments under the Loan Agreement which will be sufficient to 
pay, when due, the principal of and interest on the Bonds. To evidence the obligations of the 
Company to make the Loan Payments and repay the Loan, the Company will, concurrently with 
the issuance of the Bonds, execute and deliver the Note, which the Issuer will assign to the 
Tmstee, under the Indenture, in an aggregate principal amount equal to the aggregate principal 
amount of the Bonds. The Loan Agreement is an unsecured obligation of the Company. The 
Bonds are not secured by a mortgage, security interest or other lien on the Project financed by 
the Bonds or any other properties ofthe Company. The Company cunently has no secured debt 
outstanding. 

See RISK FACTORS in Appendix A of this Official Statement for additional information 
regarding the Company and certain risks associated with investment in the Bonds. 

THE LOAN AGREEMENT 

In addition to the description of certain provisions ofthe Loan Agreement contained 
elsewhere herein, the following is a brief summary of certain provisions ofthe Loan Agreement 
and the Note and does not purport to be comprehensive or definitive. All references herein to the 
Loan Agreement and the Note are qualified in their entirety by reference to the Loan Agreement 
and the Note (the form of which is attached to the Loan Agreement) for the detailed provisions 
thereof 

Use of Bond Proceeds; Construction ofthe Project 

The Issuer will issue the Bonds and loan proceeds ofthe sale thereof to the Company, 
which proceeds will be applied as described under USE OF PROCEEDS herein. The Company 
agrees to cause the Project to be acquired, constmcted, installed and improved substantially in 
accordance with the plans and specifications as provided in the Loan Agreement. 

10 



In the Indenture, the Issuer directs the Trustee to make payments from the Constmction 
Fund to pay the cost ofthe Project and issuance expenses, and to reimburse the Company for any 
cost ofthe Project and issuance expenses paid or incuned by the Company. 

Term of Loan Agreement 

The term ofthe Loan Agreement will continue until such time as all ofthe outstanding 
Bonds are fully paid (or provision has been made for such payment) pursuant to the Indenture 
and all other money payable by the Company under the Loan Agreement shall have been paid. 

Payments 

The Company will make payments on the Loan Agreement which will be sufficient to 
pay, when due, the principal of and mterest on the Bonds. To evidence the obligations ofthe 
Company to make the Loan Payments and repay the Loan, the Company will, concunentiy with 
the issuance ofthe Bonds, execute and deliver the Note, which the Issuer will assign to the 
Tmstee, under the Indenture, in an aggregate principal amount equal to the aggregate principal 
amount ofthe Bonds. 

The Agreement contains no restrictions on the ability ofthe Company to incur debt or, 
except as described under — Corporate Existence, to transfer its assets. 

Obligations Unconditional 

The obligations ofthe Company to make Loan Payments and other payments required to 
be made pursuant to the Loan Agreement and the Note are absolute and unconditional, and the 
Company will make such payments without abatement, diminution or deduction regardless of 
any cause or circumstances whatsoever including, without limitation, any defense, set-off, 
recoupment or counterclaim which the Company may have or assert against the Issuer, the 
Tmstee or any other Person. 

Maintenance and Modification 

During the term ofthe Loan Agreement, the Company will use its best efforts to keep and 
maintain, or cause to be kept and maintained, the Project, including all appurtenances thereto and 
any personal property therein or thereon, in satisfactory operating order, repair, condition and 
appearance, subject to reasonable wear and tear, so that the Project will continue to constitute a 
facility that can be financed by the Issuer under the Act. Subject to certain conditions, the 
Company has the right, from time to time, to remodel the Project or make additions, 
modifications and improvements thereto, the cost of which must be paid by the Company. The 
Company also has the right, subject to certain conditions, to substitute or remove any portion of 
the Project. 

Corporate Existence 

During the term ofthe Loan Agreement the Company will maintain its legal existence 
and will not sell its properties as an entirety or substantially as an entirety or consolidate with or 
merge into another entity or permit one or more other entities to consolidate with or merge into 
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it, unless the successor corporation or ttansferee resulting from any such consolidation, merger, 
sale or transfer shall assume all obligations ofthe Company arising under or contemplated by the 
Loan Agreement, the Note and the Indenture. No further consolidation, merger or sale or other 
ttansfer shall be made except in compliance with these provisions. 

Environmental CompUance 

In the Loan Agreement, the Company will represent that the Project will be constmcted 
in compliance with all permits, variances and orders issued or granted by the Ohio 
Environmental Protection Agency with respect to the Project, including any permits to install for 
the Project, and any such permits, variances and orders have not been withdrawn or otherwise 
suspended. The Company will represent that it is in material compliance with all terms and 
provisions of all permits, variances and orders heretofore issued or granted by the Ohio 
Environmental Protection Agency with respect to the Plant and its other facilities within the State 
of Ohio, including any permits-to-install and permits-to-operate issued with respect thereto. 

Ta% Exemption 

The Company will covenant and represent in the Loan Agreement that it has taken and 
caused or required to be taken and will take and cause or require to be taken all actions that may 
be required of it for the interest on the Bonds to be and remain excluded from the gross income 
ofthe owners thereof for federal income tax purposes, and that it has not taken or permitted to be 
taken on its behalf, and it will not take or permit to be taken on its behalf, any action which, if 
taken, would adversely affect that exclusion under the provisions ofthe Code. 

Assignment ofthe Loan Agreement 

The Loan Agreement may be assigned in whole or in part by the Company only with the 
consent ofthe Issuer, subject to the following conditions: (a) no assignment will relieve the 
Company from primary liability for any of its obligations under the Loan Agreement or the Note; 
(b) any assignment by the Company must retain for the Company such rights and interests to 
permit it to perform its remaining obligations under the Loan Agreement, and any assignee from 
the Company shall assume the obligations ofthe Company hereunder to the extent ofthe interest 
assigned; (c) the Company will, within 30 days after the execution thereof, fumish or cause to be 
furnished to the Issuer and the Tmstee a tme and complete copy ofeach assignment together 
with any instmment of assumption; and (d) any assignment from the Company will not 
materially impair fulfillment ofthe purposes ofthe Project to be accomplished by operation of 
the Project as provided in the Loan Agreement. 

Events of Default and Remedies 

The Loan Agreement provides that the occunence of one or more ofthe followuig events 
will constitute an "Event of Defauh:" 

(a) The failure to pay any Loan Payment when due; 

(b) The occunence of an event of default described in paragraphs (a) or (b) under THE 
INDENTURE—Events of Default and Remedies; 
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(c) Failure by the Company to observe and perform any other agreement, term or 
condition under the Loan Agreement, other than such failure which will result in an 
event of default described in (a) or (b) above, which continues for a period of 90 days 
after notice to the Company by the Issuer or the Trustee or such longer period as the 
Issuer and the Tmstee may agree to in writing; provided that the failure shall not 
constitute an Event of Default if the Company institutes curative action within the 
applicable period and diligently pursues that action to completion; 

(d) Any representation or warranty under the Loan Agreement shall not have been tme in 
all material respects when made; and 

(e) Certain events relating to bankmptcy, insolvency or reorganization ofthe Company. 

A failure by the Company described in subparagraph (c) above is not a default under that 
subparagraph if it occurs by reason of certain causes, circumstances and events of force majeure 
specified in the Loan Agreement that are not reasonably within the control ofthe Company. 

Whenever any Event of Default under the Loan Agreement has happened and is 
subsisting, the Issuer or the Tmstee may take either or both ofthe following remedial steps: 

(a) Inspect, examine and make copies of the books, records, accounts and financial 
data ofthe Company, only, however, insofar as they pertain to the Project; and 

(b) Pursue all remedies to recover all amounts then due and thereafter to become due 
under the Loan Agreement and the Note, or to enforce the performance and 
observance of any other obligation or agreement of the Company under those 
instmments. 

Any amounts collected pursuant to action taken upon the happening of an Event of Default will 
be paid into the Bond Fund and applied in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture or, if 
the outstanding Bonds have been paid and discharged in accordance with the provisions of the 
Indenture, will be paid as provided in the Indenture for transfers of remaining amounts in the 
Bond Fund. 

Certain Covenants Regarding Arbitrage and Tax Exemption 

The Issuer and the Company have agreed not to take any action or omit to take any 
action, which would result in a loss ofthe exemption from federal income taxation of interest on 
the Bonds by virtue ofthe Bonds being considered "arbittage bonds" within the meaning of 
Section 148 oftiie Code. 

The Issuer and the Company have agreed that they will not take any action, cause any 
action to be taken, omit to take any action or cause any omission to occur which would cause the 
interest on the Bonds to become includable in gross income ofthe recipients thereof for purposes 
of federal income taxation. 
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Amendments to the Loan Agreement 

The Indenture provides that the Loan Agreement may be amended without the consent of 
or notice to the owners ofthe Bonds only as may be required or permittê d (i) by the provisions of 
the Loan Agreement or the Indenture or for the purposes for which the Indenture may be 
amended or supplemented without the consent ofthe owners, (ii) for the purpose of curing any 
ambiguity or formal defect or omission in the Loan Agreement, or (iii) in connection with any 
other change therein which, in the judgment ofthe Tmstee, is not to the prejudice ofthe Tmstee 
or the owners ofthe Bonds. Any other amendments to the Loan Agreement may be made only 
with the written approval or consent ofthe owners of not less than a majority in aggregate 
principal amount ofthe Bonds outstanding. An opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that such 
action is permitted under the Act and the Indenture and will not adversely affect the exclusion 
from gross income of interest on the Bonds for federal income tax purposes (a "Favorable 
Opinion of Tax Counsel") is required for any amendment to the Loan Agreement. 

THE INDENTURE 

Additional information summarizing certain provisions ofthe Indenture is contained 
under the heading THE BONDS. So long as DTC or its nominee is the registered owner of the 
Bonds, all references to owners or holders shall mean DTC. See THE BONDS - Book-Entry 
Only System herein. 

Pledge and Security 

Pursuant to the Indenture, the payments to be made by the Company under the Loan 
Agreement and the Note will be assigned by the Issuer to the Tmstee to secure the payment, 
when due, ofthe principal of and interest on the Bonds. The Issuer will mortgage, pledge and 
grant a security interest to the Tmstee all right, titie and interest ofthe Issuer m and to (i) the 
Revenues, including without limitation, all Loan Payments and all other amounts receivable by 
the Issuer under the Loan Agreement in respect of repayment ofthe loan and (ii) die Note and 
the Loan Agreement (except certain rights to the payment of its costs and expenses, to 
indemnification and to enforce certain covenants ofthe Company); provided, that the Tmstee, in 
case of an acceleration ofthe Bonds, will have a prior claim on the Bond Fund for the payment 
of its compensation and expenses. 

Construction Fund 

The Indenture creates and establishes with the Tmstee a separate fimd designated the 
"State of Ohio Air Quality Revenue Bonds (Ohio Valley Electric Corporation Project) Series 
2009E Consttaiction Fund" (die "Constmction Fund"). The proceeds from the sale ofthe Bonds 
will be deposited in the Constmction Fund. Such proceeds and any other moneys deposited in 
the Constmction Fund shall be applied to the payment ofthe cost of financmg the acquisition, 
constmction, installation and equipping ofthe Project, including issuance expenses. See THE 
LOAN AGREEMENT-Use of Bond Proceeds; Construction ofthe Project above. 

When the Project shall have been completed and the Tmstee shall have received a 
certificate of a Company Representative, any moneys remaining in the Constmction Fund in 
excess ofthe amount to be reserved for payment of unpaid items ofthe cost ofthe Project, shall 
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be used by the Tmstee at the direction ofthe Company (i) if the Bonds are then subject to 
redemption or will be subject to redemption within 90 days ofthe date the Project was placed in 
service, to redeem outstanding Bonds at the earliest possible redemption date within such 90-day 
period in accordance with Treasury Regulation Section 1.142-2(c), (ii) if such Bonds are not 
subject to redemption within such 90-day period, to estabhsh a defeasance escrow in accordance 
with Treasury Regulation Section 1.142-2(c) or (iii) for any other purposes which, in the opinion 
of nationally recognized counsel experienced on the subject of municipal bonds and acceptable 
to the Tmstee, is permissible under then applicable Ohio law and will not under the Code cause 
the interest on the Bonds to be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes; 
provided that amounts approved by the Company shall be retained by the Tmstee in the 
Constmction Fund for payment of any cost ofthe Project not then due and payable or which is in 
dispute, and any balance remaining of such retained fimds after full payment ofthe cost ofthe 
Project shall be held and applied, or used as directed by the Company, in the manner specified in 
this paragraph. 

Bond Fund 

Payments made by the Company under the Loan Agreement and the Note with respect to 
the Bonds and certain other amounts specified in the Indenture will be deposited in the Bond 
Fund. The Tmstee will apply money contained in the accoimts described below maintained 
within the Bond Fund as follows: 

(a) Interest Account. The Tmstee, on each Interest Payment Date, will withdraw and 
apply from moneys on deposit in the Interest Account an amount sufficient to pay interest on the 
outstanding Bonds on such Interest Payment Date. 

(b) Principal Account. The Tmstee, on each Principal Payment Date, will withdraw 
and apply from moneys on deposit in the Principal Account, an amount equal to the principal 
becoming due on the Bonds on such Principal Payment Date (other than a redemption date). 
Money in such Principal Account will be used and withdrawn by the Tmstee on each Principal 
Payment Date solely for the payment ofthe principal of outstanding Bonds. 

(c) Redemption Account. The Tmstee, on or before each redemption date, will 
withdraw and apply from moneys on deposit in the Redemption Account amounts required to 
pay the principal of and accmed interest on Bonds to be redeemed prior to their stated maturity. 
Money in such Redemption Account will be used and withdrawn by the Tmstee on each 
redemption date solely for the payment ofthe principal of and accmed interest on outstanding 
Bonds upon the redemption thereof prior to their stated maturity. 

Investment of Moneys Held by the Trustee 

Moneys deposited in the Constmction Fund and in the accounts maintained within the 
Bond Fund will be invested at the direction ofthe Company in Permitted Investments (as defined 
m the Indenture). Moneys held in the Purchase Fund will be held uninvested. 

In the Loan Agreement the Company and the Issuer have covenanted not to cause or 
direct any moneys on deposit in any fund to be used in a manner which would cause the Bonds 
to be "arbitrage bonds" within the meaning of Section 148 ofthe Code. 
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Events of Default and Remedies 

The following events are Events of Default under the Indenture: 

(a) Default m the due and punctual payment of interest on any Bond; 

(b) Default in the due and punctual payment ofthe principal of any Bond, whether at 
the stated maturity thereof, or upon unconditional proceedings for redemption 
thereof; 

(c) Default in the performance or observance of any other ofthe covenants, 
agreements or conditions on the part ofthe Issuer in the Indenture or in the Bonds, 
continuing 30 days after delivery of notice tiiereof; or 

(d) The occurrence and continuance of an event of default under the Loan Agreement 
as described under THE LOAN AGREEMENT - Events of Default and Remedies. 

Upon the occunence and continuance of an Event of Default the Tmstee may, and upon 
the written request ofthe owners of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount ofthe Bonds then 
outstanding shall, declare the principal of and accmed interest on the outstanding Bonds to be 
due and payable immediately. Upon any such declaration, the principal of and accmed interest 
on the outstanding Bonds shall be due and payable immediately. 

The Tmstee may rescind an acceleration ofthe Bonds and its consequences if (1) all 
payment defaults with respect to the Bonds have been cured and all reasonable fees and charges 
ofthe Tmstee, including reasonable attorneys' fees, have been paid, and (2) the Bondholders 
have not been notified ofthe acceleration. Except as described in the immediately preceding 
paragraph, the Tmstee will not declare the Bonds to be due and payable. 

If an Event of Default occurs and is continuing, the Tmstee may pursue any available 
remedy by proceeding at law or in equity to collect the principal of or interest on the Bonds or to 
enforce the performance of any provision ofthe Bonds or the Indenture. 

A majority in aggregate principal amount ofthe outstanding Bonds by notice to the 
Tmstee may waive an existing Event of Default and its consequences. When an Event of 
Default is waived, it is cured and stops continuing, but no such waiver will extend to any 
subsequent or other Event of Default or impair any right consequent to it. 

An owner of a Bond may not pursue any remedy with respect to the Indenture or the 
Bonds unless (a) the owner gives the Tmstee notice stating that an Event of Default is 
continuing, (b) the owners of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount ofthe outstanding 
Bonds make a written request to the Tmstee to pursue the remedy, (c) such owner or owners 
offer to the Tmstee indemnity satisfactory to the Tmstee against any loss, liability or expense, 
and (d) the Tmstee does not comply with the request within 60 days after receipt ofthe request 
and the offer of indemnity. 
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If the Tmstee collects any money pursuant to the Indenture or if any moneys shall be on 
deposit in the Bond Fund at the time of acceleration ofthe Bonds or shall be deposited into the 
Bond Fund as a resuh of such an acceleration, it will pay oiit such monies in the following order: 
first to the Tmstee for amounts to which it is entitled under such Indenture; second to owners for 
amounts due and unpaid on the Bonds for principal and interest, ratably, without preference or 
priority of any kind, accordmg to the amounts due and payable on the Bonds for principal and 
interest, respectively, third to the Company. Any lien ofthe Tmstee provided for in the 
Indenture will in no event apply to any funds held for the benefit ofthe Bondholders. The 
Tmstee may fix a payment date for any payment to the Bondholders. 

Supplemental Indentures 

The Issuer and the Tmstee may, without tbe consent of, or notice to, any ofthe 
Bondholders, enter into such indenture or indentures supplemental to the Indenture as shall not 
be inconsistent with the terms and provisions thereof for any ofthe following purposes: 

(a) to cure any ambiguity, defect or omission in the Indenture, or otherwise amend 
the Indenture, in such manner as shall not in the opinion ofthe Tmstee impair the 
security under the Indenture; 

(b) to grant to or confer upon the Tmstee for the benefit ofthe Bondholders any 
additional rights, remedies, powers or authorities that may lawfully be granted to 
or confened upon the Bondholders or the Tmstee; 

(c) to evidence any succession to the Issuer and the assumption by its successor ofthe 
covenants, agreements and obligations ofthe Issuer under the Indenture, the Loan 
Agreement and the Bonds, to add additional covenants ofthe Issuer or to 
sunender any right or power therein confened upon the Issuer; 

(d) to subject to the pledge ofthe Indenture additional revenues, properties, or 
collateral, which may be accomplished by, among other things, entering into 
instmments with the Company and/or other persons providing for further security, 
covenants, limitations or restrictions for the benefit ofthe Bonds; 

(e) to modify, amend or supplement the Indenture to permit qualification under the 
Tmst Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, or any similar statute at the time in 
effect; 

(f) to amend any provision pertaining to matters under federal income tax laws, 
including Section 148(f) ofthe Code; 

(g) to authorize different Authorized Denominations of the Bonds and to make 
conelative amendments and modifications to the Indenture regarding 
exchangeability of Bonds of different Authorized Denominations, redemptions of 
portions of Bonds of particular Authorized Denominations and similar 
amendments and modifications of a technical nature; 

17 



(h) to provide for an uncertificated system of registering the Bonds or to provide for 
the change to or from a Book-Entry System for the Bonds; 

(i) to evidence the succession of a new tmstee or the appointment by the Tmstee or 
the Issuer of a co-tmstee; and 

(j) to make any change related to the Bonds that does not materially adversely affect 
the rights of any Bondholder. 

The Indenture also provides that the owners of not less than a majority in aggregate 
principal amount of the Bonds outstanding shall have the right, from time to time, to consent to 
and approve the execution by the Issuer and the Tmstee of such other indenture or supplemental 
indentures as shall be deemed necessary and desirable by the Issuer and the Tmstee for the 
purpose of modifying, altering, amending, adding to or rescinding, in any particular, any ofthe 
terms or provisions contained in the Indenture or in any supplemental indenture; provided, 
however, that nothing shall permit (a) without the consent ofthe holder ofthe affected Bond, an 
extension ofthe maturity date ofthe principal of or the interest on any Bond; (b) without the 
consent ofthe holder ofthe affected Bond, a reduction in the principal amount of any Bond or 
the rate of interest thereon; or (c) without the consent ofthe holders of all Bonds outstanding, a 
reduction in the aggregate principal amount ofthe Bonds required for consent to such 
supplemental indenture or for actions related to amendments to the Loan Agreement. A 
Favorable Opinion of Tax Counsel is required for any supplement to the Indenture. 

Discharge of the Indenture 

If the whole amoimt of principal, redemption price and interest due and payable on the 
Bonds has been paid, or provision has been made for the payment ofthe same in accordance with 
the Indenture, and if, at the time of such payment, the Issuer shall have kept, performed and 
observed all the covenants and promises in such Bonds and in the Indenture required or 
contemplated to be kept, performed and observed by the Issuer or on its part on or prior to that 
time, then the Indenture shall be considered to have been discharged in respect of such Bonds 
and such Bonds shall cease to be entitled to the lien ofthe Indenture and such lien and all 
covenants, agreements and other obligations ofthe Issuer thereunder shall cease, terminate, 
become void and be completely discharged as to such Bonds. 

No Personal Liability of Issuer's Officials 

No covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement ofthe Issuer contained in the Indenture 
will be or be deemed to be a covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement of any present or 
future member, officer, agent or employee ofthe Issuer in other than his or her official capacity. 
No member ofthe Issuer or official executing the Bonds, the Indenture, the Loan Agreement or 
any amendment or supplement to the Indenture or the Loan Agreement will be liable personally 
on the Bonds or be subject to any personal liability or accountability by reason ofthe issuance or 
execution thereof. 
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Removal of Trustee 

The Tmstee may be removed by the owners of not less than a majority in principal 
amount of Bonds at the time outstanding or by the Issuer and the Company so long as no Event 
of Default has occuned and is continuing. The Tmstee shall continue to serve as such until a 
successor Tmstee shall be appointed under the Indenture and has accepted such appointment. 

THE TRUSTEE 

The Company and certain of its affiliates maintain banking relationships with affiliates of 
The Huntington National Bank, and bonow from such affiliates from time to time. The 
Huntington National Bank, and its affiliates, serve as tmstee under other indentures with, or for 
the benefit of, affiliates ofthe Company. 

UNDERV^RITING 

Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in a Bond Purchase Agreement to be entered 
into between the Issuer and the Underwriters, the Underwriters have agreed to purchase the 
Bonds at a purchase price of 100% ofthe principal amount thereof. Under the terms and 
conditions ofthe Bond Purchase Agreement, the Underwriters are committed to take and pay for 
all ofthe Bonds if any are taken. The Company has agreed to pay the Underwriters $700,000 as 
compensation and to reimburse the Underwriters for their reasonable expenses. 

The Issuer has been advised by the Underwriters that the Bonds may be offered and sold 
to certain dealers (including dealers depositing Bonds into investment tmsts) and others at prices 
lower than the public offering price set forth on the cover page of this Official Statement. After 
the Bonds are released for sale to the public, the public offering price and other selling terms 
may from time to time be varied by the Underwriters. 

In connection with this offering and in compliance with applicable law and industry 
practice, the Underwriters may overallot or effect transactions which stabilize, maintain or 
otherwise affect the market price ofthe Bonds at levels above those which might otherwise 
prevail in the open market, including by entering stabilizing bids. A stabilizing bid means the 
placing of a bid, or the effecting of any purchase, for the purpose of pegging, fixing or 
maintaining the price of a security. In general, purchases of a security for the purpose of 
stabiHzation could cause the price ofthe security to be higher than it might be in the absence of 
such purchases. 

Neither the Issuer, the Company nor the Underwriters make any representation or 
prediction as to the direction or magnitude of any effect that the ttansactions described above 
may have on the price ofthe Bonds. In addition, neither the Issuer, the Company nor the 
Underwriters make any representation that the Underwriters will engage in such transactions or 
that such ttansactions, once commenced, will not be discontinued without notice. 

Pursuant to an Inducement Letter, the Company has agreed to indemnify the 
Underwriters and the Issuer against certain civil liabilities, including liabilities under the federal 
securities laws, or contribute to payments that the Underwriters or the Issuer may be required to 
make in respect thereof. 
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The Underwriters and/or certam of their affiliates may engage in transactions with, and 
from time to time have performed services for, the Company and/or certaui of its affiliates in the 
ordinary course of business. 

Morgan Stanley, parent company of Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated, an underwriter 
ofthe Bonds, has entered mto a retail brokerage joint venture with Citigroup Inc. As part ofthe 
joint venture, Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated will distribute municipal securities to retail 
investors through the financial advisor network of a new broker-dealer, Morgan Stanley Smith 
Bamey LLC. This distribution arrangement became effective on June 1,2009. As part of this 
anangement, Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated will compensate Morgan Stanley Smith 
Bamey LLC for its seUing efforts with respect to the Bonds. 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 

The Company will agree to deliver certain continuing disclosure information satisfying 
the requirements of Rule 15c2-12 ("Rule") under the 1934 Act. Any holder of an outstanding 
Bond, directly or through the Tmstee, may specifically enforce the Company's disclosure 
obligations, but any breach by the Company of this undertaking pursuant to the Rule will not 
constitute an Event of Default under the Loan Agreement or the Indenture. A description of the 
undertakings ofthe Company pursuant to the Rule is set forth in Appendix C hereto. 

TAX EXEMPTION 

In the opinion of Squire, Sanders & Dempsey L.L.P., Bond Counsel, under existing law: 
(i) interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under 
Section 103(a) ofthe Code, except for interest on any Bond for any period during which it is 
held by a "substantial user" or a "related person" as those terms are used in Section 147(a) ofthe 
Code; (ii) interest on the Bonds is not an item of tax preference under Section 57 ofthe Code for 
purposes ofthe federal altemative minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations; and 
(iii) interest on, and any profit made on the sale of, the Bonds, exchange or other disposition are 
exempt from the Ohio personal income tax, the Ohio commercial activity tax, the net income 
base ofthe Ohio corporate franchise tax, and municipal, school district and joint economic 
development district income taxes in Ohio. Bond Counsel will express no opinion as to any 
other tax consequences regarding the Bonds. 

The opinion on tax matters will be based on and will assume the accuracy of certain 
representations and certifications, and continuing compliance with certain covenants, ofthe 
Issuer and the Company contained in the ttanscript of proceedings and that are intended to 
evidence and assure the foregoing, including that the Bonds are and will remain obligations the 
interest on which is excluded from gross mcome for federal income tax purposes. Bond Counsel 
will not independently verify the accuracy ofthe Issuer's and the Company's certifications and 
representations or the continuing compliance with the Issuer's and the Company's covenants. 

The opinion of Bond Counsel is based on cunent legal authority and covers certain 
matters not directly addressed by such authority. It represents Bond Counsel's legal judgment as 
to exclusion of interest on the Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes but is 
not a guaranfy of that conclusion. The opinion is not binding on the Intemal Revenue Service 
("IRS") or any court. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion about (i) the effect of future changes 
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in the Code and the applicable regulations under the Code or (ii) the interpretation and the 
enforcement ofthe Code or those regulations by the IRS. 

The Code prescribes a number of qualifications and conditions for the interest on state 
and local government obligations to be and to remain excluded from gross income for federal 
income tax purposes, some of which require future or continued compliance after issuance ofthe 
obligations. Noncompliance with these requirements by the Issuer or the Company may cause 
loss of such status and result in the interest on the Bonds being included in gross income for 
federal income tax purposes retroactively to the date of issuance ofthe Bonds. The Company 
and the Issuer have each covenanted to take the actions required of it for the interest on the 
Bonds to be and to remain excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, and not 
to take any actions that would adversely affect that exclusion. After the date of issuance ofthe 
Bonds, Bond Counsel will not undertake to determine (or to so inform any person) whether any 
actions taken or not taken, or any events occurring or not occurring, or any other matters coming 
to Bond Counsel's attention, may adversely affect the exclusion from gross income for federal 
income tax purposes of interest on the Bonds or the market value ofthe Bonds. 

Although a portion ofthe interest on certain tax-exempt obligations eamed by certain 
corporations may be included in the calculation of adjusted cunent eamings for purposes ofthe 
federal corporate altemative minimum tax, interest on certain tax-exempt obligations issued in 
2009 and 2010, including the Bonds, is excluded from that calculation. Interest on the Bonds 
may be subject to a branch profits tax imposed on certain foreign corporations doing business in 
the United States and to a tax imposed on excess net passive income of certain S corporations. 

Under the Code, the exclusion of interest from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes may have certain adverse federal income tax consequences on items of income, 
deduction or credit for certain taxpayers, including financial institutions, certain insurance 
companies, recipients of Social Securify and Railroad Retirement benefits, those that are deemed 
to incur or continue indebtedness to acquire or carry tax-exempt obligations, and individuals 
otherwise eligible for the eamed income tax credit. The applicability and extent of these and 
other tax consequences will depend upon the particular tax status or other tax items ofthe owner 
ofthe Bonds. Bond Counsel will express no opinion regarding those consequences. 

Payments of interest on tax-exempt obligations, including the Bonds, are generally 
subject to IRS Form 1099-INT information reporting requirements. If a Bondowner is subject to 
backup withholding under those requirements, then payments of interest will also be subject to 
backup withholding. Those requirements do not affect the excludability of such interest from 
gross mcome for federal income tax purposes. 

Legislation affecting tax-exempt obligations is regularly considered by the United States 
Congress and may also be considered by the Ohio legislature. Court proceedings may also be 
filed the outcome of which could modify the tax tteatment of obligations such as the Bonds. 
There can be no assurance that legislation enacted or proposed, or actions by a court, after the 
date of issuance ofthe Bonds will not have an adverse effect on the tax status of interest or other 
income on the Bonds or the market value ofthe Bonds. 

Prospective purchasers ofthe Bonds should consult theu* own tax advisers regarding 
pending or proposed federal and Ohio tax legislation and court proceedings, and prospective 
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purchasers ofthe Bonds at other than their original issuance at the price indicated on the cover of 
this Official Statement should also consult their own tax advisers regarding other tax 
considerations such as the consequences of market discount, as to all of which Bond Counsel 
expresses no opinion. 

Bond Counsel's engagement with respect to the Bonds ends with the issuance ofthe 
Bonds, and, unless separately engaged. Bond Counsel is not obligated to defend the Issuer, the 
Company or the beneficial owners regarding the tax status of interest on the Bonds in the event 
of an audit examination by the IRS. The IRS has a program to audit tax-exempt obligations to 
determine whether the interest thereon is includible in gross income for federal income tax 
purposes. If the IRS does audit the Bonds, under cunent IRS procedures, the IRS will tteat the 
Issuer as the taxpayer and the beneficial owners oftiie Bonds will have only limited rights, if 
any, to obtain and participate injudicial review of such audit. Any action ofthe IRS, including 
but not limited to selection ofthe Bonds for audit, or the course or result of such audit, or an 
audit of other obligations presenting similar tax issues, may affect the market value for the 
Bonds. 

LEGAL MATTERS 

Certain legal matters relating to the authorization and validity ofthe Bonds will be 
subject to the approving opinion of Squire, Sanders & Dempsey L.L.P., Cleveland, Ohio, Bond 
Counsel, which will be fiimished at the expense ofthe Company upon delivery of tiie Bonds, in 
substantially the form set forth as Appendix C (the "Bond Opinion"). The Bond Opinion will be 
limited to matters relating to authorization and validity ofthe Bonds and to the tax-exempt status 
of interest thereon as described in the section TAX EXEMPTION. Bond Counsel has not been 
engaged to investigate the financial resources ofthe Company or the ability ofthe Company to 
provide for payment ofthe Bonds, and the Bond Opinion will make no statement as to such 
matters or as to the accuracy or completeness of this Official Statement or any other information 
that may have been relied on by anyone in making the decision to purchase Bonds. 

Certain legal matters will be passed upon by Jeffrey D. Cross or Thomas G. Berkemeyer 
and Fulbright & Jaworski L.L.P., counsel for the Company. Jeffrey D. Cross and Thomas G. 
Berkemeyer are Deputy General Counsel and Associate General Counsel, respectively, of 
American Electric Power Service Corporation, an affiliate ofthe Company. Certain legal 
matters will be passed upon for the Underwriters by Chapman and Cutler LLP, Chicago, Illinois, 
counsel for the Underwriters. Certain legal matters will be passed on for the Issuer by its 
counsel, Forbes, Fields & Associates Co., L.P.A. Squire, Sanders & Dempsey L.L.P. acts as 
counsel to certain affiliates ofthe Company for some matters. 

The various legal opinions to be delivered concunentiy with the delivery ofthe Bonds 
express the professional judgment ofthe attomeys rendering the opinions as to the legal issues 
explicitly addressed therein. In rendering a legal opinion, the attorney does not become an 
insurer or guarantor of die expression of professional judgment, of the ttansaction opined upon, 
or ofthe future performance ofthe parties to the ttansaction, nor does the rendering of an opinion 
guarantee the outcome of any legal dispute tiiat may arise out of the ttansaction. 
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MISCELLANEOUS 

The attached Appendices (including documents contained therein) are an integral part of 
the Official Statement and must be read together with all ofthe balance of this Official 
Statement 

The Issuer does not assume any responsibility for the matters contained in this Official 
Statement other than information under THE ISSUER. All findings and determinations by the 
Issuer relating to the issuance and sale ofthe Bonds are, and have been, made by the Issuer for 
its own intemal uses and purposes in performing its duties under Ohio law. 
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APPENDIX A 

OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 

As more fully detailed below, Ohio Valley Electric Corporation ("OVEC"), together with its wholly owned subsidiary, 
Indiana-Kentucky Electric Corporation ("IKEC" and together with OVEC, the "Company") is engaged in the business 
of generating, transmitting and selling electricity from its facilities located in Ohio, Indiana and Kentucky. The 
Company's principal office is located at 3932 U.S. Route 23, Piketon, Ohio 45661 and the telephone number is (740) 
289-7200. 

This summary may not contain all ofthe information that may be important to purchasers ofthe Bonds and should be 
read together with the more detailed information appearing elsewhere in this Official Statement. Capitalized terms 
used in this Appendix and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in the body of this Official 
Statement. 

Company Overview 

The Company owns and operates two coal-fired electric power generating plants with a combined nameplate capacity of 
approximately 2,390 megawatts ("MW"). OVEC's Kyger Creek Plant (the "Kyger Creek Plant" or "Kyger"), located in 
Gallia County, Ohio, has a total nameplate capacity of 1,086 MW. IKEC's Clifty Creek Plant (the "Clifty Creek Plant" 
or "Clifty") has a total nameplate capacity of 1,304 MW and is located in Jefferson County, Indiana. Both of these 
facilities commenced operations in 1955. A 776 circuit-mile network of 345 kilovolt ("kV") transmission lines owned 
by the Company connect these two generation stations. These lines also interconnect with the major power transmission 
networks of several ofthe utilities serving the area. OVEC has senior unsecured debt ratings of Baa3 (negative outlook) 
by Moody's and BBB- with a stable outlook by S&P. Additional information regarding the Company can be found at 
www.ovec.com, but the information at such website is not incorporated into this Official Statement by reference. 

Tbe Inter-Company Power Agreement 

OVEC sells power to thirteen purchasers under the Inter-Company Power Agreement ("ICPA"), which stipulates the 
terms by which all ofthe electric capacity and energy ofthe Kyger Creek Plant and the Clifty Creek Plant is sold. The 
thirteen power purchasers under the ICPA (collectively, the "Sponsoring Companies") are currently investor-owned 
utilities and one affiliate of a generation and transmission rural electric cooperative each of which own or are affiliated 
with entities that own equity in OVEC. OVEC is owned by eleven entities (collectively, the "Shareholders"), consisting 
often investor-owned utilities or utility holding companies and one affiliate ofthe generation and transmission rural 
electric cooperative. 

In 2004, an Amended and Restated ICPA was unanimously approved by the Sponsoring Compames and OVEC, 
extending the term ofthe then-current ICPA, effective March 13,2006, for an additional 20 years until March 13,2026. 
Under the ICPA, the Sponsoring Companies have the right to receive 100% of OVEC's available capacity and energy. 
Each Sponsoring Company can reserve a percentage, called the power participation ratio ("PPR"), of available power 
and energy, and each Sponsoring Company that reserves available power is entitled to a commensurate amount of 
available energy. The PPR ofeach Sponsoring Company is based on the ownership interest of such Sponsoring 
Company and its affiliates in OVEC. The payments required to be made by the Sponsoring Companies under the ICPA 
include monthly demand and energy charges and transmission charges. The demand and transmission charges are 
designed to cover all of OVEC's non-fuel related costs of owning, operating and maintaining OVEC's generation and 
transmission facilities - including debt repayment - and to provide a retum on equity to its Shareholders. The 
Sponsoring Companies' obligations under the ICPA are iseveral, but not joint and several. This means that each 
Sponsoring Company is only liable for its obligations, and not the obligations ofthe other Sponsoring Companies under 
the ICPA. 

The energy charge permits OVEC to recover all of its fuel-related costs, with each Sponsoring Company paying its 
share ofthose costs based on the amount of energy taken by that Sponsoring Company. The Sponsoring Companies are 
obligated under the ICPA to pay the demand and transmission charges even if OVEC fails to deliver power and 
regardless ofthe amount ofthe available capacity of OVEC's generation facilities. In addition, the Sponsoring 
Companies must reimburse OVEC for all costs of replacements and additional facilities (defined in the ICPA). 

The ICPA allows OVEC to incur debt for capital improvements to maintain compliance with applicable laws. In the 
event that OVEC finances the cost of any additional facility or replacement, the Sponsoring Companies are required to 
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pay, as part ofthe demand charge for available power, 100% of all interest costs and debt amortization relating to such 
financing. The cost is allocated among the Sponsoring Companies based on their respective PPRs (representing their 
and their affiliates' approximate ownership ofthe Company). Consequently, the Sponsoring Companies are obligated to 
reimburse OVEC for 100% of its financing costs for any environmental spending, including those on the Bonds. 

The current Shareholders and their respective percentages of equity in OVEC are: 

Shareholder 

Allegheny Energy, Inc. 

American Electric Power Company, Inc.* 

Buckeye Power Generating, LLC ' 

Columbus Southem Power Company**^ 

The Dayton Power and Light Company ^ 

Duke Energy Ohio, Inc.*** •* 

Kentucky Utilities Company ^ 

Louisville Gas and Electric Company ^ 

Ohio Edison Company ̂  

Southem Indiana Gas and Electric Company ̂  

The Toledo Edison Company ̂  

Total 

Equity Percentage 

3.50% 

39.17% 

18.00% 

4.30% 

4.90% 

9.00% 

2.50% 

5.63% 

7.50% 

1.50% 

4.00% 

1Q0,QQ% 

These entities comprise the Sponsoring Companies and currently share the OVEC power participation benefits and 
requirements in the following percentages: 

Sponsoring Company Power Participation Ratios 

Allegheny Energy Supply Company ^ 

Appalachian Power Company ^ 

Buckeye Power Generating, LLC ' 

Columbus Southem Power Company ̂  

The Dayton Power and Light Company ^ 

Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. ^ 

FirstEnergy Generation Corp. ^ 

Indiana Michigan Power Company ^ 

Kentucky Utilities Company ^ 

Louisville Gas and Electric Company ^ 

Monongahela Power Company ** 

Ohio Power Company ^ 

Southern Indiana Gas and Electric Company ̂  

Total 

Some ofthe Common Stock issued in the name of: 
* American Gas & Biectric Company 
** Columbus and Southem Ohio Electric Company 
*** The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company 

Subsidiary or affiliate of: 
' Buckeye Power, Inc. 
^ American Electric Power Company, Inc. 
^ DPL Inc. 
^ Duke Energy Corporation 
^ EON U.S. LLC 
^ FirstEnergy Corp. 
' Vectren Corporation 
^ Allegheny Energy, Inc. 

3.01% 

15.69% 

18.00% 

4.44% 

4.90% 

9.00% 

11.50% 

7.85% 

2.50% 

5.63% 

0.49% 

15.49% 

1.50% 

100.00% 
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OVEC-IKEC Power Agreement 

The principal contractual arrangements between OVEC and IKEC are contained in the OVEC-IKEC Power 
Agreement. OVEC is obligated under the OVEC-IKEC Power Agreement to purchase all power, and the energy 
associated therewith, generated at IKEC's Clifty Creek Plant. OVEC's payments for such power are detennined 
such that, when added to revenues received by IKEC from any odier source, they are sufficient to enable IKEC to 
pay all of its operating and other expenses, including all income and other taxes, and any interest and regular 
amortization requirements applicable to any indebtedness for borrowed funds incurred by IKEC. IKEC currently has 
no long-term indebtedness. IKEC is obligated to transmit to OVEC any and all power, and the energy associated 
therewith, generated at the Chfty Creek Plant. IKEC is further obligated to transmit and deliver to OVEC all power, 
and the energy associated therewith, supplied to IKEC by the Sponsoring Companies and to deliver to the 
Sponsoring Companies designated by OVEC, all power, and the energy associated therewith, supplied to IKEC by 
OVEC. The term ofthe OVEC-IKEC Power Agreement is coterminous with the term ofthe ICPA. 

Available Information 

OVEC is not subject to the infomaational requirements ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the 
"1934 Act") and does not file reports and other information with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the 
"SEC"). Other than Buckeye Power Generating, LLC, Kentucky Utihties Company and Louisville Gas and Electric 
Company, all ofthe other Shareholders of OVEC (or their parent corporation) are subject to the information 
requirements ofthe 1934 Act, and in accordance therewith file reports, proxy statements and other information with 
the SEC. Such reports, proxy statements and other information can be inspected and copied at the public reference 
fecilities maintained by the SEC at its principal offices at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. or at the SEC's 
website at www.sec.gov. Additional information regarding Buckeye Power Generating, LLC, an affihate of 
Buckeye Power, Inc., can be found at www.buckeyepower.com. Additional information regarding Kentucky 
Utilities Company and Louisville Gas and Electric Company can be found at www.eon-us.com 

None ofthe above-mentioned additional information regarding the Shareholders and their operating subsidiaries is 
part of this Official Statement, nor is any such information incorporated into this Official Statement, and neither the 
Company nor the Underwriters take any responsibihty for the accuracy or completeness thereof 

Financial Statements 

Annex 1 to this Appendix A contains the Company's Annual Report for 2008 which includes the consolidated 
financial statements ofthe Company as of December 31,2008 and 2007, and for each ofthe two years in the 
period ended December 31,2008, audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent auditors. Annex 2 to this 
Appendix A contains the unaudited consolidating financial statements of the Company as of March 31,2009. 
Annex 3 to this Appendix A contains the unaudited consolidating financial statements ofthe Company as of 
June 30,2009. 

Risk Factors 

Investing in the Bonds involves risk. Please see the risk factors described below. Before making an mvestment 
decision, prospective Bondholders should carefully consider these risks as well as other information contained in 
this Official Statement and the Appendices. The risks and uncertainties described are those presently known to the 
Company. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to the Company or that the Company currently 
deems immaterial may also impair the Company's business operations, financial results and the value ofthe Bonds. 

Risks Associated with OVEC 

OVEC relies exclusively on the payments made to it by the Sponsoring Companies pursuant to the ICPA for 
revenue to pay OVEC's operating expenses, and OVEC may be unable to pay those expenses (including 
payments of principal of and interest on the Bonds) if any of the Sponsoring Companies fails to fulfill its 
payment obligations to OVEC. 
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The Sponsoring Companies are obUgated under the ICPA to pay demand, transmission and energy charges that, 
collectively, are contractually designed to cover all of OVEC's fixed charges of owning, operating and maintaining 
OVEC's generation and transmission facilities, provide a retum on equity to OVEC's shareholders, and compensate 
OVEC for costs of all fuel used to supply power under the ICPA. This obligation is several and not joint and several. 
As a consequence, because OVEC's only material source of revenue is under the ICPA, a failure by a Sponsoring 
Company to fiilfill a payment obligation to OVEC for any reason could cause OVEC to be unable to pay its 
operating expenses (including payments with respect to principal of and interest on the Bonds). Moreover, the 
ability ofthe Sponsoring Companies to generate cash fiow and make their obligated payments under the ICPA 
depends on their financial performance, which will be affected by a range of economic, competitive, legislative, 
regulatory and business factors, many of which are outside ofthe control ofthe Company and the Sponsoring 
Companies. 

The Sponsoring Companies' utility operations involve many risks, including the breakdown or failure of power 
generation equipment, pipelines, transmission lines, distribution lines or other equipment or processes, fuel 
intermption, and performance below expected levels of output or efficiency. Sales and revenues of a utility may also 
be adversely affected by general economic and business conditions and weather conditions in its service territory. 

In addition, the Sponsoring Companies ate subject to a number of environmental and oth^ laws and regulations 
affecting many aspects of their present and future operations, including the disposal of various fom:is of waste, the 
construction or permitting of new facilities and air and water quality. Those laws and regulations generally require 
the Sponsoring Companies to obtain and comply with a wide variety of licenses, permits and other approvals. 
Existing regulations may be revised or new regulations may be adopted or become applicable to the Sponsoring 
Companies that could have an adverse impact on their respective operations, including potential regulatory 
developments related to emissions of greenhouse gases, sulfur dioxide and nitrous oxides. The implementation of 
regulatory changes unposing more comprehensive or stringent requirements on the Sponsoring Companies, to the 
extent such changes would result in increased comphance costs or additional operating restrictions, could have a 
material adverse effect on the results of operations of the Sponsoring Companies. See Environmental Matters herein. 

This Official Statement does not contain historical financial information regarding any ofthe Sponsoring 
Companies. In making an investment decision regarding the Bonds, there is no assurance, based upon the 
information contained herein, that any ofthe Sponsoring Companies will be capable of meeting its financial or other 
responsibilities under the ICPA. For additional information regarding risk factors relating to each ofthe Sponsoring 
Companies, see the Annual Report on Form 10-K for each Shareholder or its parent corporation (other than Buckeye 
Power Generating, LLC, Kentucky Utilities Company and Louisville Gas and Electric Company) filed with the 
SEC. None ofthe above-mentioned additional information regarding the Shareholders is part of this Official 
Statement, nor is any such information incorporated into this Official Statement, and neither the Company nor the 
Underwriters take any responsibility for the accuracy or completeness thereof 

There are no restrictions in the Loan Agreement on OVEC's ability to incur additional indebtedness. 

The Loan Agreement does not contain any restrictions on the ability of OVEC to incur additional indebtedness and 
tiierefore, OVEC may be able to incur substantial additional indebtedness. If OVEC incurs additional indebtedness, 
the related risks it faces may intensify. 

There are no limitation on liens in the Loan Agreement. 

OVEC's obligations under die Loan Agreement are not secured by any mortgage, lien, security interest, pledge, 
charge or other encumbrance (collectively, a "Lien") upon the assets of OVEC and will rank equally with all of 
OVEC's other unsecured indebtedness. OVEC currently has no outstanding secured debt. The Loan Agreement does 
not limit the ability of OVEC or any of its subsidiaries to create, assume or incur any Lien upon the assets of OVEC. 
The Loan Agreement does not limit OVEC's ability to create a Lien on its assets for the benefit ofthe owners of its 
existing indebtedness or future indebtedness without creating a similar Uen for the owners of the Bonds. 

At August 31, 2009, OVEC had indebtedness outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of $1,291 million. At 
August 31, 2009, an aggregate of $1,191 million of this indebtedness has provisions that Umit (subject to certain 
exceptions) OVEC's ability to issue secured debt unless, at the time the secured debt is issued, OVEC also equally 
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secures such outstanding unsecured indebtedness. The Loan Agreement does not contain this provision. As a result, 
if m the future OVEC were to issue secured debt, SI,191 million of the unsecured indebtedness outstanding at 
August 31, 2009 would also become secured. In such case, OVEC's obligations under the Loan Agreement would 
be effectively subordinated to such secured debt. As noted above, there is no limit on the amount of debt that OVEC 
may issue under the Loan Agreement and, in the future, OVEC may incur indebtedness which includes provisions 
similar to those applicable to other outstanding indebtedness. 

There are no restrictions in the Loan Agreement on OVEC's ability to amend or terminate the ICPA or the 
OVEC-IKEC Power Agreement 

The Loan Agreement does not contain any restrictions on die ability of OVEC to amend the terms of the ICPA or 
the OVEC-IKEC Power Agreement or to terminate either agreement, including OVEC's ability to shorten the term 
ofeach agreement to prior to March 13, 2026, which is the currently stated term for each agreement. It is possible 
that certain amendments to or a change in the term or the tennination of either the ICPA or the OVEC-IKEC Power 
Agreement prior to the maturity ofthe Bonds could adversely affect OVEC's ratings and the ratings on the Bonds, 
as well as negatively impact OVEC's ability to meet its obligations, including its obligation to pay the principal of 
and interest on the Bonds. 

Pursuant to the ICPA, the Sponsoring Companies are required to pay, as part of the demand charge for available 
power, 100% of all interest costs and debt amortization relating to financings for capital improvements, including 
the Bonds, and such obligations ofthe Sponsoring Companies are several, but not joint and several under the ICPA, 
which means that each Sponsoring Company is only Uable for its obligations and not the obligations of the other 
Sponsoring Companies under the ICPA. The Loan Agreement does not contain any limitations on OVEC's abiUty 
to consent to amendments to said obligations of each of die Sponsoring Companies under the ICPA. Thus, OVEC 
and the Sponsoring Companies could modify the respective obligations of some or all ofthe Sponsoring Companies 
and the failure of some or all of the Sponsoring Companies to provide sufficient demand charges to OVEC could 
adversely affect OVEC's ratings and the ratings on the Bonds, as well as negatively impact OVEC's ability to pay 
the principal of and interest on the Bonds. 

The ICPA permits, with certain limitations, each Sponsoring Company to assign its rights and obligations under the 
ICPA to certain permitted assignees. Such assignees are either (i) a Sponsoring Company or its affiliates with an 
investment grade credit rating by Moody's and S&P, (ii) a Sponsoring Company or affiliate with a non-investment 
grade credit rating so long as the assigning Sponsoring Company guarantees the obligations of such person, or (iii) a 
non-Sponsoring Company third party with an investment grade credit rating by Moody's and S&P followmg the 
deUvery of a right of first offer to the remaining Sponsoring Compames of such transferring Sponsoring Company's 
interests in the ICPA. The Loan Agreement does not limit OVEC's ability to consent to changes to this provision of 
the ICPA. Given OVEC's reliance on payments from the Sponsoring Companies to meet its debt obligations, 
including its obligation to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds, an assignment of the interest of a 
Sponsoring Company to a non-investment grade entity without the currently required guarantee, for example, could 
adversely affect OVEC's ratings and the ratings on the Bonds, as well as negatively impact OVEC's ability to pay 
the principal of and interest on the Bonds. 

There is no covenant of OVEC in the Loan Agreement to comply with or enforce the ICPA or the OVEC-
IKEC Power Agreement 

The Loan Agreement does not contain a covenant of OVEC to comply with or enforce the provisions ofthe ICPA or 
the OVEC-IKEC Power Agreement. Given OVEC's reliance on payments from the Sponsoring Companies 
pw^uant to the ICPA to meet its debt obligations, including its obligation to pay the principal of and interest on the 
Bonds, a failure by OVEC to comply with or enforce the provisions ofthe ICPA could adversely affect OVEC's 
ratings and the ratings on the Bonds, as well as negatively impact OVEC's ability to pay the principal of and interest 
on the Bonds. 
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The Loan Agreement does not limit OVEC from seUing, leasing, assigning, transferring or otherwise 
disposing of all or any part of its right, title and interest in and to the ICPA or the OVEC-IKEC Power 
Agreement. 

The Loan Agreement does not limit OVEC from selling, leasing, assignuig, transferring or otherwise disposing of aU 
or any part of its right, title and interest in and to the ICPA or the OVEC-IKEC Power Agreement. Any such sale, 
lease, assignment, transfer or other disposition of all or any part of OVEC's right, title and interest in and to the 
ICPA or the OVEC-IKEC Power Agreement could adversely affect OVEC's ratings and the ratings on the Bonds, as 
well as negatively impact OVEC's ability to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds. 

The credit ratings on OVEC's senior unsecured debt are subject to change. Any reductions in OVEC's credit 
ratings could increase financing costs and the cost of maintaining certain contractual relationships or limit 
OVEC's ability to obtain financing on favorable terms. 

OVEC's senior unsecured debt is currently rated "Baa3" with a negative outlook by Moody's and "BBB-" with a 
stable outlook by S&P. A security rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities. The rating is 
subject to revision or withdrawal at any time and each rating should be evaluated independently of any other rating. 

OVEC cannot offer any assurance that its current ratings will remain in effect for any given period of time or that a 
rating will not be lowered or witiidrawn entirely by a rating agency if, m its judgment, circumstances so warrant. 
The impact of any future downgrade would result in an mcrease in OVEC's cost of borrowings, but would not result 
in any defaults or accelerations as a resuh ofthe rating changes. 

OVEC may be required to obtain additional permanent fmancing (1) to fimd its capital expenditures, investments 
and debt security redemptions and maturities and (2) to further strengthen its capital stmcture. If the rating agencies 
downgrade OVEC's credit ratings, particularly below investment grade, or initiate negative outlooks thereon, or 
withdraw its ratings, it may significantly limit OVEC's access to the short and long-term debt capital markets and 
OVEC's borrowing costs would increase. In addition, OVEC would likely be required to pay a higher interest rate 
in future financings, and its potential pool of investors and fimding sources would likely decrease. 

The operation of the Company's electric generation plants and transmission facilities involves risks that could 
adversely affect the Company's cost of operations* 

The Company is subject to various risks associated with operating its electric generation plants and transmission 
faciUties, any of which could adversely affect its cost of operations. These risks uiclude: 

failure of equipment or processes, operator or maintenance errors or other events resulting in power 
outages or reduced output; 

- availability of friel and fuel transportation; 

- dismptions in the transmission or distribution of power; 

- changes in applicable laws and regulations, includmg environmental laws and regulations; and 

- catastrophic events such as fires, hurricanes, explosions, floods, terrorist attacks or other similar 
occurrences to its faciUties or to facilities upon which the Company depends. 

Unplanned outages of generating units and transmission facilities due to mechanical failures or other problems occur 
from time to time and are an inherent risk ofthe Company's business. Unplanned outages typically increase the 
Company's operation and maintenance expenses. All oftiie units ofthe Company's generation plants, and a 
significant portion ofthe Company's transmission faciUties, were originally constructed many years ago. Older 
generation and transmission equipment, even if maintained in accordance with good engineering practices, may 
require significant capital expenditures to keep it operating at high efficiency and to meet regulatory and 
environmental requirements. This equipment is also likely to require periodic upgrading and improvement. 
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The cost of repairing damage to the Company's generation plants and transmission faciUties due to storms, natural 
disasters, wars, terrorist acts and other catastrophic events may adversely affect the Company's costs of operations 
or cash flows. These actions could also result in adverse changes in the insurance markets and dismptions of power 
and fuel markets. In addition, the Company's generation plants and transmission faciUties are directly or indirectly 
coimected to electric transmission infi^stmcture which the Company does not own and over which it does not 
exercise control of operations or maintenance. The Company's operations could be directly or indirectly harmed by 
fiiilures associated with either its own or third parties' generation and transmission facilities, including explosions, 
fires, inclement weather, natural disasters, mechanical failure, unscheduled downtkne, equipment intermptions, 
remediation, chemical spills, discharges or releases of toxic or hazardous substances or gases and other 
environmental risks. Severe damage to or destmction of property and equipment and environmental damage may 
result in suspension of operations and the imposition of civil or criminal penalties. Moreover, the occurrence or risk 
of occurrence of future terrorist attacks, related acts of war or failures in generation and transmission uifrastmcture 
could also adversely affect the U.S. economy or otherwise impact the Company's results of operations and financial 
condition in unpredictable ways. 

Should one or more ofthe events described above occur, the Company's cost of operations may significantly 
increase. The Company has insurance covering certain of its plants, including property damage insurance, 
commercial general liability insurance, and boiler and machinery coverage, each in amounts that the Company 
considers appropriate. However, the Company's insurance policies are subject to certain lunits and deductibles as 
well as policy exclusions, the Company cannot assure purchasers ofthe Bonds that insurance coverage will be 
available in the fiiture at current costs or on commercially reasonable terms or that tiie insurance proceeds received 
for any loss or damage, including any loss or damage to the Company's generation plants and transmission facilities 
or losses caused by outages, will be sufficient to restore the loss or damage without negative impact on the 
Company's costs of operations. 

The interests ofthe Sponsoring Companies may conflict with the interests ofthe bondholders or OVEC. 

All of OVEC's capital stock is owned either by the Sponsoring Companies or by subsidiaries or other affiliates of 
the Sponsoring Companies. Therefore, the Sponsoring Companies direct OVEC's activities and have the ability to 
control the Company's management, policies, and financing decisions. In addition, the Sponsoring Companies may 
have interests that conflict with those ofthe bondholders or tiie Company's interests and, except as required by law 
or contractual obligations, the Sponsoring Companies have no duties to otiier parties with respect to the conduct of 
the Company's business. 

The credit ratings on the Bonds are subject to change. 

The Bonds are currently rated "Baa3" with a negative outlook by Moody's and "BBB-" by S&P, each based upon 
the financial condition of OVEC. A rating reflects only the views ofthe rating agency assigning such rating and an 
explanation of the significance of such rating or the status of any review of such rating may be obtained from such 
agency. There is no assurance that any rating will continue for any given period of time, or that any rating will not 
be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by any such rating agency if, in its judgment, circumstances so warrant. 
Any such downward revision or withdrawal of any such rating may have an adverse effect on the market price ofthe 
Bonds. 

Risks Associated with the Bonds 

An investment in the Bonds involves certain risks, including the risk of nonpayment of interest or principal due to 
the owners. The risk of nonpayment depends to a large degree upon the financial condition of the Company and is 
affected by a number of factors that should be considered by prospective purchasers, along with the other 
infomiation presented in this Official Statement and the Appendices hereto, in judging the suitability of an 
investment in the Bonds. 
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The Bonds are unsecured obligations. 

The Loan Agreement is an unseciffed obligation of OVEC. The Bonds are not secured by a mortgage, security 
interest or other lien on the Project financed by the Bonds or any other properties ofthe Company. 

Limited Obligations 

The Bonds are special obligations ofthe Issuer, and are to be paid solely from, and will be secured by a pledge of, 
payments to be made by OVEC to the Issuer under the terms of tiae Loan Agreement and the Note. The Loan 
Agreement and the Note are unsecured obUgations of OVEC. The Bonds will not be secured by a mortgage or 
security interest in tiie Project or any otiier property ofthe Company. The Bonds do not now and will never 
constitute a charge against the general credit ofthe Issuer, the State of Ohio, or any political subdivision thereof 

Covenants contained in certain of OVEC's financing agreements restrict its operating, financing and 
investing activities. 

OVEC's principal financing agreements (not including the Loan Agreement) contain restrictive covenants that limit 
its ability to, among otiier things: 

borrow funds; 

incur liens and guarantee debt; 

enter into a merger or otiier change of control transaction; 

make investments; and 

dispose of assets. 

These agreements may limit OVEC's abiUty to implement strategic decisions, including its ability to access capital 
markets or seU assets without using the proceeds to reduce debt. In addition, OVEC is required to meet certain 
financial tests under some of its financing agreements, including consoUdated net worth. OVEC's failure to comply 
with the covenants contained in its financing agreements could result in an event of default, which may have an 
adverse effect on its financial condition. 

OVEC's substantial variable-rate indebtedness exposes OVEC to interest rate risk. 

Certain of OVEC's indebtedness accmes interest at variable rates based on prevailing interest rates. If interest rates 
rise, OVEC will be required to meet higher debt service obligations. As a general matter, OVEC is aUowed under 
the ICPA to recover from the Sponsoring Companies its actual mterest expenses, including any increases in those 
expenses. However, if any ofthe Sponsoring Companies were to fail to fUlly meet its payment obligations under tiie 
ICPA such that OVEC's revenues were insufficient to cover OVEC's interest payment obligations, OVEC would 
have difficulty meeting its debt service obligations, including its payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds. 

Risk of Taxability 

The failure ofthe Issuer or OVEC to comply with their covenants to meet certain requirements ofthe Code (see TAX 
EXEMPTION in this Official Statement) could cause the interest on tiie Bonds to become includable in gross income 
ofthe owners thereof for federal income tax purposes retroactively to the date of issuance ofthe Bonds. Under the 
circumstances described in tiiis Official Statement under the caption THE BONDS—Redemption of Bonds -
Extraordinary Mandatory Redemption of Bonds, the Bonds may be redeemed on any date in whole (or in part in 
certain circumstances) without premium following the occurrence of certain events as described therein. The 
Indenture does not provide for the payment of any additional interest or penalty in the event that the interest on the 
Bonds becomes includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes. 

A-8 



Matters Relating to Enforcement 

Enforcement ofthe remedies under the Indenture and the Loan Agreement may be limited or restricted by federal 
and state laws relating to bankmptcy, fraudulent conveyances, and rights of creditors, by application of general 
principles of equity affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights and liens securing such rights, by zoning, 
subdivision or other municipal codes and ordinances and by the exercise of judicial authority by state or federal 
courts, and may be subject to discretion in the event of litigation or statutory remedy procedures, and may be 
substantially delayed in the event of litigation or statutory remedy procedures. The various legal opinions to be 
delivered concurrentiy with the issuance and delivery ofthe Bonds will he qualified as to the enforceability ofthe 
various legal instruments by limitations imposed by local, state and federal laws, mlings and decisions affecting 
remedies, and by general prmciples of equity and by bankmptcy, reorganization, insolvency, moratorium or other 
similar laws affecting the rights of creditors. 

Suitability of Investment 

An investment in the Bonds involves a certain degree of risk. The interest rate home by the Bonds is intended to 
compensate tiie investor for assuming tiiis element of risk. Prospective investors should carefully examine this 
Official Statement, including the Appendices hereto, and their abiUty to bear the economic risk of such an 
mvestment, and then determine whether or not the Bonds are an appropriate investment for them. 

Early Redemption or Mandatory Tender 

Pursuant to the terms ofthe Indenture, the Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity (see THE BONDS— 
Redemption of Bonds in this Official Statement). Under tiiose circumstances, a Bondholder may not have the 
opportunity to hold those Bonds for a time period consistent with such Bondholder's original investment intentions. 

Secondary Markets and Prices 

No assurance can be given that any secondary market will develop following the completion ofthe offermg ofthe 
Bonds. OVEC will not be obligated to repurchase any of the Bonds, and no assurance can be given that a secondary 
market for the Bonds will develop following the completion ofthe offering ofthe Bonds. The Bonds are not readily 
liquid, and no person should invest in the Bonds with fimds such person may need to convert readily into cash. 
Bondholders should be prepared to hold their Bonds to the stated maturity date. 

Financial Summary 

Capitalization 

The table below outiines OVEC's capitalization at year-end 2007, at year-end 2008 and at fundmg ofthe 
Bonds and the 2009A-D Bonds assuming a June 30,2009 issue date: 

(in thousands) 
Debt 
Senior Notes 
2009 A-D Bonds 
The Bonds 
Line ofCredit Borrowings - Long 
Term 

Total Debt 
Equitv 
Common Stock $100 par value— 
Autiiorized, 300,000 shares; 
Outstanding, 100,000 shares 
Retained Eamings 

Total Equity 

Total Capitalization 

12/31/2007 

$722,961 

$722,961 

$10,000 

2,916 
$12,916 

$735,877 

98% 

2% 

100% 

12/31/2008 

$1,045,318 

50,000 

$1,095,318 

$10,000 

2,507 
$12,507 

$1,107,825 

99% 

\% 

100% 

Pro Forma 6/30/2009 

$1,127,857 
100,000 
100,000 

$1,327,857 

$10,000 

5,086 
$15,086 

$U42,943 

99% 

1% 

100% 
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Summary of Financials 

The table below summarizes certain historical financial information of OVEC through 2008. 

(in thousands unless otherwise noted) 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 
Net Generation (MWh) 

Operatmg Revenues 

Operating Expenses 

Average Price $/MWh to Sponsors 

15,810 

$406,283 

$380,972 

$24 

16,638 

$468,546 

$442,420 

$28 

16,468 

$523,927 

$494,893 

$31 

15,110 

$531,362 

$494,808 

$35 

15,260 

$621,813 

$566,798 

$41 

Power Sales Agreements 

OVEC, on formation, entered into two prmcipal power sales agreements: 

- the DOE Power Agreement between OVEC and tiie United States of America, currently actir^ by and 
through the Atomic Energy Commission's successor, the Secretary of Energy, the statutory head ofthe 
U.S. Department of Energy; and 

- the ICPA. 

The term oftiie ICPA (as amended and restated, effective March 13,2006) continues until the first to occur ofthe 
foUowing: (i) the sale or other disposition of OVEC's and IKEC's electric generation facilities, (ii) the permanent 
cessation ofthe operation ofthose generation facilities, or (iii) March 13,2026. 

OVEC also entered into a power sales agreement with OVEC's wholly owned subsidiary, IKEC, which OVEC 
refers to as the "OVEC-IKEC Power Agreement." 

The DOE Power Agreement 

Under the DOE Power Agreement, OVEC was obligated to sell to the DOE essentially all of its electric generating 
capacity for use at the DOE's Pike County, Ohio uranium enrichment facilities m retum for an agreement by the 
DOE to pay the costs ofthe ownership, operation and maintenance of OVEC's generation and transmission 
facilities, as well as to provide a retum on equity to OVEC's shareholders. 

In September 2000, the DOE notified OVEC of its election to termkiate the DOE Power Agreement in connection 
witii the cessation of uranium enriching operations at its Pike County plant, which became effective on April 30, 
2003. 

Upon tiie termination of the DOE Power Agreement, OVEC entered into an arranged power agreement with the 
DOE under which OVEC purchases power from third parties for delivery to the DOE. The DOE reimburses OVEC 
for the costs of all power purchases under this agreement and pays OVEC an administrative charge. The current 
arranged power agreement may be terminated by either party on 30 days' prior notice. 

The ICPA 

OVEC and the Sponsoring Companies signed the original ICPA on July 10,1953, to support the DOE Power 
Agreement and provide for excess energy sales to the Sponsoring Companies of power not utilized by the DOE or 
its predecessors. Since the termination ofthe DOE Power Agreement on April 30,2003, the Sponsoring Companies 
have, under the terms ofthe ICPA, the right to OVEC's entire generating capacity and the right to purchase all oftiie 
energy it generates. OVEC and the Sponsoring Companies entered mto an amended and restated ICPA, effective 
March 13,2006, extending the ICPA's term for an additional 20 years. 

A-IO 



Each Sponsoring Company can reserve a percentage, called a power participation ratio ("PPR") of available power 
and energy, and a Sponsoring Company that reserves power is entitled to a commensurate amount of available 
energy. The PPR ofeach Sponsoring Company is based on tiie ownership interest of such Sponsoring Company and 
its affiliates in OVEC. 

The payments requfred to be made by the Sponsoring Companies include monthly demand and energy charges and 
transmission charges. The demand and transmission charges are designed to cover all of OVEC's non-fuel related 
costs of owning, operating and maintaining its generation and transmission facilities - including debt service costs -
and to provide a return on equity to its Shareholders. The energy charges paid by the Sponsoring Companies 
reimburse OVEC for aU of its fuel-related costs, with each Sponsoring Company paying its share ofthose costs 
based on the amount of energy taken by such Sponsoring Company. The Sponsoring Companies are obUgated under 
the ICPA to pay the demand and transmission charges even if OVEC fails to deliver power and regardless of tiie 
amount ofthe available capacity of OVEC's generation facilities. In addition, the Sponsoring Companies must 
reimburse OVEC for all costs of replacements and additional facilities. 

The share ofthe total demand and transmission charges payable for any month by each Sponsoring Company is 
based on the Sponsoring Company's entitlement to power for such montii. The share ofthe total energy charge 
payable for any month by each Sponsoring Company is based on the amount of energy taken by the Sponsoring 
Company for such month. 

Under the ICPA, OVEC is entitied to bill the Sponsoring Companies on a semi-monthly basis for payment of its 
estimated demand and energy costs m the applicable serai-monthly period. OVEC generally bills the Sponsoring 
Companies on a monthly basis to adjust for its actual demand and energy costs for the entire month. Under the terms 
ofthe ICPA, payments are required to be made promptly and are generally paid within 15 days. Throughout 
OVEC's 56-year history, no Sponsoring Company has ever defaulted on a payment. 

Each oftiie Sponsoring Companies either owns, or is a subsidiary or affiliate of a company that own, OVEC's 
capital stock. The Sponsoring Companies are not liable for OVEC's indebtedness, including OVEC's obUgations 
under the Loan Agreement. 

OVEC-IKEC Power Agreement 

The principal contractual arrangements between OVEC and IKEC are contained in the OVEC-IKEC Power 
Agreement OVEC is obUgated under the OVEC-IKEC Power Agreement to purchase aU power, and the energy 
associated therewith, generated at IKEC's CUfty Creek Plant. OVEC's payments for such power are determined 
such that, when added to revenues received by IKEC from any other source, they are sufficient to enable IKEC to 
pay all of its operating and other expenses, including all income and other taxes, and any interest and regular 
amortization requirements applicable to any indebtedness for borrowed funds incurred by IKEC, IKEC currently has 
no long-term indebtedness. IKEC is obUgated to transmit to OVEC any and all power, and the energy associated 
therewith, generated at the Cliffy Creek Plant. IKEC is further obligated to transmit and deliver to OVEC all power, 
and tiie energy associated therewith, suppUed to IKEC by the Sponsoring Companies and to deliver to the 
Sponsoring Companies designated by OVEC, all power, and the enei^ associated therewith, supplied to IKEC by 
OVEC. The term of Uie OVEC-IKEC Power Agreement is coterminous with the term of tiie ICPA. 
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1,086 
5 

1955 
10,171 

88.89% 
$21.69 
$28.03 

1,304 
6 

1955 
10,289 
85.4% 
$21.77 
$29.66 

2,390 
11 

1955 
10,236 
86.9% 
$21.25 
S28.93 

OVEC/IKEC Plant Description 

OVEC and IKEC, own and operate two coal-fired electric power generating plants. OVEC's Kyger Creek Plant and 
IKEC's Clifty Creek Plant. 

Operating Statistics 

Kyger Creek Clifty Creek Combined 
Nameplate Capacity (MW) 
Number of generating units 
Commissioning year 
Net heat rate (BTU/kWh) - 2008 
Availability factor (%) - 2004-2008 avg. 
Fuel cost ($/MWh)-2008 

Total production costs ($/MWh) - 2008 , . . ^ _ ^ . ^ _ ^ ^ ^ » . _ « . _ _ 

Each of Clifty's six units and Kyger's five units has a capacity of 217.26 MW. The Cliffy units and Kyger Unit 1 are 
equipped with General Electric steam turbines and hydrogen-cooled generators, while Kyger Units 2 through 5 are 
equipped with Westinghouse steam turbines and hydrogen-cooled generators. Each unit is also equipped with a 
once-tiirough turbine condenser utilizing water from tiie Ohio River. The generators produce electricity at 15.5 kV 
which is then stepped up to 345 kV by three main transformers (one for each of three phases). 

The steam powering each ofthe eleven units is generated by Babcock & Wilcox ("B&W") open-pass reheat boilers 
(one for each unit). The primary fuel for these front-wall fu^d, wet bottom, subcritical dmm units is pulverized coal. 
Each unit has seven B&W type EL-70 pulverizers and 14 fishtail shaped burner nozzles (2 per pulverizer). The 
boilers are also equipped with oil lighters which are used primarily for start-ups and flame stabiUzation at low loads. 
The primary furnaces are operated at balance draft or slightly negative fumace pressure. Each unit is equipped with 
two forced-draft fans and one induced-draft fan. During the period of 1995 through 1999, overfire air modifications 
were completed on all eleven units, at a cost of $8.2MM ($4.2MM Kyger and S4MM CUfty), to meet Federal Clean 
Air Act nitrogen oxides (NO^) emissions requirements. Another modification to Kyger's boilers was the addition of 
iron ore injection directly into the primaiy fumace to aid furnace slag tapping. The iron ore injection system which 
includes storage silos, blowers, piping and nozzles was completed in 2000 at a cost of $2.6MM. 

New flue gas stacks were buiU and electrostatic precipitators ("ESP") installed during the period of 1977-1980. 
CUfty has two 983-foot stacks each serving three units, and Kyger has a single 1000-foot stack. Cold-side ESPs 
were installed on all Kyger units and CUfty Units 1 through 5. Clifty Unit 6 has a hot-side ESP manufactured by 
Western Precipitation Division of Joy Manufacturing Company. Kyger's ESPs were manufectured by Flakt, Inc. 
Clifty's cold-side ESPs were manufactured by Lodge-CottreU Division of Dresser Industries, Inc. The ESP's and 
stacks cost was approximately $184MM (S79MM Kyger and $105MM Cliffy). 

In recent years, the use of lower sulfur coals at both plants has necessitated the installation of SO3 flue gas 
conditioning systems to improve fly ash collection by decreasing the resistivity ofthe ash. The systems, 
manufactured by WALHCO, were installed on Clifty Units 1 through 5 in 1998 and on all Kyger units in 2001 at a 
total cost of $9.5MM ($4.0MM Kyger and $5.5MM Clifty). 

Once collected, the fly ash at Cliffy is conveyed dry to silos where the ash is loaded to tmcks either to be sold as a 
concrete ingredient or hauled to the plant's landfiU. The CUfty dry fly ash conversion project was completed in 1993 
at a cost of approximately $17.8MM. 

The fly ash at Kyger is sluiced to the plant's fly ash pond for disposal. In 2001, Kyger closed the north fly ash pond 
with a clay cap and dredging material from the South fly ash and bottom ash pond. The project cost was 
approximately $4.3MM. 

Other ash storage faciUties include one bottom ash pond at Kyger and one bottom ash pond at Cliffy. Both plants 
also sell bottom ash for use as blasting grit, roofmg granules, and snow and ice control. 
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Coal is delivered by barge to botii plants. Each plant has two barge unloadmg tower cranes from which the coal may 
be directed to the unit coal bunkers for consumption or to storage. Revisions made durmg Cliffy's coal switch 
project (completed in 1994 at a cost of $79.5MM) accommodate the storage and blending of bituminous and low-
sulfur subbituminous coal supplies. Cliffy presently bums a blend of 75% subbituminous coal from the Powder 
River Basin ("PRB") in Wyoming and 25% eastem bituminous coal. In 2006, Kyger Creek completed modifications 
to the boilers and coal handling systems to allow tiie plant to store and bum a coal blend of up to 80% PRB coal. 
The Kyger Creek PRB project cost was approxunately $53MM. Presentiy, Kyger bums a blend of roughly 70% 
PRB coal and 30% eastern bituminous coal. Prior to these modifications, the PRB portion of Kyger's fuel blend was 
limited to approximately 35%^ 

In 2002 and 2003, selective catalytic reduction ("SCR") systems were retrofitted to ten ofthe eleven Kyger and 
CUffy units at an approximate cost of $355MM ($191MM Kyger and $164MM Cliffy). SCR systems convert NOx iti 
the flue gas exiting the boilers into elemental nitrogen and water by mixing ammonia into the flue gas stream and 
passing the mixture through layers of catalyst. The required amounts of ammonia are suppUed by each plant's 
Ammonia On Demand ("AOD") system which use a feedstock of pelletized urea. This equipment has been operated 
during the five-month ozone season (May through September) each year beginning May 31,2004 and will be 
operated year-round begkmmg January 1,2009 to comply with state and federal NOx emission reduction 
requirements. 

OVEC/IKEC Transmission System 

The OVEC/IKEC transmission system was constmcted in the early I950's. The system is operated at 345 kV with 
interconnections to other utilities at 345 kV and 138 kV. It is comprised of 776 circuit miles of 345 kV lines and 
four substations. 

The transmission lines include 1,561 steel lattice towers, approximately four towers per mile with an average span of 
1,310 feet. The phase conductors are 1,414 KCM aluminum, steel core, paper expanded and the neutral conductor is 
159KCM Aluminum Conductor Steel Reinforced. OVEC has approximately 7,036 acres of right-of-way in Ohio, 
Indiana and Kentucky. 

Oftiie four substations, one each is located adjacent to tiie Cliffy Creek Plant and tiie Kyger Creek Plant. These 
substations allow for the cormection ofthe generating units to the transmission system along with interconnections 
to other utilities, and are arranged in a breaker and a half scheme. The other large substation. Pierce, is located near 
Cincmnati, Ohio and is also a breaker and a half layout. The Dearbom substation located near Lawrenceburg, 
Indiana is a bus extension from the Tanners Creek Plant owned by American Electric Power Company, Inc. ("AEP") 
and has a single breaker per Une. In addition to the four aforementioned substations, OVEC also ties at 345 kV to a 
Duke Energy owned station near Florence, Kentucky. There are 345/138 kV transformers located at the CUfty, 
Pierce and Sargents substations to allow for 138 kV interconnections. Other intercoimections at 345 kV exist at 
Clifty, Pierce, Dearbom, and Kyger along with indh-ect ties through the DOE substation. 

Although OVEC is currentiy not a member of any regional transmission organization, OVEC has contracted witii 
the PJM Interconnection LLC ("PJM") to provide reliability coordination services. As OVEC's reliabilify 
coordinator, PJM has operational autiiority to perform activities as govemed by the North American Reliabilify 
Corporation ("NERC") Interconnection Reliability Operations and Coordination Standards dealing with the 
reliabilify ofthe interconnected electrical system. The OVEC/IKEC transmission system is intercoimected with 
members of PJM, and the Midwest Independent System Operator, fric, ("MISO") and the transmission system oftiie 
electric utilify subsidiaries of E.ON U.S. LLC, as weU as transmission facilities owned by tiie DOE (OVEC's sole 
retail customer). 

Coal Supply 

The Company procures coal at an annual rate of approximately 8.0MM tons for use at the Cliffy Creek and Kyger 
Creek plants. The Company has coal supply agreements with certam nonaffiliated companies that expfre at various 
dates from the year 2009 through 2017. Pricing for coal under these contracts is subject to contract provisions and 
adjustments. The Company currently has approximately 100% of its coal requirements under long-term (12 montiis 
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or more) agreements. Through 2009, it is expected that both plants will continue to bum a high percentage (up to 
75%) of low-sulfur subbitummous coal. 

OVEC/IKEC Coal Supply 

Average remaining term 
of supply agreements 
% hedged in 2009 
% hedged in 2010 
% hedged in 2011 

Subbituminous 

0.6 years 
100% 
36% 
26% 

Bituminous 

1.6 years 
100% 
94% 
99% 

Combined 

1.2 years 
100% 
62% 
61% 

Transportation contracts Rail - Union Pacific - Expires 12/31/2009 
Barge (OVEC) - Ingram Barge - Expires 9/30/2009 (New Contract to 12/31/2013) 
Barge (IKEC) - MEMCO - Expires 12/31/2013 
Rail cars - 993 leased - Leases expire 12/31/2010 to 12/31/2025 

Environmental Compliance Project 

Flue gas desulfurization ("FGD") systems are being constmcted for botii Kyger Creek and Cliffy Creek with initial 
operation projected for 2010 and 2012, respectively. The FGD systems are designed to remove 98% ofthe sulfur 
dioxide ("SO2") from gases exhausted fixjm the plants' boilers. Kyger Creek's FGD system is designed for coal with 
SO2 content of up to 7.5 Ibs/MMBtu. The coal SO2 specification for CUfty Creek's FGD design is 5.0 Ibs/MMBtu. 
The FGD designs and the capability to blend subbituminous and bituminous coals at both plants provide significant 
fuel flexibility and improve the Company's fuel procurement position. 

FGD Project Equipment 

Chiyoda CT-121 jet bubbling reactor absorbers (2 per plant) 

New flue gas discharge stack with two flue liners (1 per plant) 

Flue booster fans (2 per absorber) 

Reagent (limestone) handling systems and preparation systems 

By-product (gypsum) dewatering systems 

FGD wastewater treatment 

By-product handling systems and disposal landfill 

Auxiliary electrical system 

Various auxiliary systems including oxidation air, service water, reclaim water, flue gas quenchmg, and 
controls. 

Properties 

In addition to two generation facilities and transmission fecilities, OVEC also owns 21,896 square feet of office 
space in Piketon, Ohio, which it uses as its corporate headquarters. It also owns garage space and land, which it uses 
for the operation of a transmission maintenance crew. In addition, OVEC has constmcted a command center, data 
center, training area, and office space in a single 8,500 square feet stmcture located at tiie Piketon, Ohio office. 

Employees 

As of July 1,2009, OVEC and IKEC employed 818 full-time employees. As of tiiat date, tiie Kyger Creek 
Plant employed 351 employees, of which 251 are represented by tiie Utilify Workers Union of An^rica (AFL-CIO). 
The Clifty Creek Plant employs 373 employees, all non-union. In addition, as of this date, OVEC has 94 system 
employees reporting to tiie corporate headquarters located in Piketon, Ohio. Management believes that its relations 
with employees and their representatives are excellent. 
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Legal Matters 

OVEC is involved in a number of legal and administrative proceedmgs incident to the normal course of OVEC's 
business. In tiie opinion of OVEC's management, based on tbe advice of counsel, any liabilify to OVEC relative to 
tiiese ordinary course proceedings wiU not have a material adverse effect on OVEC's operations and financial 
condition. 

Regulation 

OVEC is also affected by various federal and state laws and regulations pertammg to utilities, mcluding ttie laws and 
regulations described below. 

Federal Energy Regulatorv Commission 

Under tiie Federal Power Act ("FPA"), the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission ("FERC") has exclusive 
jurisdiction over the rates, terms and conditions of wholesale sales and tiie transmission of electricity in interstate 
commerce by public utilities. The FPA requires all pubUc utilities to file rate schedules with tiie FERC prior to 
commencement of wholesale sales or transmission of elecfricity. In addition, a public utility is subject to financial 
and organizational regulation by FERC under the FPA, including approval requirements relating to dispositions of 
jurisdictional faciUties, as well as a number of accounting, recordkeeping and reporting requirements. Each of 
OVEC and IKEC is a public utiUty and therefore subject to regulation by FERC under tiie FPA. The ICPA and the 
OVEC-IKEC Power Agreement have all been filed witii, and accepted by, FERC under tiie FPA as rate schedules 
(including all modifications to tiie ICPA that have been entered into by OVEC and the Sponsoring Companies) and 
therefore the demand, energy and otiier charges payable under those agreements constitute FERC-authorized rates. 

As part ofthe repeal oftiie PubUc Utility Holding Company Act of 1935 and tiie enactment ofthe PubUc UtiUty 
Holding Company Act of 2005 ("PUHCA 2005"), Congress has granted additional autiiority to flie FERC over 
electric utilities and tiieir affiUates. PUHCA 2005 requires holdmg companies and companies within a holding 
company system to provide FERC and state regulators with access to books and records, and provides for FERC 
review of allocation of costs for non-power goods or services between regulated and unregulated affiliates. 

State Utilitv Regulation 

Botii OVEC and IKEC are subject to state utility regulation. OVEC, whose operations are principally in Ohio, is 
subject to regulation by tiie Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, while IKEC, whose operations are principally in 
Indiana, is subject to regulation by the Indiana UtiUty Regulatory Commission. OVEC also owns electric power 
transmission facilities in Kentucky and therefore is subject to regulation by tiie Kentucky Public Service 
Commission. This state regulation covers financial and organizational matters (including the abandonment of 
fecilities), as well as, in tiie case ofthe PubUc UtiUties Commission of Ohio, OVEC's provision of electric service to 
the DOE under retail power sales agreements. Because of FERC's exclusive jurisdiction over wholesale sales of 
electricity in interstate commerce, however, none of tiiese state utility commissions have jurisdiction over OVEC's 
sales of electricity to the Sponsoring Companies, including the rates payable under tiie ICPA. 

Environmental Matters 

OVEC and IKEC are subject to a number of federal, state and local requirements relating to tiie protection oftiie 
envu-onmem, and tiie safety and healtii of OVEC and IKEC's personnel and tiie public. These requirements relate to 
a broad range of OVEC and IKEC's activities, including: tiie discharge of pollutants into the air and water; tiie 
identification, generation, storage, handling, transportation, disposal, record keeping, labeling, reporting of and 
emergency response in connection with hazardous and toxic materials and wastes associated with OVEC and 
IKEC's operations; and safety and health standards, practices and procedures that appfy to tiie workplace and to 
operation of OVEC and IKEC's facilities. In order to comply with tiiese requirements, OVEC and IKEC may need 
to spend substantial sums of money and devote other resources from time to time to: constmct or acquire new 
equipment; acqufre permits and/or marketable allowances or other emission credits for facility operations; modify or 
replace existing and proposed equipment; and clean up or decommission waste disposal areas, fuel storage and 
management faciUties and other locations and facilities. If OVEC and IKEC do not comply with environmental 
requirements that apply to OVEC and IKEC's operations, regulatory agencies could seek to impose on it civil. 
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administrative and/or criminal penalties as well as seek to curtail OVEC and IKEC's operations. Under some 
statutes and common law principles, private parties could also seek to impose civil fines or liabilities for property 
damage, personal injury and possibly other costs. 

Air Emissions 

OVEC and IKEC's faciUties are subject to the Federal Clean Air Act and many state and local laws and regulations 
relating to air pollution. These laws and regulations currentiy cover, among other pollutants, NO;i, groimd-level 
ozone, carbon monoxide, SO2 and particulate matter. 

Title IV of the 1990 Clean Air Act Amendments required the Company to reduce SO2 emissions in two phases: Phase I 
in 1995 and Phase II in 2000. The Company selected a fuel switching strategy to comply with the emission reduction 
requirements. The Company also purchased additional SO2 allowances. The cost of tiiese purchased aUowances was 
inventoried and included on an average cost basis in tiie cost of fiiel consumed when used. The cost of unused 
allowances at December 31,2008 and 2007 was $2.2MM and $11,8MM, respectively. 

Selective Catalvtic Reduction Program 

Title IV ofthe 1990 Clean Air Act Amendments also required the Company to comply with a NOx emission rate 
limit of 0.84 Ib/mmBtu m 2000. NOx is formed m exhaust gases fi^m the generators as a byproduct of coal 
combustion. The Company instaUed overfire air systems on all eleven units at the plants to comply with this limit. 
The total capital cost ofthe eleven overfire air systems was approximately $8.2MM. 

During 2002 and 2003, Ohio and Indiana finalized respective NOx State Implementation Plan Call regulations that 
required fiirther significant NOx emission reductions for coal buming power plants, to a maximum rate of 0.15 
pounds/MMBtu durmg the ozone control period (May through September). To accomplish this new level of 
emission reductions, the Company installed SCR systems on ten of its eleven units. The total capital cost of these 
SCR systems was approximately $355MM ($191MM at Kyger Creek and $164MM at CUffy Creek). Due to a 
different physical configuration of one ofthe generating units at Clifty Creek, OVEC did not retrofit an SCR system 
on the eleventh generating unit. However, by retrofitting the other ten generating units with SCR systems, OVEC's 
combined emission rate was reduced below the required level. 

The table below describes projects tiiat OVEC and IKEC have completed to comply with environmental regulations: 

Completed Projects 

Project Purpose Date 
Cost 

(SMM) 

CUfty Creek Coal Yard 
Modifications 

CUfty Creek and Kyger Creek 
Plants (all units) - boiler overfire 
air modifications 
CUfty Creek and Kyger Creek 
Plants (10 of 11 units) - installed 
SO3 flue gas conditioning systems 

CUffy Creek and Kyger Creek 
Plants (10 of 11 units) - instaUed 
selective catalytic reduction 
equipment 
Kyger Creek Coal Yard 
modifications 

To allow use of low-sulfur coal blend to 
meet Clean Air Act requirements for 
SO2 emissions 
To meet Clean Air Act requirement for 
NOK emissions 

To improve particulate collection of 
lower sulfur coal fly ash in electrostatic 
precipitators 

To comply with ozone season NO^ 
requirements 

To allow use of low-sulfur coal blend to 
meet Clean Air Act requirements for 
SO2 emissions 

1994 

1995 -1999 

1998 (CUfty 
Creek Plant), 
2001 (Kyger 
Creek Plant) 
2002-2003 

2006-2007 

79.5 

8.2 

9.5 

355.0 

53-0 
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Flue Gas Desulfurization Proiect 

On March 10,2005, the United States Environmental Protection Agency (the "EPA") signed tiie Clean Air Interstate 
Rule ("CAIR") that will require significant further reductions of SO2 and NO^ emissions from coal-bummg power 
plants. On March 15,2005, tiie EPA also signed tiie Clean Air Mercury Rule ("CAMR") tiiat will require significant 
mercury emission reductions for coal-buraing power plants. These emission reductions will be required in two 
phases: 2009 and 2015 for NO,; 2010 and 2015 for SO2; and 2010 and 2018 for mercury. Ohio and Indiana also 
subsequently finalized their respective versions of CAIR and CAMR. In response, the Company determined tiiat it 
would be necessary to install FGD systems at both plants to comply with these new mles and have since been 
conducting flie necessary engineering, permitting, and constmction to install tiiese new FGD systems. The cost of 
the new FGD systems and the associated landfills is estimated not to exceed $1.3 biUion. 

In Febmary 2008, tiie D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals issued a decision which vacated the federal CAMR and 
remanded the mle to the EPA with a determination that the mle be rewritten under the maximum achievable control 
technologies ("MACT") provision of Section 112(d) oftiie Clean Air Act. A group of electric utilities and tiie EPA 
requested a rehearing ofthe decision, which was denied by the court. Following tiiose denials, both the group of 
electric utilities and tiie EPA requested that tiie U.S. Supreme Court hear tiie case. However, in Febmary 2009, tiie 
EPA withdrew its request and the group of utilities' request was denied. These actions left the original court decision 
Ul place, which vacated the federal CAMR and remanded the rule to the EPA witii a determination that the mle be 
rewritten under the MACT provision of Section 112(d) oftiie Clean Air Act. 

In July 2008, tiie D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals issued a decision that vacated the federal CAIR and remanded the 
mle to the EPA. In September 2008, the EPA, a group of electric utiUties and other parties filed petitions for 
rehearing. In December 2008, the D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals granted the EPA's petition and remanded the rule 
to the EPA without vacatur, aUowing the federal CAIR to remain in effect while a new mle is developed and 
promulgated. 

The Kyger Creek and Cliffy Creek improvements include: 

- at Kyger Creek Plant, FGD for SO2 reductions and mercury control and a landfill (currentiy projected 
at not to exceed amounts of $51 SMM for tiie FGD and $52MM for Phase I oftiie landfill). 

- at Clifty Creek Plant, FGD for SO2 reductions and mercury control and a landfill (currentiy projected 
at not to exceed amounts of $619MM for tiie FGD and $42MM for Phase I ofthe landfill). 

The components associated witii the FGD system include two Chiyoda CT-121 jet bubbling reactor absorbers, a new 
stack at each plant, new FGD equipment buildings, booster fans and motors, tanks, electrical and mechanical 
equipment, river cells, limestone handUng, gypsum handling and transportation, landfills, pond closure and 
wastewater treatment. 

In December 2008, tiie Companies' Boards of Directors autiiorized a delay in constmction ofthe FGD at the Clifly 
Creek Plant of at least 18 montiis due to economic uncertainty in tiie capital markets. 

hi March 2009, the Board of Directors of OVEC authorized a delay in tiie anticipated tie-in ofthe first three 
generating units to die Kyger Creek Plant's FGD system pending an investigation into the stmctural integrity ofthe 
two newly constmcted jet bubbling reactors, which are major components ofthe FGD system. Additional SO2 
aUowances have been and will be purchased to operate the CUfty Creek and Kyger Creek generating units in 
compliance witii tiie current environmental emission mles during the delays. 

The Kyger Creek and CUffy Creek FGD systems are projected to be operational in 2010 and 2012, respectively. 

CERCLA 

The Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act ("CERCLA"), also known as tiie 
"Superfund" law, requires payments for cleanup of ceilain sites, including abandoned waste disposal sites, even 
though such waste disposal activities were undertaken in compliance with regulations appUcable at the time of 
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disposal. Under the Superfund legislation, one party may, under certain circumstances, be required to bear more than 
its proportional share of cleanup costs at a site where it has responsibiUty pursuant to the legislation if payments 
cannot be obtained from other responsible parties. Other legislation, including the Resource Conservation and 
Recovery Act, which largely addresses facilities that are currently bemg operated, can also require envfronmental 
remediation. States also have regulatory programs that can mandate cleanups. CERCLA authorizes the EPA and, in 
some cases, third parties to take actions in response to tiireats to the public healtii or the environment and to seek to 
recover from the responsible classes of persons the costs they incur. The scope of financial liability under these laws 
involves inherent uncertainties. 

Environmental laws and regulations have changed substantially and rapidly in past years, and OVEC anticipates that 
there wiU be continuing changes. The clear trend in environmental regulation is to place more restrictions and 
limitations on activities that may impact the environment, such as emissions of pollutants, generation and disposal of 
wastes and use and handling of chemical substances. Increasingly strict envkonmental restrictions and limitations 
have resulted in increased operating costs for the Company and other businesses throughout the United States, and it 
is likely that tiie costs of compUance with environmental laws and regulations will continue to mcrease. OVEC will 
attempt to anticipate future regulatory requirements that might be imposed and to plan accordingly in order to 
remain in compUance with changing environmental laws and regulations and to minimize the costs of such 
compliance. 

Regulation of Greenhouse Gases 

On June 26, 2009, the United States House of Representatives passed H.R. 2454, die "American Clean Energy and 
Security Act of 2009," which contains several energy provisions, one of which would create an economy-wide "cap 
and trade program" for greenhouse gases ("GHG") that would begin in 2012. The bill is currently before the U.S. 
Senate. The Company is unable to predict whether federal legislation that regulates GHGs will become law or what 
its final form or effect would be. At this time, tiiere does not appear to be a consensus as to what tiie level of future 
regulation of GHGs will be, or the costs associated with that regulation. However, any such costs would likely 
impact all coal fired generation and the energy market in general. 

On April 24, 2009, EPA proposed to find that GHGs from new motor vehicles and motor vehicle engines endanger 
public health and welfare under Section 202 of the Clean Air Act. The proposed endangerment finding is Ihnited to 
mobile sources and the Company is unable to predict whether the EPA will impose regulations of GHGs on coal 
fired generation facilities, and if so, what their form or effect would be. 

Insurance 

OVEC maintains customary levels of insurance for a company of its size in its industry and believes that its 
insurance arrangements are adequate and satisfactory. 

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 

You should read the following discussion and analysis in conjunction with the financial information and 
consolidated fmancial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this Official Statement. The following 
information contains forward-looking statements. Actual results could differ from the results anticipated in these 
forward-looking statements as a result of factors including, but not limited to. those under "Risk Factors" and 
elsewhere in this Official Statement. 

Generation Availability 

In 2008, the combined availability ofthe five generating units at Kyger Creek and the six units at Cliffy Creek was 
85.2%, compared to 85% in 2007. Availability is determined by totaling all hours each ofthe eleven units were 
available for operation as a ratio to total hours in the same time period. 
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Heat Rate 

The combined heat rate oftiie Kyger Creek and Clifty Creek generating units was 10,236 Btu/kWh for 2008 as 
compared to 10,180 Btu/kWh for 2007. 

Energy Sales 

OVEC's on-peak use fector — the percentage of power scheduled by the Sponsoring Con^anies versus tiie power 
available — averaged 99.87% in 2008 compared with 99.70% m 2007. The off-peak use factor averaged 91.92% in 
2008 and 93.31% in 2007. The average use factor for the combined on-peak and off-peak periods were 96.39% in 
2008, compared witii 96.92% m 2007. 

In 2008, OVEC delivered 15.0MM MWh to tiie Sponsoring Companies, compared to 14.9MM MWh in 2007. 
Generation sales were impacted in 2008 by lower generation availability and lower off-peak sales to tiie Sponsoring 
Companies. 

Power Costs 

In 2008, the Sponsoring Companies' average cost of power from OVEC was $40.29/MWh, compared to 
$35.36/MWh in 2007. The increase was primarily due to additional debt service and fuel costs in 2008. 

Units of Power Sales information 

The average cost per MWh unit of sale was $40.29 in 2008 as compared to $35.36 in 2007. The increased debt 
service costs related to tiie $300MM Senior Notes issued in 2007 and the $350MM Senior Notes issued in 2008 
account for the majority ofthe increase in cost per unit sold. The Company did not add or remove major facilities 
from its transmission system during the past two years. The Company maintains its eleven generating units, which 
average 217.26 MW, in a manner to be most efficiently available during the peak period of need associated with its 
Sponsoring Company customers. 

Operating Revenue Compared for 2008 and 2007 

Total revenue for 2008 was $622MM, compared to $53IMM in 2007. The primaiy increase m revenue is due to the 
billmg of increased debt service charges and fiiel cost. In 2008,7.9MM tons of coal was burned, compared to 
7.6MM in 2007. The average cost of coal bumed for 2008 was $40/ton compared to $34/ton in 2007. The debt 
service payments increased due to the refinancing ofthe $305MM Senior Notes due in 2006 with tiie $445MM 
amortizing Senior Notes due m 2026, tiie 2007 issuance of $300MM of Senior Notes due in 2026 and tiie 2008 
issuance of $350MM Senior Notes also due in 2026. 

Operating Expense and Other Items Compared for 2008 and 2007 

Total operating expenses for 2008 were S567MM, compared to $495MM in 2007. hi 2008, OVEC sold 15MM 
MWh of power to its Sponsoring Companies, compared to 14.9MM MWh in 2007. The tons of coal burned to 
generate this power were 7.9MM in 2008, compared to 7.6MM in 2007. In addition, tiie cost per ton of coal 
consumed and fuel related charges during these two periods was $43.11/ton in 2008 and $39.32/ton in 2007. 

OVEC purchases power from other utilities to resell to the DOE Portsmouth facility. During 2008, the DOE 
purchased 270,369 MWhs for $18.5MM, compared to 256,613 MWhs purchased in 2007 at a cost of $14.6MM. 
Since OVEC purchases this power for the DOE, tiie cost is recorded on OVEC's fmancials as an additional 
operating expense. 

Balance Sheet Comparisons for 2008 versus 2007 

At December 31,2007 and 2008, the Plant-In-Service assets were $1.2bn. After depreciation, net property assets 
were $330MM at year end 2008, compared to $346MM at year end 2007. Current assets decreased from S234MM 
to $171MM at year end 2008, primarily as a result of decreased cash reserved for constmction and decreased fiiel 
inventories and emission allowances. 
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The total capitalization was $l.07bn at year end 2008, compared to $713MM at year end 2007. This increase can 
primarily be attributed to the $350MM Senior Notes issued in 2008. 

Cash Flow Analysis for 2008 

Cash fi^m net income for both 2007 and 2008 was $5. IMM. This source of funds is a relatively steady number from 
year to year due to the cost-plus nature ofthe power agreement OVEC has with tiie Sponsoring Companies. 
Depreciation and amortization provided a source of funds of $57MM. The depreciation is closely related to the 
assets closed lo Plant-In-Service during the year. The fuel (coal) inventory decreased during 2008, resulting hi a 
$ 12MM source of funds. On December 31,2008, OVEC had 1.5MM tons of coal in mventory as compared to 
I.SMM tons on December 31, 2007. Additionally, the price per ton decreased fi-om $36.iO/ton to $34.37/ton during 
the same period. Since 2005, OVEC had been purchasing SO2 allowances in an effort to build inventory. During 
2008, OVEC continued using the allowances purchased in previous years, resulting in a $9.5MM source of fimds. 
Electric plant additions increased during 2008, which resulted in a $436MM use of fimds. These funds were used to 
fund the constmction ofthe FGD projects. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

OVEC had a $100MM, 364-day bank revolving credit fecility agreement as of December 31,2004. In 2005, tiiis 
faciUty was replaced witii a $200MM, 5-year senior unsecured revolving credit facility that expires August 4,2010. 
The facility contains an accordion feature permitting a $100MM increase to tiie faciUty under certain conditions, and 
is used primarily for general corporate purposes including capital expenditures. At December 31,2008, OVEC had 
$50MM in outstanding debt under this facility. Interest expense related to line of credit borrowings was $256,000 in 
2008, while commitment fees totaled $343,729. The lenduig banks for the facility are KeyBank National 
Association, LaSalle Bank National Association, WestLB AG - New York Branch, The Huntington National Bank, 
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation - New York Branch, National City Bank of Indiana, and The Bank of 
Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 

In 2006, OVEC issued $445MM in Senior Notes ("2006 Notes") in a private placement. The 2006 Notes bear an 
annual fixed interest rate of 5.80% payable semi-annually on Febmary 15 and August 15 ofeach year begmning 
August 15, 2006 until maturity on Febmary 15,2026. Proceeds from this issuance were used to repay $305MM of 
senior secured notes issued in 2001, repay a $60MM term loan, and fund $80MM in capital expenditures. 

In 2007, OVEC issued $300MM m Senior Notes ("2007 Notes") in a private placement in tiiree tranches. The 
$200MM Tranche A notes were issued in June 2007, the $50MM Tranche B notes were issued m September 2007, 
and the S50MM Tranche C notes were issued in December 2007. The 2007 Notes bear an annual fked interest rate 
of 5.90% payable semi-armually on June 15 and December 15 ofeach year, until maturity on Febmary 15,2026. 
Proceeds from this issuance were used to fund capital expenditures. 

In 2008, OVEC issued S50MM in Senior Notes ("2008-A Notes") in a private placement. The 2008-A Notes were 
issued in March 2008 and bear an annual fixed interest rate of 5.92% payable semi-armually on June 15 and 
December 15 ofeach year, until maturity or Febmary 15, 2026. Proceeds from this issuance were used to fund 
capital expenditures. Also in 2008, OVEC issued $300MM in Senior Notes ("2008-B & 2008-C Notes") m a private 
placement. The Notes were issued in two tranches of $150MM each in June and August of 2008. The 2008-B & 
2008-C Notes bear an annual fixed interest rate of 6.71% payable semi-annually on April 15 and October 15 ofeach 
year until maturity on Febmary 15, 2026. 

In 2009, OVEC issued $100MM in Senior Notes (**2009-A Notes") in a private placement. The 2009-A Notes bear a 
floating rate. Interest payments are due in one month, three month, or six month periods as selected by OVEC. 
Principal payment is due on February 15,2013. Proceeds fi^om this issuance were used to fimd capital expenditures. 
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Debt maturities on OVEC's long-term senior notes are as follows: 

December 31, 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 

2014-2026 
Total 

Senior Notes 
$ 35,453,528 

37,642,055 
39,966,243 
42,404,535 

145,055,902 
844.796,046 

$1,145,318,309 

Total capitalization at December 31, 2008 was $l.072bn, compaî d to $713.1MM at December 31,2007. The 
capitaUzation was composed ofthe aforementioned Senior Notes, as well as $10MM in common stock and retained 
eamings of $2.5MM at December 31,2008 compared to $2.9MM at December 31,2007. The Sponsoring 
Companies invested $10MM to form OVEC in 1952 and 1953. The remaming capitaUzation needs have been 
secured through debt. The cost reimbursement stmcture ofthe ICPA and the dividend distribution policy does not 
permit excess surplus earamgs to accumulate in OVEC's retained eamings. 

Independent Auditors 

The consolidated financial statements of Ohio Valley Electric Corporation and Subsidiary as of December 31, 2008 
and 2007, and for each ofthe two years in the period ended December 31,2008, included in this Official Statement 
have been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent auditors, as stated in their report appearing herein (which 
report expresses an unqualified opinion and includes an explanatory paragraph conceming the adoption of new 
accounting pronouncements in 2007). 
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Annex 1 

Ohio Valley Electric Corporation 

And Subsidiary 

Indiana-Kentucky Electric Corporation 

Annual Report - 2008 



ANNUAL REPORT — 2008 

OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 

and subsidiary 

INDIANA-KENTUCKY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 



Ohio Valley Electric Corporation 
GENERAL OFFICES, 3932 U.S. Route 23, Piketon, Ohio 45661 

CHiio VaUey Electric Corporati<Mi (OVEC) and its wholly 
owned subsidiary, lodiana-K^tucky Electric 
C(»*poration (IKEC), collectively, the Onnpanies, were 
organized oa October 1, 1952. The ConQ̂ >aides were 
formed by inv^tor-owned utilities fimiishiiig electric 
sovice in tiie Ohio River Valley area and thdr parent 
holding companies for the puipose of providing tiie large 
electric pow^ Fequironeits projected for die uranium 
enrichment ^iiides then under construction by the 
Atomic Bsio^ Conimissi<m (AEC) near Portsmoutii, 
Ohio. 

OVEC, AEC and OVEC's owners or tiieir utility-
company affiliates (called Sponsoring Compames) 
ent»:ed into power agreements to ensure the availabihty 
of the AEC ŝ substantial power requirements. On 
Octobo 15, 1952, OVEC and AEC executed a 25-year 
agreemeit, which was later extended throu^ 
December 31, 2005 (DOE Power Agreement). On 
Septembo 29, 2000, the DOE gave OVEC notice of 
cancellation ofthe DOE Power Agreement On April 30, 
2003, the DOE Power A@^ement tenninated in 
accordance with die notice of cancellation. 

OVEC and the Sp<^soring Companies signed an 
Inter-Company Power Agreem^t (IQ'A) on July 10, 
1953, to support flie DOE Power Agreement and provide 
for ecf̂ cess «i^gy sales to the Sponsoring Companies of 
power not utilized by the DOE or its predecessors. Since 
the t«Tninati<»i of the DOE Power Agreement on 
April 30, 2003, OVEC's entire generating capacity has 
been available to the Sponsoring Companies under tiie 
terms ofthe ICPA. In 2004, the Sponsoring Con^Ktnies 
and OVEC entered into an Amended and Restated ICPA, 
which extends its term from Mardi 13, 2006 to 
March 13,2026. 

The current Shareholders and their respective 
percentages of equity in OVEC are: 

Alle^^iy ^ergy, Inc 3.50 
Ameaican Electric Pow^ Company, Inc.*... 39.17 
Budceye Power Genwating, LLC* 18.00 
Columbus SoutiiOTi Poww Company**^ 4.30 
The Dayton Power and Ught Ccmipan/ 4.90 
Duke BaergyOhio, Inc.**** 9.00 
K^itudcy Utilities Company^ 2,50 
Louisville Gas and Electric Compan/ 5.63 
Ohio Edison Company^ 7.50 
S(mtii^ii Indiana Gas and Electric Company^ 1.50 
The Toledo Edison Company* 4.00 

100.00 

These mvestor-owned utilities comprise the 
Sponsoring Companies and currentiy share die OVEC 
power paiticipalicm benefits and requiremonts in die 
following percentages: 

Allegheny Energy Su{^ly Company^ 3.01 
Appalachian Powear Company^ 15.69 
Buckeye Power Generating, LLC' 18.00 
Columbus Southern Power Company^ 4.44 
The Dayton Power and Li^t Company^ 4.90 
Ehike Energy Ohio, hic* 9.00 
Fir^EnergyGoierationCocp,^ U.50 
Indiana Midiigan Power CcHî anŷ  7.85 
Kentucky Utilities Company^ 2.50 
LouisviUe Gas and Electric Company^ 5.63 
Monongahela Power Company^ 0.49 
Ohio Powa- Company^ 15.49 
Southem buliana Gas and Electric Coaxpmy^ 1.50 

IQQ-OQ 

OVEC's Kyger Creek Plant at deshire, Oiio, and 
IKEC*s Clifty Creek Plant at Madison, Indiana, have 
nameplate genoating c^iactties of 1,086,300 and 
1,303,560 kilowatts, respectively. These two generating 
Nations, bodi of which began <̂ >eration in 1955̂  are 
ccmnected by a network of 776 circuit miles of 345,000-
volt transmission lines. These lines also interconnect 
widi die major pow^ transmission networks of several 
ofthe utilities serving tiie area. 

Sc»ne ofthe Common Stock issued in die name ot 

*Am^can Gas & Electric Company 
**Cohimbus and Soudiem Ohio Electric Company 

***Tte Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company 

Subsidiary o€ 

'Buckeye Power, Inc. 
^American Electric Power Company, hic. 
^DPLInc. 
^Duke Energy OKporation 
'E.ONU.S.LLC 
*FirstEnergyC<MT>. 
'Vectren Corporation 
^AU^Iieny Energy, hic. 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

A Message from tiie President 

In 2008. Ohio Valley Electric Corporation (OVEC) 
and its subsidiary, Indiana-Kentucky Electric 
Corporation (IKEC), continued to pro\nide 
economical power to our customos, the Sponsoring 
Companies, fix>ra the baseload, coal-fired Kyger 
Credc and Clifty Creek generating plants in a safe 
and environmentally responsible manner. 

During 2008, we made significant progress 
on ccmstniction ofthe major compon^its ofthe flue 
gas desulfurization (FGD) retrofit projects at the 
KygM" Creek and Clifly Creek plants. Howevo-, as 
a result of economic conditions and uncertainty in 
&e financial maricets during the last quarto* of 
2008, the OVEC and IKEC Boards of Directors 
decided in December 2008 to delay constmction of 
the FGD at the Clifty Creek plant. In addition, in 
March 2009, OVEC's Board of Directors decided to 
postpone the tie-in of the Kygo* Creek FGD. 
Although these events have extended the FGD 
completion schedule, the Con:̂ >any has purchased 
additional sulfur dioxide (SO2) emission allowances 
to comply with the current aaviromnental 
regulations. 

POWER COSTS 

In 2008, OVEC's average power cost to the 
Sponsoring Companies was $40.29 pet MWh 
compared with $35.36 po- MWh in 2007. The 
increase was primarily due to additional debt 
SCTvicc costs to fund the FGD construction projects 
and the increased cost of coal purchased in 2008. 
OVEC's avQfage power cost is projected to increase 
to $43.68 per MWh in 2009 as ^bt is added for the 
FGD construction projects. 

ENERGY SALES 

OVEC's use fector — the ratio of power 
scheduled by the Sponsoring Companies to the 
power available — for the combined on- and off-
peak periods averaged 96.4 percent in 2008 
compared with 96.9 percent in 2007. The on-peak 

use fector averaged 99.9 pacent in 2008 compared 
with 99-7 po-cent in 2007. The off-peak use fector 
averaged 91.9 percent in 2008 and 93.3 percent in 
2007. 

hi 2008, OVEC delivCTed 15.03 million MWh 
to the Sponsorii^ Compames compared with 
14.92 miUion MWh in 2007. In 2009. OVEC 
expects to generate and delivo- 15.3 million MWh 
to the Sponsoring Companies. 

BUCKEYE POWER ACQUIRES toDITIONM. 
OVEC CAPACITY 

On May 1, 2009, Buckeye Power Gencratii^, 
LLC, a subsidiary of Buckeye Power, Inc., 
purchased a 9 pocent equity interest in OVEC and 
associated power entitlements &om FirstEnorgy 
Generation Corp., a subsidiary of FirstEno^ Corp. 
This purchase increased Buckeye Powo-'s total 
equity interest in OVEC to 18 poxient. 

MONONGAHELA POWER ASSIGNMENT TO 
ALLEGHENY ENERGY SUPPLY 

As of February 1, 2009, Monongahela Power 
Company assigned to Allegheny Energy Supply 
Company a 3.01 pox̂ ent share of its 3.50 porcoit 
power participation ratio and all otho* rights, title, 
obligations and interests undo* the Intcr-Ckmipany 
Power Agreement Monongahela Power vrill retain 
0.49 percent of its shares ofthe power participation 
ratio. 

AVAILABIUTY 

In 2008, the combined availability ofthe five 
generating units at Kyger Creek and the six units at 
Clifty Creek was 85.2 percent compared with 85.0 
poxient in 2007 and 88,8 percent in 2006. The 
availability decrease since 2006 has been primarily 
due to an increase in the scheduled outage fector 
fi-om 5.5 percent in 2006 to 10.2 po-cent in 2007 



and 9.2 pox ênt in 2008, reflectmg an increase in 
bodi planned outages to maintain certain goserators, 
boiior and turbines, and shcnt-tom maintenance 
outages for boiler tube repairs and cleanings 
associated with buming Powder Rivo- Basm coal. 

The combined equivalent availability of 
Kyger Creek and CUfty Cre^ was 80.5 percent in 
2008 cotKimred with 79.7 percent in 2007. The 
unprovement in equivalent availability was due to 
decreases in scheduled outage and unit derating 
fectors of both plants in 200$. 

DOE ARRANGEMENTS WITH OVEC 

hi 2008, OVEC purchased 270,369 MWh of 
power and eno-gy fit)m other electricity supph^s 
for delivery and use by the Dq)artment of Eno-gy 
(DOE) for its Portsmouth fecility. At the request of 
the DOE, OVEC makes these limited purchases of 
power and oiergy undo- the torms and conditions of 
an Arranged Powo- Agreement wi^ DOE. 

TRANSMISSION SYSTEM CHANGES 

The DOE load was previously served fixrai 
two 345-kV substations owned, opoated and 
maintained by the DOE. Each DOE substation was 
integrated with OVEC's transmission system by 
two double-circuit towo* 345-kV lines and with 
neighboring systems by one single-chcuit 345-kV 
line. The DOE X533 substation and all connected 
transmisston lines were removed fix>m service in 
November 2008 at the DOE's request. The DOE 
X533 substation shutdown is permanent Removal 
of the associated 345-kV transmission Imes fi-om 
the substation has been completed as of May 2009. 
Reconfiguration of the intorcotmections between 
these circuits outside of the substation site is 
scheduled to be completed in late 2009. 

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPUANCE 

OVEC and EKEC place great emphasis on 
complymg with federal, state and local 
requirements relating to the protection of the 
environment. During 2008, the Kyger Creek and 
Clifty Credc plants op&:ated m compliance with 
their respective emission limits and environmoital 
regulations, and the Coniijanies received no notices 

of violation from any of the oivirpnmental 
s^otcies. 

OVEC-IKEC COMMITMENT TO SAFETY 

Safety is a top priority fOT OVEC suid IKEC. 
The Companies continue to oigage their empbyees 
in taking an active role in assiuing a safe work 
environment OVEC and HCEC employees wo-e 
successftil in reducing the number of OSHA 
recordable accidents by over 40 percent m 2008. 
Only two accidents involved missed workdays. 
Evoi thou^ this is a marked improvonent over the 
past year, not all employees went home without 
harm. Tho-efixe, we will work harder to further 
reduce injuries to unprove the safety and healUi of 
all onployees. We must continue to make progress 
in minimizing accidents and maximizing safety and 
health 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICER CHANGES 

In January 2009, Curtis H. Davis, chief 
operatmg officer - generation of Allegheny En^gy, 
Inc., was elected a director of OVEC and IKEC and 
appointed to the Executive Committees of both 
companies. He succeeded Leo C. Rajto-, who had 
served in those capacities since 2006. In May 2009, 
Stevoi K. Nelson, chainnan of Buckeye Power, 
hic,, was elected to so-ve as an OVEC directw 
following the resignaticm of Charles D. Lasky. 
Mr. Lasky had served on the OVEC board since 
2004. hx June 2009, Anthony J. Ahem, president 
and chief executive officer of Buckeye Power 
Genoating, LLC, was apixnnted to the Executive 
Committee of OVEC, rq)lacing Curtis Davis. 

In June 2009, Holly K, Koqjpei, executive 
vice president and chief financial officer for 
American Electric Power Service Ccwporation, was 
elected assistant secre^ry and assistant treasuro: of 
OVEC and KEC. 

On behalf of my feUow directors and officos, 
[ congratulate the employees of both Compames for 
substantially irnproving safc*y poformance during 
2008. The 2009 year-to-date safety po"fornBnce 
shows fiirther improvement and, no doubt, reflects 
the employees' coiK^cntrated efi^s to ensurc that 
each and evoy employee approaches all aspects of 
the job with safety in mind 



The year 2008 h-oi^t many other 
challenges, not the least of which was the rapid 
d^oioration in the general state of the economy. 
Although we found it necessary to eithor defer or 
reduce cotain capital and op<srating expenditures, I 
commend the employees for adaptii^ to the 
changes and fcM* their renewed focus on improving 
our ovo:all c^»erations, induing the defective 
availability ofdle generating units. We have much 
fiirtha: to go, but I am confidoit that with our 
employees' dedicated efforts, we will continue to 
make OVEC and IKEC competitive supplio^ of 
electricity for many years to come. 

Michael G. Morris 
Presidoit 

July 13,2009 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
AS OF DECEMBER 31,2008 AND 2007 

ASSETS 

ELECTRIC PLANT: 
At original cost 
Less — accumulated provisions for depreciation 

Constmction in progress 

Total electric plant 

CURRENT ASSETS: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable 
Fuel in storage — at avoage cost 
Materials and supplies — at average cost 
Property taxes applicable to future years 
Emission allowances 
Refimdable state income taxes 
Deferred tax assets 
Regulatory assets 
Prq)aid expenses and otha-

Total current assets 

REGULATORY ASSETS: 
Ass^ retirement costs 
Unr^ogoized postonploym^it benefits 
Deferred depreciation 
Pension benefits 

Total regulatory assets 

DEFERRED CHARGES AND OTHER: 
Unamortized debt expense 
Deferred tax assets 
Pension asset 
Long-term investmoits 
Other 

Total deferred chaiges and other 

TOTAL 

2008 

$1,237,629,673 
907,307,285 

2007 

$1,212,196,875 
865,927,293 

330,322,388 

767,848,855 

1,098,171,243 

45,176,266 
35,586,985 
52,220,614 
19,221,210 
2,348,400 
2,244,126 

10,982,423 
1,034,148 
1,937,142 

170,753,314 

14,642,782 
2,236,997 

27,047,875 
27,261,510 

71,189,164 

9,549,916 
37,524,839 

53,609,545 
141,090 

100,825,390 

$1,440,939,111 

346,269,582 

316.560,056 

662,829,638 

107,694,495 
28,979,038 
63,913,331 
16,863,327 
2,227,920 

11,787,964 
849,123 

1,705,135 

234,020,333 

16,102,473 
2,222,600 

38,643,429 

56,968,502 

6,831,081 
50,635,428 
16,050,249 

9,601 

73,526,359 

$1,027,344,832 

(Contmued) 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
AS OF DECEMBER 31,2008 AND 2007 

CAPITAUZAHON AND LiABILITIES 

CAPITALIZATION: 
Common stock, $100 par value —- authorized, 300,000 shares; 
outstandii^, 100,000 shares in 2008 and 2007 

Long-term debt 
Line of credit borrowings 
Retained earnings 

Total capitalization 

CURRENT LIABELrriES: 
Current portion of long-term debt 
Accounts payable 
Defored revenue — advances for construction 
Accrued other taxes 
Regulatory liabilities 
Accrued interest and otiier 

Total current liabilities 

COMMFTMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 13) 

REGULATORY LIABILITIES: 
Postt^irement benefits 
Pension benefits 
Investment tax credits 
Net antitrust settlement 
Income taxes refundable to customers 

Total regulatory liabilities 

OTHER LIABILITIES: 
Pension liability 
Asset retirement obligations 
Postrctireiaent benefits obligation 
Posten^loyraent benefits obligation 

Total other liabilities 

2008 

$ 10.000,000 
1,009,864,781 

50,000,000 
2,506,811 

1,072,371,592 

35,453,528 
99,405,252 
26,670,003 
9,822,786 
4,230,400 

20,837,485 

196,419,454 

13,670,062 

3,393,146 
1,823,929 

47,070,877 

65,958,014 

27,261,510 
34,162,393 
42,529,151 

2,236,997 

106,190,051 

2007 

$ 10,000,000 
700,151,995 

2,915,642 

713,067,637 

22,809,408 
77,031,015 
24,589,022 
7,679,638 
5,114,333 

16,783,248 

154,006,664 

18,947,629 
16,050,249 
3,393,146 
1,823,929 

48,834,534 

89,049,487 

32,223,528 
36,774,916 
2,222,600 

71,221,044 

TOTAL $1,440,939,111 $ 1,027,344,832 

See notes to cotisolidated financial statonents. (Concluded) 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNWGS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31.2008 AND 2007 

2008 2007 

OPERATING REVENUES — Sales of electric enragy to: 
Department of energy 
Sponsoring companies 

Total opiating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Fuel and emission allowances consumed in operation 
Purchased power 
Otho* operation 
Maintenance 
Depreciation 
Taxes — otfia- than income taxes 
Income taxes 

Total operating expenses 

OPERATING E^COME 

OTHER INCOME 

E^COME BEFORE INTEREST CHARGES 

INTEREST CHARGES: 
Amortization of ddrt expense 
Interest expense 

Total interest charges 

NETINCOME 

RETAINED EARNINGS — Beginning of year 

CASH DIVIDENDS ON COMMON STOCK 

RETAINED EARNINGS — End of year 

$ 18,539,153 
603,273,999 

621,813,152 

340,212,739 
17,903,608 
69,414,118 
71,513,450 
56,946,744 
9.784,455 
1,023,381 

566,798,495 

55,014,657 

4,714,761 

59,729,418 

532,119 
54,106,130 

54,638,249 

5,091,169 

2,915,642 

(5,500,000) 

$ 2,506,811 

$ 14,605,075 
516,757,146 

531362,221 

300.666,274 
14,106,371 
68,471,855 
69,945.403 
31,720,198 
8,990,186 

907,416 

494,807,703 

36,554,518 

5,252,583 

41,807,101 

404,083 
36,261,637 

36,665,720 

5,141,381 

2,274,261 

(4,500,000) 

$ 2,915,642 

See notes to cotisolidated financial statements. 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2008 AND 200/ 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
NetinccHiie 
Afgusbnents to roooncile net inccmie to net cash pf^ided by 
Depredation 
AmoctijstticKa of ddA expoose 
Defored (axes 
Gain on disposal of a s s ^ 
Gain on marketable secmities 
Changes m a s s ^ and li^alities: 
Accouots reodvaUe 
FndmstfflBge 
Matent^ and s u i t e s 
Piroperty taxes applicable to subsetfKat years 

R^iadidde fedcr^ income taxes 
Refimdable state inconie taxes 
Prepaid expenses and OQKT 
O&er assets 
R^mlatfxy assets 
Account payable 
Delbmed revenue 
Acoiued taxes 
Accnied interest and otfier 
R^jub^oiy liidnlities 
O t e KalHlittes 

Net cash provided by operatii^ jictivities 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Bectric plant additions 
Proceeds frran sale of maiixtable securities 
Purchases of maricetable securities 
PrcK^eds fixxn sale of transfintoets 

Net cash used in investing activities 

FINANCING ACnvrriES: 
Issuance of Smgw 2007 Notes 
Issuance of Senior 2008 Notes 
IxKm origiaiaion costs 
Rcpaymesnt of Senior 2006 Notes 
Repaymeid of Seniw 2007 Notes 
Repayment of Senior 2008 Notes 
Proceeds from line of credit 
Pf^ments <m line of acdit 
Dividoids tm commm stock 

Net cash provided by financing activitiea 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — Beginning of year 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — End of year 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES: 
Interest paid 

hiconte taxes paid (recnved) — net 

Non-ca^ dedric plant additions included in accoimts paysMc at DecendMr 31 

See notes toconsolidsWed financial statonents. 

SMH 

S 5.091,169 

56,946,744 
532.119 
364,509 

(300,000) 
(638,007) 

(6,607,947) 
H.692.717 
(2^59,883) 

(120,480) 
9,543,838 

-
849,123 

(232.007) 
15,532^70 

(27.835,827) 
(22.535,520) 

2,080.981 
2.143.148 
4,054^37 

(21,226,286) 
34.969.007 

61,943,905 

(435,783,038) 
24.286,124 

(76,871.172) 
300.000 

(488.068.086) 

_ 
350;000,000 

(3.250,954) 
(13>*5,479) 
(9,463,928) 
(4.833.687) 

100.000,000 
(50.000.000) 

. (5^ .000) 

2007 

S 5,141.381 

31,720.198 
404,083 
783,148 

(300,000) 
-

(7,470,340) 
(29,248,030) 
(1.167,437) 

(255.120) 
22,275,022 

681 
107,851 
(52,036) 

(15.647,863) 
2,574.798 

10,700.986 
11,044,690 

652,983 
443.272 

23,772,209 
(l,433,900J 

54.046.576 

(232.025,190) 

-
-

300,000 

a31.725,190) 

300.000,000 
-

(2.763,237) 
-

(12,603.856) 
(3.397.953) 

16O.000J000 
(210.000.000) 

(4.500.000J 

363.605,952 

(62,518,229) 

107,694,495 

$ 45.176,266 

226.734,954, 

49,056340 

58.638.155 

S 107,694.495 

$ 49.379,338 S 35,392.737_ 

$ (710.829) S 79.671_ 

S 63.225.QS4 S 20,261.593 



OHiO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2008 AND 2007 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

ConsoUdated FiaanGial Statemeats — The consolidated finandai statonents include the accounts of 
Ohio Valley Electric CorpcMation (OVEC) and its wholly owned subsidiary, Dadiana-K îtucky Electric 
CorpQration (KCEC), collectively, ^e "Conq^anies." All interconxpany teansacticHis have been eliminated 
in consolidation. 

Oi^anizatioa — The Conq>anies own two generating stations located in Ohio and Indiana' with a 
combined electric production capability of apiHOximately 2,256 m^iawatts. OVEC is owned by several 
investor-owned utilities or utility holding companies and an af&iiate of a generation and transmission ruzal 
electric cooperative. These entities and their affiliates conq»rise the Sponsoring Conqmnies. The 
SponsOTing Companies purchase power from OVEC acc<»ding to the terms of the foter-Company Power 
A^eemeat (TCPAX which in 2(KM was exteided for ao additional 20 years from March 13, 2006 to 
March 13,2026. ̂ proximately 30% of the Companies' employees are covered by a collective bargaining 
agreanent that expires August 31,2011. 

Rate R^olatton — The proceeds from the sale of power to the Spoosorii^ Companies are designed to be 
sufficient for OVEC to meet its opaating e?q)enses and fixed costs, as well as earn a retum on equity 
before fed«ai income taxes, bi addition, the proceeds from powo* sales are designed to cover debt 
amortization and intarest expense associated with financings. The Companies have continued and expect 
to continue to op^^te pursuant to the cost plus rate of retum recovery provisions at least to March 13, 
2026, the date of tamination ofthe ICPA. 

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 71, Accounting fbr the Effects of Certain Types 
of Regulation, provides that late-regulated utilities account for and repeat assets and liabilities consistent 
with the economic effect of die way in which rates are established, if tiie rates established are designed to 
recover the costs of providing the regulated service and it is probable that such rates can be charged and 
coUected The Companies follow the accounting and reporting requkonents of SFAS No. 71. Certain 
expenses and credits subject to utility regulation or rate deteniination normally reflected in income we 
deferred on the accompanying consolidated balance s h e ^ and are recognized in mcome as the related 
amounts are included in service rates and recovared from or re&nded to customers. 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2008 AND 2007 

The Companies* regulatory a s s ^ liabilities, and amounts authcwized for recovery through Sponsor 
billings at December 31,2008 and 2007, were as follows: 

Regu}at(»y assets: 
Current a s s ^ — income taxes billable to customers 

OtbK" assets: 
Asset retirement costs 
Unrecognized postemployment boiefits 
Defened dq>reciati(m 

Pa}si<m benefits 

Total 

Total regulatory assets 

Regulatory liabilitKs: 
Current liabilities: 

Defened credit — EPA emission allowance proceeds 
Advance collection of interest 
Fiml rdated settlement 

Total 

Other liabilities: 
Postretiremait benefits 
Pension benefits 
Inv^tmoit tax credits 
Net antitrust setdement 
Income taxes refundable to customers 

Total 

Total regulatory liabilities 

20(» 2007 

$ 1,034,148 $ v 

14,642,782 
2,236.997 

27,047.875 
27,261,510 

71,189,164 

$72,223,312 

16,102,473 
2,222,600 

38,643.429 

56,968,502 

$56,968,502 

$ 1,577.431 $ 893,770 
2.652.969 1.884,902 

2,335,661 

4,230,400 

13,670,062 

3,393,146 
1,823,929 

47,070,877 

65,958,014 

5,114,333 

18.947.629 
16,050,249 
3,393,146 
1,823,929 

48,834,534 

89,049,487 

$70,188,414 $94,163,820 

Regulatory Assets — Regulatory assets consist primarily of defared depreciation, asset retirem^it cost, 
and pension benefits. Defared dq>reciation is recovered ovo: tlw life ofthe debt that was used to fimd the 
related plant additions. The Conqjanies follow the sinking fimd depreciation method fbr ratemaking 
purposes, and the diff^oice between straight-line depreciation and the debt principal paym^ts billed to 
customers is recorded as deferred dq>reciation. With the exertion of income taxes billable to customers, 
which will be recovered during 2009, other regulatory assets are being recovered on a long-t^m basis. 

R^ulatory Liabilities— The regulatory liabilities classified as currrait in the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheets r̂ Mjesent emission allowance auction proc^ds, a gain on a fiid related 
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NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2008 AND 2007 

s^emeait, and interest expense collected fix>m customers in advance of expense recognition* These 
amounts outstanding will be crecfited to customer bills during 2009. Oth^ regulate^ liabilities consist 
primarily of income taxes refimdable to customers, postrdirement benefits, and pen3i<m b^efits. Income 
taxes refimdable to customers are credited to customer bills in the poiod when the related deferred tax 
assets are realized. The Companies^ current ratemaking policy recovers pension expaise in an amount 
equal to plan contributions and postretirement benefits in an amount equal to service cost As a result, 
related regulatory liabilities are being credited to customer bills on a long-term basis. The remaining 
regulatory liabilities are awaitii^ credit to customa- bills in a fixture period that is y^ to be detomined. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents — For purposes of these statements, the Companies consider temporary 
cash investm^ts to be cash equivalents since they are readily convotible into cash and have original 
maturities of less than three months. 

Electric Plant — Property additions and r^lacements are chained to utility plant acccmnts. Depreciation 
expense is recorded at the time property additions and replacements are billed to customos or at the date 
the propoty is placed in servdce if the in-service date occurs subsequent to die customs* billing. Customo' 
billings for construction in progress are recorded as deferred revemie-advances fi)r construction. These 
amoimts are closed to revenue at th.e time the related propaty is placed in service. Defored dqnreciation, 
depreciation expense, and accumulated dq>reciation are recorded whoi finarrced property additions and 
replacements are recovo:ed over a poiod of years through customer debt retirement bilting. All 
dq>reciabie property will be fiilly billed and depreciated prior to the expiration of die ICPA. Repairs of 
property are charged to maintenance expense. 

Fuel in Storage, Emission Alfowances, and Materials and Supplies — The Companies maintain coal, 
reagent, and oil inventories for use in the generation of dectricity and emission allowance inventories for 
regulatory compliance purposes due to the generation of electricity. These inventories are valued at 
avorage cost. Matoials and supplies consist primarily of replacement parts necessary to maintain the 
generating facilities and are valued at avouge cost. 

Loi^-Term Investments — Long-tom investments consist of maiî etable securities that are held for the 
purpose of fimding postretirement benefits. These securities have been classified as trading securities. Due 
to tax limitaticHis, the amounts held in this portfolio have not yet been transfered to the Voluntary 
Employee Beneficiary Association trusts (see Note 9). IxH^-term investments primarily consist of 
municipal bonds and money market mutual fimd investments. Net unrealized gains recognized during 
2008 on securities still held at the balance she^ date were $638,007. 

Unamortized Debt Expense — Unamortized dd>t expense relates to loan originafion costs incurred to 
secm*e financing. These costs are beirig amortized over the life of die rdated loans. 

Asset Retirement Obl^ations and Ass^ Retirement Costs — The Companies recognize the to value 
of legal obligations associated with the retixemoit or removal of lor^-lived assets at the time the 
obligations are incurred and can be reasonably estimated. The initial recognition of this liability is 
accompanied by a corresponding inoease in dqnreciable electric phmt. Subsequent to the initial 
recognition, the liability is adjusted for any revisions to tbe expected value of the retironoit obligation 
(with corresponding adjustmeaits to dectric plant) and for accretion of the liability due to the passage of 
time. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2008 AND 2007 

These asset retironent obligations are primarily related to obligati<»is associated with fiiture asbestos 
abatement at certain generating stations and cotain plant closure costs. As of Decembo* 31, 2008 and 
2007, the Companies had a regulatory ass^ of $14.6 miUion and $16.1 million, respectively, related to 
asset retirement obligations. 

Balance — Deconber 31. 2006 

Accretion 

Balance — December 31,2007 

Accr^on 

Balance — December 31, 2008 

$30,399,555 

1,823,973 

32,223,528 

1,938,865 

$34,162,393 

The Companies do not recogmze liabilities for asset rdirement obligations fcs' which the fak value carmot 
be reasonably estimated. The Companies have ass^ retirement obligations associated with ^nsmission 
assets and river stmctures at cotain generating stations. Howevo", the retirement date for these assets 
cannot be deto'mined; thorefore, the fiiir value ofthe associated liabiUty curroitly cannot be estimated and 
no amounts are recognized in the consolidated financial statements hoein. 

Use of Estimates — The prĉ Ktration of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles genoally accepted in the United States of Amo*ica requires managonent to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the repcHled amounts of a s s ^ and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets 
and liabilities at tiie date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues 
and expenses during the rqx>rting poiod. Actual results could diffo* from those estimates. 

2. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Transactions with die Sponsoring Companies during 2008 and 2007 included the sale of all generated 
power to them, the purchase of Arranged Power from them and otho* utility systons in OTder to meet the 
Departmoit of Enorgy's power requironents, contract barging soidccs, railcar solaces, and minor 
transactions for services and materials. The Con^nies have Power Agreements with Louisville Gas and 
Electric Con^>any, Duke Eno-gy Ohio, Inc., The Dayton Powo* and Light Company, Koxtucky Utilities 
Company, Ohio Edison Company, and American Electric Powo* Sovice Corporation as agmt for the 
American Electric Power System Companies; and Transmission Service Agreements with Louisville Gas 
and Electric Company, Dvike Eno-gy Ohio, Inc., The Dayton Powo and L ^ t Company, The Toledo 
Edison Company, Ohio Edison Company, Kentucky Utilities Company, and American Electric Power 
Service Corporation as agoit for liie Amo*ican Electric Powo* System Companies. 

In September 2006, the Companies sold two transformers and associated equipment to Duke Energy 
Ohio, Inc. for a total maximum purchase price of $3 million, which subject to the terms of the ass^ 
purchase agreement, is payable in equal annual instaUments ovo* ten years. The purchase price is 
contingoit on the perfcnmance of the transformos, aixi as such, no receivable has been recognized in the 
accompanying consolidated balance she^. In 2008, the Companies were infcMined that one of the 
transformers &iled, and as such, no fiirtho payments from Duke Enorgy Ohio, Inc. are anticipated. 
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OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2008 AND 2007 

At Decembo 31, 2008 and 2007, balances due from or to the Sponsoring Companies are as follows: 

2008 20O7 

Accounts receivable 
Accounts payable 

$31,668,608 $23,136,138 
1,352,250 

American Electric Power Coni4>any, Inc. and a subsidiary company owned 43.47% ofthe common stock 
of OVEC as of December 31, 2008. The following is a summary ofthe jwincipal sowes received fiiom 
the American Elecffic Power Sovice Corpcnation as authorized by the Con^ianies' Boards of Directors: 

2008 2007 

General services 
Specific projects 

Total 

$ 2,198,238 $ 2.473,834 
21,274,966 10,623,656 

$23.473,204 $13,097,490 

General so^ces consist of regular recurring opoation and maintoiance services. Specific projects 
primarily represent nonrecurring plant construction projects and er^;ineedng studies, which are approved 
by the Companies' Boards of Directors. The sovices are j»ovided in accordance with the service 
agreement dated December 15, 1956, between the Con^wmies and the American Electric Power Service 
Corporation. 

3. COAL SUPPLY 

The Compani^ have coal supply agreements with certain nonaffiliated cotE )̂anies that expire at vark)us 
dates from the year 2009 through 2017. Pricii^ for coal undo these contracts is subject to contract 
provisions and adjustments. The Companies currently have approximatdy 100% of their 2009 coal 
requiremoits under long-torn agreements of one year or greato. 

4. INVENTORIES 

Invoitories, n^ of resoves, at December 31, 2008 and 2007, consist ofthe following: 

Fuel in storage — at average cost 
Materials and supplies — at average cost 
Emission allowances 

Total inventories 

20(» 

$52,220,614 
19,223,210 
2,244,126 

2007 

$63,913,331 
16,863,327 
11,787,964 

$ 73,687,950 $92,564,622 
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NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2008 AND 2007 

ELECTRIC M.ANT 

Electric plant at Decembo 31, 2008 and 2007, consists of the following: 

2008 

Intangible 
Steam production plant 
Transmission plant 
General plant 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Constmction in progress 

Total electric plant 

BORROWING ARRANGEMENTS AND NOTES 

$ 26,564 
1,152,457,582 

60,191,487 
24,954,040 

1,237,629,673 

907,307,285 

330,322.388 

767,848,855 

2007 

$ 26,564 
1,130,722,161 

72,211.888 
9,236,262 

1,212,196,875 

865,927.293 

346,269,582 

316,560,056 

$1,098,171,243 $ 662.829,638 

OVEC has an unsecured bank revolving line of credit a^eemoit with a borrowing limit of $200 million 
as of December 31, 2008. The $200 million line of credit has an expiration date of August 4, 2010. At 
Decembo 31. 2008 and 2007. OVEC had borrowed $50 and $0 million, respectively, undo this line of 
credit, hitoest expense related to line of credit b<MT0wings was $255,699 in 2008 and $3,051,247 in 2007. 
During 2008 and 2007, OVEC incurred annual commitment fees of $343,729 and $288,736, respectively, 
l^sed on the borrowing limits ofthe line of credit. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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LONG-TERM DEBT 

Ttie followii^ amounts were outstanding at Decembo- 31,2(X)8 and 2007: 

Senior 2006 Notes due February 15,2026 
Senior 2007 Notes: 
Tranche A due February 15,2026 
Tranche B due Fdwruary 15,2026 
Tranche C due February 15, 2026 

Senior 2008 Notes: 
Tranche A due February 15,2026 
Tranche B due Fd)niary 15,2026 
Tranche C due February 15, 2026 

Total debt 

Current portion of long-term debt 

Total long-term debt 

During 2007, OVEC issued $300 million unsecured senior notes (Soiior 2007 Notes) in private 
placements in three tranches. The $200 million Tranche A notes were issued in June 2007, the $50 million 
Tranche B notes wo-e issued in September 2007, and the $50 million Tranche C notes woe issued in 
December 2007. 

During 2008, OVEC issued $350 million unsecured senior notes (Senior 2008 Notes) in private 
placements in three tranches. The $50 million Tranche A notes were issued in March 2008, the 
$150 million TraxtcheB notes wore issued in June 2008, and the $150 million Tranche C rK)tes were 
issued in August 2008. 

The annual maturities of long-term debt as of December 31,2008, ate as follows: 

Interest 
Rate 

5.80 % 

5.90 
5.90 
5,90 

5.92 
6.71 
6.71 

2008 

$ 413,013,876 

190,703,342 
48,027,572 
48,407,206 

48,780,045 
147,157,899 
149,228,369 

1,045,318,309 

35,453,528 

$1,009,864,781 

2007 

$426,359,355 

196,990,760 
49,611,288 
50,000,000 

-

722,961,403 

22,809,408 

$700,151,995 

2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014-2026 

Total 

$ 35,453,528 
37,642,055 
39,966,243 
42,404,535 
45,055,902 

844,796,046 

$1,045,318,309 
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8. INCOME TAXES 

OVEC and IKEC file a consolidated fedo^ income tax rdtrnn. The effective tax rate varied from the 
statutory fedoai income tax rate due to diflforences between the book and tax treatment of i^uious 
tiiansactions as follows: 

hjcome tax expoise at 35% statutory rate 
State income taxes n^ of federal benefit 
TempCM-ary differences flowed through to customo bills 
Permanoit dif&roices 

InccHne tax provision 

Effective tax rate 

Components ofthe income tax fMX>vision woe as foUows: 

Curroit income tax expense 
Deferred income tax expoise 

Total inc<»ne tax provision 

2008 

$ 2,140.093 
66,042 

(1,218,762) 
36,(K>8 

2007 

$ 2,117.079 
53.707 

(1,274,392) 
11,022 

2008 

$ 977,761 
45,620 

2007 

$125,036 
782,380 

$1,023,381 $907,416 

OVEC and IKEC record deferred tax assas and liabilities based on differoices between book and tax 
basis of assets and liabilities measured usmg the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect whoi the 
differences are e>q)ected to revorse. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for clmnges in tax rates. 
The deferred tax assets recorded in the accompanjdng consolidated balance sheets consist primarily ofthe 
net deferred taxes on depreciation, postretirement benefits obligation, net operating loss canyffflwards, 
asset retirement obligations, r^^ilatory assets and regulatory Uabilities. 

To the extent that the Companies have not reflected credits in customer billings for deferred tax a s s ^ , 
they have recorded a regulatory liability representing income taxes refimdable to customers under the 
applicable agreemoits among the parties. The liability was $47,070,877 at Decembo 31, 2008, and 
$48,834,534 at Decembo- 31,2007. 
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Defored income tax assets (Uabilities) consisted ofthe foUowing at December 31, 2008 and 2007: 

2008 2007 

Deferred tax assete: 
Defored revenue — advances for constnu^on 
Fedoai net operating k»ss carryforwards 
State net operating loss carryforwards 
AMT credit carryforwards 
Pc^tretirement boiefit obUgation 
Pension Uability 
Postemployment benefit obligation 
Asset retirement obligations 
Miscellaneous accruals 
R^uktCHy liability — postretironent boiefits 
Regulatory liabiUty — investment tax credits 
Regulatory liability -— n^ antitmst settlonoit 
Regulatory Uability — income taxes refundable to customers 

Total deferred tax a s s ^ 

Deferred tax liabiUties: 
R^ulatory ass^ — income taxes billaWe to customers 
Prepaid e?q>oises 
Electric plant 
Regulatory asset — poision benefits 
R^ulatory asset — unrecognized postonployment benefits 
Regulatory asset — asset retirement costs 

Total deferred tax liabiUties 

Defored income tax assets (liabilities) 

The Companies had federal income tax net operating loss carryfinwards (NOLs) of $12.7 million as of 
December 31, 2008. These federal income tax NOLs result in part from acceloated depreciation methods 
for propoty, plant and equipment for income tax rgKMtmg purposes. The Companies also have altonative 
minimum tax (AMT) credit carryforwards of approximately $2.5 milUon, which are not limited by 
expiration dates. Management periodicaUy assesses the need for a valuation allowance on defored tax 
assets. As of Decembo 31, 2008 and 2007, management believes tiiat realization of the Companies' 
deferred tax assds is more likely than not. 

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Intopretation No. 48 to clarify the 
accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise's financial statements in 
acccH'dance with Statement No. 109. Interpretation No. 48 addresses the detennination of whether the tax 
benefits claimed or expected to be claimed on a tax r^um should be recorded in the financial statements. 
Undo Intopretation No. 48, the Companies may recognize the tax benefit from, an uncertain tax position 

$ 9,619,159 
4,456,189 

39,212 
2,532,919 

20,445,933 
9,832,499 

806,825 
12,321,464 
2,649,351 
4,930,427 
1.223.817 

657,843 
16,977,211 

86,492,849 

(361,952) 
(582,702) 

(21,120,348) 
(9,832,499) 

(806,825) 
(5,281,261) 

(37,985,587) 

$ 48,507,262 

$ 8.942.781 
22,341.256 

273,971 
1.505,920 

13,374,669 
10,113,109 

808,337 
11.719,375 
2,834,718 
6.891,063 
1,234,053 

663,345 
17.621,791 

98,324,388 

. 

(576,140) 
(34,610,360) 
(5,837,815) 

(808,337) 
(5,856,308) 

(47,688,960) 

$ 50,635,428 
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oidy if it is more likdy than not that the tax position will be sustained on examination by the taxing 
autk>rities, based on the technical merits of die position. The tax benefits recognized in the financial 
statements from such a position are measured b a ^ on the largest benefit tiiat has a greato than fifly 
percent likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement. Upon adoption of FIN 48, the Companies 
have not identified any uncotain tax positions. 

The Companies file income tax returns with the Intonal Revenue Sovice and the states of Ohio, hidiana 
and the Commonwealth of Kentucky. The Companies are no longer subject to fedoai tax examinations 
for tax years 2004 and earlio:. The Conq^anies are no longer subject to states of Ohio and Indiana tax 
examinations for tax years 2004 and earUo". The Ccmipanies are no longo subject to tiie Commonwealth 
of Kentucky examinations for tax years 2003 and earUo*. 

9, PENSION PLAN, OTHER POSTRETIREMENT AND POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFTTS 

The Companies have a noncontributory qualified defined benefit pension plan (tiie Poision Plan) covering 
substantially all of their employees. Tbe benefits are based on years of sovice and each employee's 
highest consecutive 36-month compensation poiod. En^loyees are vested in the Pension Plan after five 
years of service with the Companies. 

Funding for the Pension Plan is based on actuarially determined contributions, the maximum of vidiich is 
generally the amount deductible for income tax purposes and the minimum being that required by the 
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA), as amended. The fidl cost of the pension 
benefits and rdated obUgations bas b^n allocated to OVEC emd IKEC in the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements. The allocated amounts rqiresent approximately a 54% and 46% spUt for OVEC and 
IKEC, respectively, as of Decembo* 31, 2008 and 2007. The Pension Plan's assets consist of an insurance 
contract and investments in equity and debt securities. In the following disclosures, the insurance contract 
is treated as a debt security because its long-tom yield is tied to the debt matkets. 

In addition to the Pension Plan, the Companies provide cotain health care and Ufe insurance benefits 
(Other Postretirement Benefits) for retired employees. SubstantiaUy aU of the Companies' employees 
become eligible for ihrae benefits if tiiey reach retirement age while working for the Companies. These 
and similar benefits for active employees are provided through employo* funding and insurance policies. 
In Decembo 2004, the Companies established Voluntary Employee Beneficiary Association (VEBA) 
trusts. The main objectives ofthe VEBA trusts are to maintain the purchasing power ofthe curroit assets 
and all future contributions, to have the abitity to pay all benefits and expoise obligations when due and to 
achieve a "fimding cushion" to maximize return within prudent levels of risk. The investment horizon for 
the Pension Plan and VEBA tmsts is greato than five years and the strategic asset allocation is based on a 
long-term perspective. 
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Projected Poision Plan and Otiio-
December 31,2008 and 2007: 

Postretirement Benefits obUgations and fimded status as of 

PMMion other PosbvtKwnent 

Omnge in projected benefit otd^adon: 
Projected benefe oWigation—beginning of y ^ 
Service cost 
hUtCKStCOSt 

Plan paitici(Miiits'contrfljutioas 
Benefiispaid 
Net actuarid (gain) loss 
Medicate subsidy 
Expenses paid &om assets 

Projected bencGt obligation—end of year 

Chai^ in fiur v̂ ihie of plan assets: 
Fair vabic of plan assets—b^inning of year 
Actual retum OR plan assets 
Expenses paid fiYHn assets 
Bnpbyo-contributions 
Plan poitidpancs'contributions 
Medicare subsidy 
Bca^itspstd 

Fair vahie of plan assets — end of year 

Funded (underfunded) status—end of year 

20M 

$ 153,972,014 
3,899,052 
9,799,772 

-
(7,755,609) 
9,056^58 

-
(45^00) 

!68,926.5$7 

170.022^63 
(26.0S6377) 

(45,200) 
5,500,000 

-
-

(7,755,609) 

141,665.077 

$ a726l,SlO) 

2007 

$161,065;647 
4,221,650 
9,243320 

-
(7,499,086) 

(13,018,717) 
-

(40,800) 

153,972,014 

169,811^06 
1,750,243 

(40,800) 
6,000,000 

-
-

(7,499,086) 

170,022,263 

S 16,050,249 

2008 

$ 97.431,448 
2.781,098 
6,173,680 

613383 
(3,286320) 
1^42,881 

-
-

104,956,170 

60^56,532 
(728^13) 

-
5,171,937 

613383 
-

(3;286320) 

62,427.019 

$(42^29,151) 

2007 

S 102,541^4 
3,219^92 
5355^7 

S85370 
(3^79,279) 

(11,761,744) 
270348 

. 

97,431,448 

SS395376 
2,760,656 

-
4,923,161 

585370 
270348 

(3^79^79) 

60j656332 

$ (36,774.916) 

On December 8, 2003, the Presideat of the United States of Amoica signed into law the Medicare 
Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 (the Act). The Act introduced a 
prescription drug b^efit to retirees as weU as a fedoial subsidy to sponsors of r ^ e e health care benefit 
plans tiiat provide a prescription drug benefit that is actuariaUy equivalent to the benefit provided by 
Medicare. The Companies believe that the coverage for prescription drugs is at least actuariaUy equivalent 
to the benefits provided by Medicare for most current retirees because the benefits for tiiat group 
substantiaUy exceed the benefits provided by Medicare, tha:d>y allowii^ the Con^)anies to qualify for the 
subsidy. The Companies' employe* contributions for Other Postretirement B^efits in the above table are 
net of subsidies received of $0 and $270,548 for 2008 and 2007, respectively. The Ccnnpanies have 
accounted for die subsidy as a reduction of the benefit obligation detailed in the above table. The benefit 
obUgation was reduced l ^ approximately $14.2 and $11.3 miUion as of December 31,2008 and 2007. 

The accumulated benefit obUgation for the Pension Plan was $144,698,788 and $131,992,635 at 
December 31,2008 and 2007, respectively. 

Components of Net Periodk Benefit Cost— The Companies record die expected cost of Otiier 
Postretirement Benefits ov& the service period during which such benefits are eamed. 

Pension expense is recognized as amounts are contributed to the Pension Plan and biUed to customos. 
The accumulated difference between recorded poision expoise and the yearly net periodic pension 
expense as calculated under SFAS No. 87, En^loyers' Accounting for Pensions, is billable as a cost of 
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operations und^ the ICPA when contributed to the pension fimd. This accumulated diffoence has been 
recorded as a regulatory assei in the accompanying consolidated balance s h e ^ . 

Service cost 
Interest cost 
Expected return on plan assets 
Amortizaticm of |mor service cost 
Recognized actuarial loss 

Net periodic beneSt cost 

rension 
Plan 

2008 

$ 3,899.052 
9,799,772 

(11,049,029) 
531,437 

$ 3.181.232 

2007 

$ 4,221.650 
9,243,320 

(U .668,332) 
531,437 

$ 2328,075 

Other Postretlreniant 
Benems 

2008 

$ 2,781,098 
6.173.680 

(2,880.712) 
(379,0<M)) 
(263.945) 

$ 5,431,121 

2007 

$ 3,219,492 
5,855,237 

(2,631,976) 
(379,000) 

126.175 

$ 6,189,928 

Fusion and other postretirement benefits 
expense recognized in the consolidated 
statement of income and retained eamings 
and billed to sponsoring companies under 
thefCPA $ 5,500,000 $ 6.000.000 $ 3.260.000 $ 3,219.492 

Pension Plan and Other Postretirement Benefit Assiunptloos— Actuarial assumptions used to 
determine benefit obligations at December 31, 2008 and 2007, w^e as follows: 

Pension 
Plan 

2008 2007 

Other 
Postretirement 

Benefits 
2Q08 2007 

Discount rate 
Rate of compensation increase 

6.10 % 6.50 % 
4.00 4.00 

5.90 % 6.50 % 
4.00 4.00 

Actuarial assumptions used to determine net paiodic beoefit cost for the years ended December 31, 2008 
and 2007, woe as follows: 

Pension 
Plan 

Other 
Postretirement 

Benefits 

Discount rate 
Expected long-term retum on plan assets 
Rate of compeasation increase 

2008 

6.50 
4.00 

2007 

5.90 % 
7.00 
4.00 

2008 

4.70 
4,00 

2007 

5.90 % 
4.70 
4.00 

In selecting the expected long-term rate of retum on assets, the Compames considered the average rate of 
eamings expected on the fiinds invested or to be invested to provide for plan benefits. This included 
consida*ing the Pension Plan and VEBA trusts* asset allocation, as well as the targ^ asset allocations for 
die fiiture, and tiie expected returns likely to be eamed over the life ofthe Pension Plan and the VEBAs. 
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Assumed health care cost treod rates at December 31, 2008 and 2007, w&c as follows: 

2008 2007 

Heat^ care dend rate assumed for next year — participants under 65 
Health care trend rate assumed for next year—participants over 65 
Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed to (bcline (the ultimate bend rale)—partictpaats under 65 
EUte to which die cost trend rate is assumed to decline (the ultimate trend rate)—particii)antsover6S 
Year that die rate readies the ultimate trend rate 

3.00% 9 .00% 
9.50 I U 9 
5.00 5.00 
5.00 5.00 
2015 2012 

Assumed health caxe cost trend rates have a significant effect on die amounts rq)orted for the health care 
plans. A one-percentage-point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following 
effects: 

One-Percentage <^ie-Percentage 
Point Increase Point Decrease 

Effect on total service and interest cost 
EfEect on postretirement benefit obUgation 

$ 1.553.985 
16.334,303 

$ (1,222,418) 
(13,014.742) 

Pensioa Plan and Other Postretirement Benefit Assets — The asset allocation for the Pension Plan and 
VEBA trusts at December 31, 2008 and 2007, by asset category was as follows: 

Asset category: 
Equity securities 
Debt securiti^ 

Pension Plan 
2008 2007 

24% 3 1 % 
76 69 

VEBAT 
2008 

24 % 
76 

rusts 
2007 

- % 
100 

llie target asset allocation for the Pension Plan is 30% equity securities and 70% debt securities and for 
the VEBA tmst is 40% equity securities and 60% debt securiti^. 

Pension Plan and Other Postretirement Benefit Contribntioius — The Companies expect to cimtribute 
$5,700,000 to dieir Pension Plan and $6,227,701 to their Odio: Postretirement Benefits plan in 2009. 
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Estimated Future Beiefit Payments — The following b^efit paym^ts, which reflect expected future 
SQ^e, as appropriate, are expected to be paid: 

Pension 
Plan 

8,190,118 
8,563,310 
8,860,448 
9,258,537 
9,646,383 

57,038,752 

Wtth 
Medicare 
Subsidy 

$ 4,042,701 
4,454,986 
4,797,783 
5,136,259 
5,403,058 

32.929,845 

WKhout 
Medicare 
Subsidy 

$ 4,388,179 
4,833,964 
5,211,111 
5,587,667 
5,892,674 

35,939,277 

_ other Postretirement Benefits 

Years Ending 
December 31 

2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
Five years thereafter 

B»8tempioymeiit Benefits— Tbe Companies follow SFAS No. 112, Employers' Accounting for 
Postemployment Benefits, and accrue the estunated cost of benefits provided to f<Min̂  or inactive 
employees after employment but before retirement Such benefits include, but are not limited to, salary 
continuations, supplemental unemployment, sevoance, disability (iucluding woricos' compoisadon), job 
training, counseling, and continuation of benefits, such as health care and life insurance cova:age. The 
cost of such benefits and related obligations bas been aUocated to OVEC and IKEC in the accompanying 
consoUdated financial statanents. The allocated amounts rqjresent approximately a 42% and 58% split 
between OVEC and IKEC, respectively, as of Decemba 31, 2008, and approximately a 40% and 60% 
split betweea OVEC and IKEC, respectively, as of Dcccmba-31, 2007. Th^ liability is offeet widi a 
corresponding regulatory ass^ and represents unrecognized postemployment benefits billable in the fiiture 
to customers. The accrued cost of such benefits was $2,236,997 and $2,222,600 at December 31, 2008 
and 2007, respectively. 

Defined CoirtributioD Plan — The Companies have a trustee-defined contribution supplemental pension 
and savings plan that includes 40l(k) features and is available to anployees who have met eligibility 
requirements. In 2007, the Companies' contributions to the savings plan wore made in amounts equal to 
50% of the employee-participants' contributions up to 6% of total compensation. In January 2008, the 
Companies* contributions to the savings plan wo-e changed to amounts equal to 100% ofthe first 1% and 
50% of the next 5% of employee-participants' contributions based upon total compensatioa Benefits to 
participating employees are based solely upon amounts contributed to the participants' accounts and 
investment earoings. By its nature, the plan is fully fimded at all tim^. The employer contributions for 
2008 and 2007 we-e $1,634,334 and $1,278,249. respectively. 

Adaption of SFAS No. 158 — Pemion and Other Postretirement Benefits — The Companies adopted 
SFAS No. 158, Employers' Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, 
effective December 31, 2007, SFAS No. 158 requires employos to fully recognize the obli^ons 
associated with defined benefit pension plans atid other postr^ement plans, which include r^iree 
healthcare, in their balance sheets. Previous standards required an anployer to disclose the complete 
funded status of its plan only in the notes to the financial statements and provided that an employer delay 
recognition of cotain changes in plan assets and obUgations that affected the costs of providing benefits 
resulting in an asset or Uability that often diffoed fixmi the plan's funded status. SFAS No. 158 requires a 
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defined benefit pension or postretirem^t plan sponsor to recognize in its staf^n^it of financial position 
an asset for a phm's overfunded status or a liability for the plan's undarfimded status. The effects of tbe 
Compamies' adoption of SFAS No. 158 wa*e as foUows: 

Poision asset 
Postretirement benefits obUgation 

Before 
Application of 
SFAS No. 158 

$ 3,671,925 
(40,299,341) 

Adjustments 

$12,378,324 
3,524,425 

After 
Application of 
SFAS No. 158 

$ 16,050.249 
(36.774,916) 

The adjustments dialled in the above table represent the unrecognized actuarial gains and unrecognized 
prior service cost for the plans as of December 31, 2007. These amounts were recî rded as additions to 
regulatory UabiUties (seeNote I). 

10, ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS 

Title IV of the 1990 Clean Air Act Amendm^its required the Companies to reduce sulfiir dioxide (S02) 
emissions in two phases: Phase I m 1995 and Phase II in 2000. The Conqmnies selected a fuel switching 

. strat^y to comply with the onission reduction reqiurements. The Companies also purchased additional 
S02 aUowances. The cost of these purchased allowances was invent^ied and included on an average cost 
basis in the cost of fuel consumed when used. The cost of unused allowances at December 31, 2008 and 
2007, was $2,244,126 and $11,787,964, respectively. 

Title IV of the 1990 Clean Air Act Amendments also required the Companies to comply widi a nitrogen 
oxides (NOx) emission rate limit of 0.84 Ib/mmBtu in 2000. The Compaiues installed overfire air systems 
on all eleven units at the pknts to comply with this limit. The total capital cost ofthe eleven overfire air 
systems was af^roximately $8.2 million. 

During 2002 and 2003, Ohio and Indiana finalized respective NOx State Implementation Plan (SIP) CaU 
regulations that required fiirther significant NOx emission reductions for coal-buming power plants during 
the ozone control period (May through Sqitemb^). The Compames instaUed selective catalytic reduction 
(SCR) systems on ten of its eleven units to comply with these rules. The total capital cost ofthe ten SCR 
systems was approximately $355 miUion, 

On March 10, 2005, die U.S. EPA signed the Clean Air hitarstate Ruk (CAIR) that wiU require 
significant fiirtho reductions of S02 and NOx emissions fixim coal-buming power plants. On March 15, 
2005, the U.S. EPA also signed the Clean Air Mercury Rule (CAMR) that will require significant mercury 
emission reductions foe coal-buming power plants. These emission reductions will be required in two 
phases: 2009 and 2015 for NOx; 2010 and 2015 for S02; and 2010 and 2018 for mocury. Ohio and 
Indiana also subsequently finalized their respective versions of CAIR and CAMR. In response, the 
Companies detemined that it would be necessary to instaU fiue gas desul&rization (FGD) systems at both 
plants to comply with these new rules and have since becm conducting the necessary engineoing, 
pQ:initting, and construction to install these new FGD systems. 

hi Fdmiary 2008, the D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals issued a decision which vacated the fedaial CAMR 
and remanded the rule to the U.S. EPA with a detomination that die rule be rewritten und^ the maximum 
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achievable control technologies (MACT) }»x)vision of Section 112(d) of the Clean Air Act A group of 
electric utilities and the U.S. EPA requested a rehearing of the decision, which was dmkd by the court 
Following those denials, both the group of electric utilities and the U.S. EPA requited that the 
U.S. Suprane Court hear the case. However, in February 2009, the U.S. EPA withdrew its request and the 
group of utiUties' request was denied. These actions left die original court decision in place, which 
vacated the fodo'al CAMR and remanded the rule to the U.S. EPA with a determination that die rule be 
rewritten under the MACT provision of Section 112(d) of the Clean Air Act. 

In July 2008, the D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals issued a decision tiiat vacated the federal CAIR and 
rrananded the rule to the U.S. EPA In Sqptonber 2008, the U.S. EPA, a group of electric utiiUties and 
otho- parties filed petitions for rehearing. In December 2008, the D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals granted 
the U.S. EPA's petition and remanded the rule to the U.S. EPA without vacatur. aUowing the federal 
CAIR to remain in effect while a new rule b developed and promulgated 

In December 2008, the Companies Boarck of Directors authorized a delay in construction ofthe FGD at 
the CUfty Creek Plant of at least 18 months due to economic uncertainty in die capital markets. 

In March 2009, the Board of Directors of OVEC authorized a delay in the anticipated tie-in of the first 
three generating units to the Kyg«- Credc Plant's FGD system pending an investigation into the stiructural 
integrity of the two newly constructed j ^ bubbling reactors, which are major components of the FGD 
syston. Additional S02 aUowances will be purchased to tolerate the Clifty Creek and Kyger Creek 
generating units to con^)ly with the current environmental emission rules during the delays. The curroit 
cost to complete die new Kyg^ Creek and CUfty Cre^ FGD systems and the associated landfiUs is 
estimated not to exceed $ 1.33 bUlion. 

11. DISCLOSURES ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

SFAS No. 107, Disclosures about Fair Vahte of Financial instruments, require disclosure ofthe feir 
value of certain finandai instruments. The estimates of feir value under SFAS No. 107 require the 
application of broad assumptions and estimates. Accordingly, any actual exchange of such financial 
instruments could occur at values significantly diffa*ent fix)m the amounts disclosed. As cash and cash 
equivalents, current receivables, current payables, and line of credit borrowings are aU short tmn in 
natwe, their carrying amounts approximate feir value. The fair values ofthe Smor Notes were estimated 
usii^ discounted cash flow analyses based on current incremental borrowing rates for similar types of 
borrowing arrai^ements. 
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12. 

13. 

14. 

The feu- values and recorded values of the Senior Notes as of Decemba' 31, 2008 and 2007, are as 
follows: 

2008 2007 
Fair Value 

$365,930,295 
256,988,617 
324.385,533 

Recorded Value 

$ 413,013,876 
287,138.120 
345.166,313 

Fair Value Recorded Value 

$420,070,000 
288,450,000 

$426,359,355 
296,602,048 

$947.304,445 $1,045,318,309 $708.520,000 $722.961,403 2 . : ; : ; ^ 

Soiior 2006 Notes 
Senior 2007 Notes 
Senior 2008 Notes 

Total 

OPERATING LEASES 

OVEC has entered mto opoating leases to secure raUcars for the traiisportati<m of coal in connection with 
the fiiel switching modifications at the OVBC and die IKEC generating stations. OVBC has railcar lease 
agreements that extend to as loc^ as December 31, 2025, with options to exit the leases under certain 
conditions. 

Future mimmum lease payments for operating leases at Deconber 31,2008, are as fdilows: 

Years Ending 
December 31 

2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
Thereafter 

$ 4,726,988 
4,758,188 
3,356,810 
3,266,568 
3;254,088 

25,886,781 

Total future minimum lease pa3nnents $45,249,423 

The annual lease cost mcurred was $4,761,224 and $4,767,379 for 2008 and 2007, respectively. 

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Hie Companies are party in or may be affected by various matters under Utigatioa Management beUeves 
that die ultimate outcome of these matters wiU not have a significant advose effect on either the 
Companies' ftiture results of operation or financial positiott 

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

Statonent of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (SFAS 157), clarifies 
die definition of feir value, establishes a fi:amework for measuring feir value, and e^iands the disclosures 
on feir value measurements. The Companies have adq)ted SFAS 157 and FASB Staff Position FAS 
No. 157-2, Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157, effective Januaiy I, 2008. Tlie adoption of 
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SFAS 157 for financial instruments as required at January 1, 2008 dki not have a matoial effect on the 
Companies' consoUdated financial statements; however, the Companies are required to provide additional 
disclosure as part of the Companies' consolidated financial statonents. As of Decembo 31, 2008, the 
Companies have not adopted SFAS 157 for non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities. Howevo, 
the provisions associated with non-financial assets and non-financial UabiUtî  will be included m the 
disclosures m the Companies' 2009 consoUdated financial statemoits, as required, and wiU not have a 
material effect on the Companies' consoUdated financial statonents. 

On Octobo 10, 2008, die FASB issued Staff Position FAS No. 157-3, Fair Vahie Measurements Ô SP 
FAS 157-3), which clarifies the application of SFAS 157 in an inactive mark^ and provides an example 
to demonstrate how the feir value of a financial asset is determined whoi the market for that financial 
asset is inactive. FSP FAS 157-3 was effective upon issuance, including prior periods for which financial 
statemoits had not been issued. The adoption of this standard as of Deconbo 31, 2008 did not have a 
matoial impact on die Companies' consolidated financial statements, 

SFAS 157 establishes a tfoee-tio feir value hioarchy, which prioritizes the mputs used in measuring feir 
value. These tiers include: Level 1, defined as observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets; 
Level 2, defined as inputs otho than quoted pric^ in active mark^ that are eitho directly or indirectly 
observable; and Level 3, defined as unobsovable inputs in which Uttie or no maricet data exists, therefore 
requirii^ an entity to develop its own assumptions. 

As of Decembo 31,2008, the Companies held cotain assets that are required to be measured at feir value 
on a recurring basis. These consist of investments reccffded within cash and cash equivalents. The 
investments consist of money market mutual funds and debt securities. Changes in the observed trading 
prices and liquidity of money market funds are monitored as additional support for determining fair value, 
and losses are recorded in eamings if fair value fells below recorded cost. 

Assets measured at feir value on a recurring basis subject to the disclosure requirements of SFAS 157 at 
December 31,2008, woe as follows: 

Fair Value Measurements at 
Reporting Date Using 

Quoted Prices 
in Active 

for Market 
Identical Assets 

(Level 1) 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2) 

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level 3) 

Cash equivalents 

Marketable securities 

$45,118,305 $ 

$53,609,545 $ 

15. NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 

la February 2007, die FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and 
Financial Liabilities including an amenthnent of FASB Statement No. 115. This statement pomits er^ities 
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to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain otho itons at feir value. The election is 
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis and is irrevocable. If the feir value option is elected for an 
instrumoit, SFAS 159 specifies that aU subsequent changes in feir value for tiiat instrument shaU be 
rqx>rted in eanungs. The objective ofthe pronouncement is to unprove financial rqiortiing by |nx>viding 
entities with the opportunity to mitigate volatihty in reported eamir^ caused by measuring related assets 
and liabilities diffoently without havmg to apply covaplex. hedge accounting provisions. This statonoit is 
effective as of the beginning of an entity's fbrst fiscal year that b^ins afto Novembo 15, 2007, and was 
adopted by the Companies on January 1,2008. Thoe was no iiiq>act on the Companies' fmancial position 
and results of operations, because the Con^ianies made no feir value elections upon adoption. 

On Decembo 30, 2008, die FASB issued FSP FAS 132(R>1, viiiich amends Statemoit of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 132(R), Employers* Disclosures About Pensions and Other Postretirement 
Benefits — an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, and 106, to require xaore detaUed disclosures 
about employos' plan assets, including employers' investmoit strat^ies, major categories of plan assets, 
concentrations of risk within plan assets, and valuation techniques used to measure the feir vahie of plan 
assets. The disclosure requirements of FSP FAS 132(R)-1 wiU be effective for the Companies for the year 
ended Decembo 31,2009. 

« + 4r 4 4r « 
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To the Board of Directors of 
Ohio Valley Electrk Ccaporation: 

We have audited die acxiompanying consoUdated balance sheets of Ohio VaUey Electric Corporation and 
subsidiary con^iany (the Compames), as of Deconbo 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related consoUdated 
statements of income and retained earnings and cash fiows for the years then ended. These consolidated 
financial statemoits are the responsibUity ofthe Compames* maoagemoit. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on th^e consolidated financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits m acc(»tUince with auditing standards genoaUy accepted in the United States of 
Amoica. Those standards require that we plan and perfcmn (he audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
w h ^ o the consoUdated financial statements are free of matoial misstatement An audit includes consideration 
of internal control ovo financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of es^ressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Con^ianies' intonal 
control ovo financial rqicHting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also inchides examining, on 
a test basis, evidence suppcMtmg die amounts and disclosures in the consoUdated financial statements, assessing 
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as weU as evaluating the ovoaU 
financial statement ]»esentation. We beUeve that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our qpinion. 

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present feirly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of die Companies as of Decembo 31, 2008 ai»l 2007, and the results of their opoations and their cash 
flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generaUy accqited in the United States 
of Amoica. 

As discussed in Note 9 to the consoUdated financial statements, the Companies changed their method of 
accounting for defined benefit pension and otho postretirement plans in 2007. 

Deloitte & Touche LLP 

^"^OtMx. ^ /ousJU. U U ? 

Cincinnatî  Ohio 
March 27,2009 
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Net Ckneratioft (MWh) 

Energy Sales (MWh) to: 
DOE 
Spoasors 

Maximum Demand (MW) by. 
DOE 
Sponsors 

Weighted Average 
Demand (MW): 
DOE Operatmg Level 

Power Costs to: 
DOE 
Sponsors 

Average Price (MWh): 
DOE 
Sponsors 

Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses 

Cost of Fuel Consumed 

Taxes (fe^ra!, state, and local) 

Payroll 

Fuel Bumed (tons) 

Heat Rate (Btu ps-kWh, 
net generation) 

Unit Cost of Fud Burned 
(permmBtu) 

Unit Availability (percent) 

Power Use Factor (perewit) 

Employees (year-rad) 

2008 

15,260,029 

270,369 
15,026,497 

42 
2,216 

31 

$18,539,154 
$605354,979 

$68,570 
$40,286 

$621,813,000 

$566,798,000 

$340,211,000 

$10,808,000 

$S3,6HO00 

7,891,440 

10,236 

$2.18 

85J 

9639 

817 

2007 

15,109,836 

256,613 
14,918.727 

41 
2,233 

29 

$14,605,000 
$527,516,000 

$56,915 
$35,359 

$531,362,000 

$494,808,000 

$300,666,000 

$9,898,000 

$49,977,000 

7,647^97 

10,180 

$1.95 

85.0 

96.92 

747 

2006 

16.468,342 

246371 
16,226,777 

37 
2300 

28 

$15,445,000 
$509,024,000 

$62,689 
$31,369 

$523,927,000 

$494,893,000 

$318,762,000 

$9,457,000 

$47361,000 

7.820316 

10.053 

$1.95 

88.8 

98,06 

748 

2005 

16.638,497 

251375 
lfi ,?H7l6 

45 
2,291 

29 

$1432a000 
$458345.000 

$57,764 
$28,198 

$468346.000 

$442,420,000 

$287,093,000 

$7,735,000 

$46,447,000 

7,632,857 

9,978 

$1.73 

88.0 

99.54 

749 

2004 

15310.465 

262,944 
15.455340 

46 
2,257 

30 

$9,696,000 
$377392,000 

$36,876 
$24,418 

$406,283,000 

$380,972,000 

$218,917,000 

$9,699,000 

$45396,000 

7310373 

10,076 

$1.37 

87.6 

97.19 

742 
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Annex 2 

Ohio Valley Electric Corporation 

And Subsidiaiy 

Indiana-Kentucky Electric Corporation 

Consolidating Balance Sheets-March 31,2009-Unaudited~and December 31,2008 
Consolidating Statements of Income and Retained Eamings Year 

to Date-March 31,2009 and 2008-Unaudited 
Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows Year to Date-March 31,2009 and 2008--Unaudited 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTEUC CORPORATION 

AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEETS - MARCH 31.2009-UNAUDITED AND DECEMBER 31.2008 

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS 
YEAR TO DATE - MARCH 31,2009 AND 2008-UNAUDITED 

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
YEAR TO DATE - MARCH 31,2009 AND 2008-UNAUDITED 



O m O VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 

AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEETS - MARCH 31,2009-UNAUDITED AND DECEMBER 31,2008 

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF INC<ft«E AND RETAINED EARNINGS 
YEAR TO DATE - MARCH 31.2009 AND 2008-UNAUDrrED 

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
YEAR TO DATE - MARCH 31.2009 AND 2008-UNAUDnBD 

OFHCER'S CERTinCATION 

A revtew ofthe affairs and activities of Ohio Valley Electric Coiporation and its wholly-owned 

subsidiary, Indiana-Kentucky Electric Corporation (the Conipanies). during the quartos ended 

March 31,2009 and 2008. and Decend)er 31,2008 has been made under my supervision, and in my opinion, 

the unaudited financial statements for these periods present feirly tiie financial conditions of the Companies 

as of March 31,2009 and 2008, and December 31,2008, and tiie lesutts ofthe operations, tiiereof 

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles consistently atppWed t h n n i ^ u t the period. To the 

best of my knowledge and belief, there has been no Potential Defimlt, D e ^ l t , or Event of De&ult 

1^ the Companies and the Compaiues are in compliance with the covenents oftiie 

current debt agreements. 

OVStOVP 
Secretary and Tieasurer 

VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION and 
INDIANA-KENTUCKY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
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Annex 3 

Ohio Valley Electric Corporation 

And Subsidiary 

Indiana-Kentucky Electric Corporation 

Consolidating Balance Sheets-June 30,2009-Unaudited-and December 31,2008 
Consolidating Statements of Income and Retained Eamings Year 

to Date-June 30, 2009 and 2008-Unaudited 
Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows Year to Date-June 30,2009 and 2008---Unaudited 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 

AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEETS - JUNE 30,2009-UNAUDITED AND DECEMBER 31,2008 

CONSOLDDATING STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNmOS 
YEAR TO DATE - JUNE 30,2009 AND 2008-UNAUDITED 

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLX)WS 
YEAR TO DATE - JUNE 30,2009 AND 2008-UNAUDITED 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 

AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEETS - JUNE 30.2009-UNAUDrreD AND DECEMBER 31,2008 

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS 
YEAR TO DATE - JUNE 30,2009 AND 2008-UNAUDnED 

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
YEAR TO DATE - JUNE 30,2009 AND 2008-UNAUDITED 

OFFICER'S CERTIFICATION 

A review ofthe a f ^ r s and activities of Ohio Valley ISecfric Corpcnration and its wholly-owned 

subsidiary, Indiana-Kentucl^ Etectric Coiporation (the Con^yanies), during the quarters aided 

June 30.2009 and 2008, and December 31,2008 has been made under my supervision, and in my opinion, 

the unaudited financial statonents for tiiese periods present ^ r l y the financial conditions of the Companies 

as of June 30,2009 and 2008, and December 31,2008, and tiie results ofthe operations, thereof, 

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles consistentiy applied tiiroughout the period. To tbe 

beat of my knowledge and belief, tiiere has been no Potential Default, Defoult, or Event of De&ult 

by the Companies and tiie Conqianies are in compliance witii ttie coven^its ofthe 

curroit debt agreements. 

^ A 
Secrdary and Treasurer 

OHiaVALLEY ELECTKIC CORPORATION and 
INDIANA-KENTUCKY ELECHUC CORPORATION 
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APPENDIX B f 
PROPOSED FORM OF OPINION OF BOIVD COUNSEL 

We have examined the transcript of proceedmgs (the "Transcript") relating to the 
issuance by the Ohio Air Quality Development Authority (the "Issuer") of $100,000,000 
aggregate prmcipal amount of State of Ohio Air Quality Revenue Bonds (Ohio Valley Electric 
Corporation Project), Series 2009E (the "Bonds"). The Bonds are being issued for the purpose 
of making a loan to assist Ohio Valley Electric Corporation (the "Company") in the fmancing of 
a portion of the costs of acquiring, constructing and installing certain solid waste disposal 
facilities comprising "air quality facilities" as defmed in Section 3706.01 ofthe Ohio Revised 
Code, as more particularly described in the Indenture of Trust dated as of October 1, 2009 (die 
"Indenture") between the Issuer and The Huntington National Bank, as trustee (the "Trustee"), 
and in the Loan Agreement dated as of October 1, 2009 (the "Agreemenf) between the Issuer 
and the Company. We have also examined executed counterparts of the Indenture and the Loan 
Agreement and a conformed copy of an executed Bond. 

Based on such examination, we are ofthe opinion that, under the law existing on the date 
of this opinion: 

1. The Bonds, the Indenture and the Agreement are legal, valid, binding and 
enforceable in accordance with their respective terms, except that the binding effect and 
enforceability thereof are subject to bankruptcy laws and other laws affecting creditors' rights 
and to the exercise of judicial discretion. 

2. The Bonds constitute special obligations ofthe State of Ohio, and the principal of 
and interest on the Bonds (collectively, "debt charges") are payable solely from the revenues and 
other moneys assigned by the Indenture to secure those payments. Those revenues and other 
moneys include the payments required to be made by the Company under its promissory note 
(the "Note") delivered to the Issuer, and irrevocably assigned by the Issuer to the Trustee, all 
pursuant to the Agreement. The Bonds do not constitute a debt or pledge of the faith and credit 
of the Issuer or the State of Ohio or any political subdivision thereof, and the holders or owners 
thereof have no right to have taxes levied by the General Assembly of the State of Ohio or any 
political subdivision ofthe State of Ohio for the payment of debt charges. 

3. The interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes under Section 103(a) ofthe Intemal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), 
except interest on any Bond for any period during which it is held by a "substantial user" or a 
"related person" as those terms are used in Section 147(a) ofthe Code. Interest on the Bonds is 
not an item of tax preference under Section 57 of the Code for purposes of the altemative 
minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations. The interest on the Bonds, and any 
profit made on their sale, exchange or other disposition, are exempt from the Ohio personal 
income tax, the Ohio commercial activity tax, the net income base of the Ohio corporate 
franchise tax, and municipal, school district and joint economic development district income 
taxes in Ohio. We express no opinion as to any other tax consequences regarding the Bonds. 

B-l 



Under the Code, interest on the Bonds is excluded from the calculation of a corporation's 
adjusted current eamings for purposes of the corporate altemative minimum tax, but interest on 
the Bonds may be subject to a branch profits tax imposed on certain foreign corporations doing 
business in the United States and to a tax imposed on excess net passive income of certain S 
corporations, 

In giving the foregoing opinion, we have assumed and relied upon compliance with the 
covenants of the Issuer and the Company and the accuracy, which we have not independently 
verified, ofthe representations and certifications ofthe Issuer and ofthe Company contained in 
the Transcript. The accuracy of certain of those representations and certifications, and 
compliance by the Issuer and the Company with certain ofthose covenants, may be necessary for 
the interest on the Bonds to be and to remain excluded from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes. Failure to comply with certain requirements with respect to the Bonds subsequent to 
the issuance of the Bonds could cause the interest on the Bonds to be included in gross income 
for federal income tax purposes retroactively to their date of issuance. We have also assimied for 
purposes of this opinion (i) the due authorization, execution and delivery by, and the binding 
effect upon and enforceability against, the Tmstee ofthe Indenture and (ii) the due authorization, 
execution and delivery by, and the binding effect upon and enforceability against, the Company 
ofthe Agreement and the Note. 

Respectfiilly submitted, 
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APPENDING 

DESCRIPTION OF THE UNDERTAKINGS OF THE COMPANY 

The following is a brief sumnaary of certain provisions of the Undertaking and does not 
purport to be complete. The statements made in this Appendix C are subject to the detailed 
provisions of the Undertaking, a copy of which is available upon request from the Company. 
Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings given them in 
the body of this Official Statement. 

The Company will enter into a Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (the "Undertaking **) 
for the benefit of the holders of the Bonds to send certain information annually and to provide 
notice of certain events to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the "MSRB ") through 
its Electronic Municipal Market Access system for municipal securities disclosure or through 
any other electronic format or system prescribed by the MSRB for purposes of the Rule 
("EMMA"), pursuant to the requirements of Section (b)(5) of Rule 15c2-12 (the "Rule") adopted 
by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Commission") under the 1934 Act. Any 
breach by the Company of the Undertaking pursuant to the Rule will not constitute an Event of 
Default imder the Loan Agreement or the Indenture. 

Annual Financial Information Disclosure 

The Company covenants that it will disseminate its Aimual Financial Information, its 
Annual Report and its Audited Fmancial Statements (each as described below) to the MSRB 
through EMMA. The Company has agreed to file: (1) the Aimual Financial Information not 
later than 180 days after the end of each fiscal year of the Company, (2) the Annual Report not 
later than 240 days after the end of each fiscal year of the Company, and (3) the Audited 
Financial Statements not later than 150 days after the end ofeach fiscal year ofthe Company. 

"Annual Financial Information" means the Company's financial information and 
operating data of the type contained in Appendix A to this Official Statement under the 
following captions: (a) the tabular information imder "Financial Summary - OVEC/IKEC Plant 
Description - Operating Statistics - Net heat rate (BTU/kWh)-2008," "- Availability factor (%) 
- 2004-2008 avg.," "- Fuel cost ($/MWh)-2008" and "- Total production costs ($/MWh)-2008;" 
(b) the tabular information under "Financial Summary - OVEC/IKEC Coal Supply;" and 
(c) "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation." 

"Annual Report" means the Company's Annual Report, which report shall be ofthe type 
included in Appendix A to this Official Statement. 

"Audited Financial Statements" means the Company's audited annual financial 
statements for the Company's most recent fiscal year then ended, of the type included in 
Appendix A to this Official Statement, which financial statements will be prepared in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles. 

C-1 



Material Events Disclosure 

The Company covenants that it will disseminate in a timely manner to the MSRB through 
EMMA the disclosure of the occurrence of an Event (as described below) witfi respect to the 
Bonds that is material, as materiality is interpreted under the 1934 Act. The "Events'* are: 

Principal and interest payment delinquencies 
Non-payment related defaults 
Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties 
Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties 
Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform 
Adverse tax opinions or events affecting the tax-exempt status ofthe security 
Modifications to the rights of security holders 
Bond calls 
Defeasances 
Release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment ofthe securities 
Rating changes 

Notice of any FaUure ofthe Company to Provide Information 

The Company covenants that it will also give notice in a timely manner to the MSRB 
through EMMA of any failure to provide disclosure ofthe Annual Financial Information, the 
Annual Report and the Audited Financial Statements when the same are due under the 
Undertaking. 
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